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NOTICE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Forty-Third (43rd) Annual General Meeting of the Members of MAURIA UDYOG 
LIMITED will be held on Thursday, the 28th September, 2023 at 03:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing(“VC”) or Other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including the Audited Balance Sheet as 

at 31st March, 2023, Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 together with the reports of the 
Board of Directors and the Auditors. 

 
2. To appoint a director in place of Smt. Veena Aggarwal (DIN: 00060415),  who retires by rotation and, being eligible, 

offers her-self for re- appointment. 

 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

 
3. Appointment of Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  (DIN: 08666368) as Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies 

Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof read with Schedule IV of the Act and applicable regulations, if any 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, (“LODR”), and based 

on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  (DIN: 

10213816), who qualifies for being appointed as an Independent Director be and is hereby appointed as Non-

Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold office for term of five consecutive years with effect from 

June 26, 2023  till  June 25, 2028 and that he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to sign such forms/returns 

and various documents as may be required to execute and submit to the Concerned Registrar of Companies (ROC) or 

such other authorities and to do all such acts, deeds and things which may be necessary to give effect to the above 

said resolution.” 

 

4. Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential Basis :  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(c) read with Section 42 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) (the “Act”) and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, the listing agreements entered into by the Company with the stock exchanges, where the shares of 
the Company are listed, provisions of Chapter V – “Preferential Issue” and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as may be modified or re-
enacted from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the “ICDR Regulations”), the applicable rules, notifications, guidelines 
issued by various authorities including but not limited to the Government of India, the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(“SEBI”), the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and other competent authorities and subject to the approvals, permissions, 

sanctions and consents as may be necessary from any regulatory and other appropriate authorities (including but not limited to 
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the SEBI, RBI, the Government of India, etc.), and all such other approvals (including approvals of the existing lenders of the 
Company, if required), and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed by any of them while granting 
such approvals, permissions, sanctions and consents, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to 
as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any committee which the Board has constituted or may constitute to 
exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution), the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to the Board to create, offer, issue and allot 49,99,996 (Forty Nine Lakh Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Six) 
fully paid- up equity shares of the Company, having face value of Rs.1/- (Rupees One Only) each at a premium of Rs. 
9.80 (Rupees Nine and paise Eighty Only) per equity share aggregating to Rs. 5,40,00,000 (Rupees Five Crore Forty lacs 
only) (rounded off) in accordance with the ICDR Regulations and applicable law, to certain persons / entities as mentioned 
below (hereinafter referred to as the “Investors” or the “Proposed Allottees”) whether they are Shareholders of the Company or 
not, by way of a preferential allotment and in such manner and on such other terms and conditions, as the Board may, in its 
absolute discretion, think fit.” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with Regulation 161 of the ICDR Regulations, the “Relevant Date”, for 

determining the minimum price of the equity shares being allotted to the Proposed Allottees, on a preferential basis, is August 
29, 2023 being the date which is 30 (Thirty) days prior to the date of passing of special resolution to approve the proposed 
preferential issue in terms of Section 62(1)(c) of the Act.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares to be allotted in terms of this resolution shall be made fully paid up at the 
time of allotment and shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Company in all respects and the same shall be 
subject to lock-in for such period that may be prescribed under the ICDR Regulations.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board / Issue and Allotment 
Committee of the Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to take all actions and to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things (including sub- delegating its powers to authorised representatives) as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem 
necessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, including deciding / revising the dates of allotment, deciding and / or finalising 
other terms of issue and allotment in consonance with the ICDR Regulations, listing of the equity shares to be issued and 
allotted, and to modify, accept and give effect to any modifications to the terms and conditions of the issue as may be required 
by the statutory, regulatory and other appropriate authorities including but not limited to SEBI, the RBI, the Government of 
India, etc. and such other approvals (including approvals of the existing lenders of the Company) and as may be agreed by the 
Board, and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in the proposed issue, pricing of the issue, allotment and 
listing of the equity shares, including utilisation of the issue proceeds and to execute all such deeds, documents, writings, 
agreements, applications, forms in connection with the proposed issue as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem 
necessary or desirable without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Shareholders or otherwise with the 
intent that the Shareholders shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred 
to any other Committee of the Board to give effect to this resolution.” 

Name of the Proposed allottee PAN Category 
 

Number of Shares 
to be issued 
 

Amit Jindal AISPJ7723P Non- Promoter                                   
2,31,481  

Amit Jindal HUF AAPHA8583B Non- Promoter                                  
2,31,481  

Geetika Srivastava CHSPS4624K Non- Promoter                                  
7,68,518  

Pitam Goel ALAPG3324L Non- Promoter                                  
4,62,962  

Tushar Aggarwal AJBPA6833D Non- Promoter                                  
6,94,444  

Swati Goel AMUPJ7776Q Non- Promoter                                  
5,74,074  

Divya Aggarwal BINPR9793R Non- Promoter                                  
5,74,074  

Radhey Shyam Aggarwal ACAPA8341G Non- Promoter                                
14,62,962  
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5. Issue of equity shares to the promoters/non-promoters by way of conversion of unsecured loan  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(c) read with Section 42 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) (the “Act”) and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, the listing agreements entered into by the Company with the stock exchanges, where the shares of 
the Company are listed, provisions of Chapter V – “Preferential Issue” and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as may be modified or re-
enacted from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the “ICDR Regulations”), the applicable rules, notifications, guidelines 
issued by various authorities including but not limited to the Government of India, the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(“SEBI”), the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and other competent authorities and subject to the approvals, permissions, 

sanctions and consents as may be necessary from any regulatory and other appropriate authorities (including but not limited to 
the SEBI, RBI, the Government of India, etc.), and all such other approvals (including approvals of the existing lenders of the 
Company, if required), and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed by any of them while granting 
such approvals, permissions, sanctions and consents, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to 
as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any committee which the Board has constituted or may constitute to 
exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution), the consent and approval of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded and the Board be and is hereby authorized to create, offer, issue and allot 3,17,03,700 (Three Crore 
Seventeen Lakh Three Thousand Seven Hundred Only) Equity Shares, having face value of Rs.1/- (Rupees One Only) 
each at a premium of Rs. 9.80 (Rupees Nine and paise Eighty Only) per equity share in accordance with the ICDR 
Regulations and applicable law on preferential basis to the promoters of the Company, by way of conversion of existing 
unsecured loan of Rs. 34,24,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Four Crore Twenty Four Lakh only) extended by the following 
promoters/non-promoters and in such manner and on such other terms and conditions, as the Board may, in its absolute 
discretion, think fit. 

 
Name of the Proposed allottee PAN Category 

 
Number of Equity 
Shares to be issued 
 

Quality Synthetic Industries Limited AAACQ0508Q 
Promoter  

                           1,71,29,629  

Prem Lata Sureka 
APNPS0422C 

Promoter  
                               23,14,814  

Deepanshu Sureka  
CKKPS0791J 

Promoter  
                               18,51,851  

Vishnu Kumar Sureka  
AATPS7024H 

Promoter  
                               27,77,777  

Navneet Kumar Sureka (HUF) AACHN0444F 
Promoter  

                               11,57,407  

Navneet Kumar Sureka     ANWPS5531K 
Promoter  

                               34,72,222  

S.B. Overseas Private Limited 
AAACD9338B 

Non-Promoter                                30,00,000  
 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with Regulation 161 of the ICDR Regulations, the “Relevant Date”, for 

determining the minimum price of the equity shares being allotted to the promoters, on a preferential basis, is August 29, 2023 
being the date which is 30 (Thirty) days prior to the date of passing of special resolution to approve the proposed preferential 
issue in terms of Section 42 and Section 62(1)(c) of the Act.” 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares to be allotted in terms of this resolution shall rank pari passu with the 
existing equity shares of the Company in all respects and the same shall be subject to lock-in for such period that may be 
prescribed under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board / Issue and Allotment 
Committee of the Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to take all actions and to do all such acts, deeds, 
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matters and things (including sub- delegating its powers to authorised representatives) as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem 
necessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, including deciding / revising the dates of allotment, deciding and / or finalising 
other terms of issue and allotment in consonance with the ICDR Regulations, listing of the equity shares to be issued and 
allotted, and to modify, accept and give effect to any modifications to the terms and conditions of the issue as may be required 
by the statutory, regulatory and other appropriate authorities including but not limited to SEBI, the RBI, the Government of 
India, etc. and such other approvals (including approvals of the existing lenders of the Company) and as may be agreed by the 
Board, and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in the proposed issue, pricing of the issue, allotment and 
listing of the equity shares, including utilisation of the issue proceeds and to execute all such deeds, documents, writings, 
agreements, applications, forms in connection with the proposed issue as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem 
necessary or desirable without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Shareholders or otherwise with the 
intent that the Shareholders shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred 
to any other Committee of the Board to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

 
6.  To approve entering into Transactions with Related Parties u/s 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“ RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements)Regulations, 2015and Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013and other applicable provisions, rules, 
regulation for the time being in force, and also pursuant to consent of Audit Committee, consent of the shareholders be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors for entering into related party transactions by the Company with effect 
from 1st April, 2023 upto a maximum amount per annum as specified herein below: 
 
 

 
MAXIMUM VALUE OF CONTRACT/ TRANSACTION (PER ANNUM) WEF 1ST APRIL, 2023. 

Rs  in Crores 
 Transactions defined u/s 188(1) of the Companies 

Act,2013 
 

Name of the related parties and name of the 
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel 
who is related, if any alongwith nature of 
their relationship: 

 
Sh. N.K. Sureka, Managing Director and 
Smt. Deepa Sureka Director being the 
Promoter Directors and/or their relatives 
are interested as Directors, Shareholders or 
Partners in the following Companies, Trust, 
Society/Firms/ LLP. 

Sale, 
purchase 
or supply 
of any 
goods 
/material 

Selling/Leas 
ing or 
otherwise 
disposing of 
or buying 
property of 
any kind 

Leasing 
of 
property 
of any 
kind 

Availing or rendering 
of any services; 
Appointment of any 
agent for purchase or 
sale of goods; 
materials, services or 
property, availing 
corporate guarantee or 
collaterals etc. 

Others 

COMPANIES      

Jotindra Steel & Tubes Ltd. 50 50 10 50 50 
Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd. 20 20 5 20 75 
Srinarayan Rajkumar Merchants Ltd. 20 20 5 20 75 
Taanz Fashions India Private Ltd. 5 5 5 25 50 
Veshnoudevi Properties Pvt. Ltd. 5 5 5 100 50 
Vee Em Infocentre Private Ltd 5 5 5 100 50 
J.S.T. Engineering Services Ltd. 5 5 5 100 50 

 Bhama Properties Pvt. Ltd.  5 5 5 100 50 
Bihariji Properties Pvt. Ltd. 5 5 5 100 50 
Be Indi Fashions India Pvt. Ltd. 01 01 0.50 5 1 
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TRUST SOCIETY/FIRMS/ LLP/JOINT 
VENTUR/SUBSIDIARIES-Sureka Public 
Charity Trust/Stawberry Star India Pvt. 
Ltd. 

50 50 50 50 75 

Directors/KMPs/Relatives of directors/ 
other firms and companies in which 
directors have interest as per section 
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
5 

 
5 

 
2 

 
2 

 
5 

Note: Terms and conditions of transactions to be entered into with the above named parties are subject to and to be 
agreed upon and approved from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

 

“RESOLVEDFURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board of Directors and/or any 
Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and matters as the Board of Directors 
and/or Committee thereof may in its absolute discretion consider necessary, proper, expedient and appropriate.” 

 
7.  To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March, 2023 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“ RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, 
for the time being in force, Jai Prakash &Co., the Cost Auditors (Firm Regd. No.-100572) appointed by the Board of 
Directors of the Company, to conduct the Audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March, 
31, 2023, be paid remuneration of Rs. 55,000/-”(Rupees Fifty-five Thousand Only). 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Notes: 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

SD/- 
(DIVYA AGARWAL) 

COMPANY SECRETARY 
ROOM NO. 107, 1STFLOOR, 
ANAND JYOTI BUILDING, 
41, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA-700001 
(WEST BENGAL) 

CIN: L51909WB1980PLC033010 
Date: September 04, 2023. 
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1 As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th 
April, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15th June, 2020, 
General Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28th September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31st December, 2020, 
Circular no. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8th December, 2021 and Circular No. 
21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 and Circular No.10/2022 dated 28th 
December, 2022 (collectively “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circular 

no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 and circular no. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 
dated 15th January, 2021 (collectively “SEBI Circulars”), have permitted companies to conduct AGM through VC or 

other audio visual means, subject to compliance of various conditions mentioned therein. In compliance with the 
aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars and the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the forthcoming 43rdAGM 
of Mauria Udyog Ltd. is being convened and conducted through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual 
means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM 

 
2. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 

members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 
2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 
attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with the Notice. 

 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 
2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at 
the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized E-Voting agency. The facility of casting votes 
by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by 
.NSDL 

 
 

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 
AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.mauria.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com . The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the 
website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) 
i.e.www.evotingindia.com . 

 
7. The AGM is being convened and conducted through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 
dated 13th April, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15th 
June, 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28th September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31st 
December, 2020, Circular no. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8th December, 2021 and 
Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 and Circular No.10/2022 
dated 28th December, 2022 (collectively “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide 

its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 and circular no. SEBI/ 
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HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021 (collectively “SEBI Circulars”). . 
 

8. Dispatch of Annual Report through E-mail 
 

In accordance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the 43rd AGM alongwith the Annual Report of the 
Company for the financial year 2022-23 are being sent only through e-mail, to those Members whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (the “RTA”), i.e., M/s. BEETAL Financial & 
Computers Services Pvt. Ltd. or the Depository Participant(s). Members  may please  note  that  the  Notice and the 
Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 shall be available on the websites of the Company i .e . , 
www.mauria.com,   the Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares of the Company are listed i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and the website National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), i.e., www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
9. Only registered members and/or any proxy appointed by such registered member of the Company holding shares as on 

the Cut-off date i.e. Thursday. 21st September, 2023, decided for the purpose, may attend and vote at the Annual 
General Meeting as provided under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
10. The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 22th September, 

2023 to Thursday, the 28th September, 2023 (both days inclusive). 
 

11. Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to 
be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto. 

 
12. SEBI mandates transfers of securities only in dematerialized mode vide Notification No.: SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 

dated June 8, 2018. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization, members are advised to 
dematerialize shares held by them in physical form. 

 

6. SEBI mandates updation of Shareholders’ PAN and Bank details vide SEBI Circular No.: 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/24 dated June 08, 2018. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to 
submit their PAN details to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

 
7. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. 

Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their depository 
participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

 
8. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, in respect of directors seeking 

appointment/re-appointment at the AGM, forms part of the Notice. 
 

9. All the documents referred to in the notice will be available for inspection at the Company’s registered office during 
normal business hours on all working days upto the date of AGM. The Register of Directors and Key managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under section 170 of the Companies Act 2013(Act), and the Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which directors are interested, maintained under section 189 of the Act, will be available 
for inspection by the members at the AGM. 

 
10. Members whose shareholding is in electronic mode are requested to direct change of address, contact details and bank 

account details, in case of change, to their respective depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form 
are requested to update their addresses and contact details with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company, 
if there is any change. 

 
11. In terms of section 101 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the rules made thereunder, the Company 

forwarded soft copies of all the documents to be sent to the shareholders including the General Meeting notices along 
with Audited Accounts and requisite reports thereon to all those members who have registered their e-mail ids with their 
respective DPs or with the Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Please note that these documents are also available on 
the Company’s Website at www.mauria.com . All the members are requested to ensure to keep their e-mail addresses 
updated with the Depository Participants or by writing to the Company at secretarial@mauria.com quoting their folio 

http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
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number(s) or their DP/ CLIENT IDs. 
 

12. Voting Rights: Shareholders holding equity shares shall have one vote per share as shown against their holding and 
shareholders. 

 
13. Voting through electronic means: 

 
a. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and 

Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a member of the 
Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form may exercise his right to vote by 
electronic means in respect of the resolution(s) contained in this notice. 

b. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means to its members to enable them to cast their votes 
through such voting. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
to provide remote e-voting facility (i.e. the facility of casting votes by a member by using an electronic voting 
system from a place other than the venue of a general meeting). 

c. The Company shall also provide facility for voting through Ballot/polling paper which shall be available at the 
meeting and members attending the meeting who have not already casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be able 
to exercise their right to vote at the meeting 

d. The members who have exercised their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

e. The Board of Directors have appointed M/s A G D & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN: 033552N), 
Faridabad in practice as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

f. The cut-off date for the purpose of voting (including remote e-voting) in the meeting is Thursday, 21st  September, 
2023.  

g. Members are requested to carefully read the instructions for remote e-voting before casting their vote. 
h. The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period after which the portal shall forthwith be 

blocked and shall not be available: 
 

COMMENCMENT OF E-VOTING END OF E-VOTING 

Monday, 25th September, 2023 at 10.00 
A.M 

Wednesday, 27th September 2023 at 5.00 P.M. 

 
a. Persons who have acquired shares and became members of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of AGM but 

before the cut-off date of Thursday, 21st  September, 2023. , may obtained their user ID and password for e-voting 
from the Company’s Registrar and share transfer Agent or NSDL. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTINGARE AS UNDER:- 

 
The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, 25th September, 2023 at 10.00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday, 27th 
September 2023 at 5.00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The 
Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off 
date) i.e. Thursday, 21st  September, 2023. may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall 
be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 
Saturday, 23rd September, 2023. 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
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shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 
Type of shareholders Login Method 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under „IDeAS‟ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 
Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e- Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click   on   the   icon   “Login”   which   is   available   under 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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  „Shareholder/Member‟ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e- 
Voting period. 

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1) Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through 
their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e- 
Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to 
login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

 
2) After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the 

E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

 
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

 
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com 
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 Login type Helpdesk details 
 Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and  1800 22 44 30 

 Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 
022-23058542-43 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under „Shareholder/Member‟ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members 
Physical Form. 

holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the „initial 
password‟ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your „initial password‟, you 
need to enter the „initial password‟ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your „initial password‟? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your „initial 

password‟ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your „User ID‟ and your „initial 
password‟. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e- 
Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 
 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 
 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
office@agdassociates.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. 
by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in 
the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 
no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre- Senior Manager at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to secretarial@mauria.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to secretarial@mauria.com . If 
you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 
number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 
1. The procedure for attending meeting &e-Voting on the day of the AGM/EGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

 
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be 

eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 

mailto:office@agdassociates.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


43rd MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 
 

 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 
 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 
the meeting. 

 
6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during 
the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the 
company suitably by email. 

 
8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e- 
Voting system available during the EGM/AGM. 

 
 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders 
shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending 
the meeting. 

 
 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id secretarial@mauria.com 

 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 
 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”), attached to the Notice dated 04th September, 2023 convening the 
43rd Annual General Meeting) 

Item No. 03 

Special Resolution  

 
Appointment of Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi (DIN: 10213816) as Non-Executive Independent Director 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
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Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, provisions under the Listing Regulations 2015 and section 
161(1) of the Act, and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi as an Additional Director 
(Independent Category) of the Company for a term of five consecutive years with effect from 26th June, 2023. 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, read with Reg. 17(1C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations 2015, as amended, Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi would hold office upto the date of the ensuing 
General Meeting . 
 
 Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and 
has given his consent to act as a Director. 
 
The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge. 
 
 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi ,fulfills the conditions for his appointment as an Independent 
Director as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations. Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi is independent of the management. 
 
Keeping in view his expertise and knowledge, it will be in the interest of the Company that Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  is 
appointed as an Independent Director. 
 
Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  as an Independent Director setting out the terms and 
conditions is available for inspection by members at the Registered Office of the Company. 
 
None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 3 of the Notice. 
 
The Board in view of the aforesaid legal requirements recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No.3 for approval by 
the shareholders. 
 
Details of the Directors as required to be provided pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and SS – 2 (Secretarial 
Standards on General Meetings) are provided as an Annexure to this Notice. 

ItemNo.04 & 05 

Special Resolutions  
 
Your Company is a leading Manufacturer & Exporters of welded steel cylinders and funds are required to augment its working 
capital and capital expenditure needs as well as to improve its financial ratios. The promoters of your Company and non-
promoters as detailed hereunder have therefore decided to subscribe for the equity shares of the Company. 
 
In terms of Section 62(1)(c) read with Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (the “Act”), a company 
can undertake preferential allotment / private placement only after obtaining prior approval of the shareholders by way of special 
resolution in terms of Section 42 and 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with provisions of Chapter V – “Preferential 

Issue” of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (the 
“ICDR Regulations”), as amended, and on the terms and conditions and formalities as stipulated in the Act and the ICDR 

Regulations. 
 
Accordingly, the Company proposes to issue and allot an aggregate of 3,67,03,696 (Three Crore Sixty Seven Lakh Three 
Thousand Six Hundred Ninety Six Only) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 1/- (Rupees One Only) each at a premium of 
Rs. 9.80/- (Rupees Nine and Eighty Paisa Only) per equity share in accordance with the ICDR Regulations and applicable law, 
to the promoters and non-Promoters. 
 
The following details of the proposed preferential issue of the equity shares are disclosed in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act and the ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time: 
 

1. Particulars of the offer including date of passing of Board resolution; 
 



43rd MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 
 

The Board in its meeting held on September 04, 2023 proposed to convert unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 34,24,00,000 
(Rupees Thirty Four Crore Twenty Four Lakh only) extended by the following promoters/non-promoters by issuing 3,17,03,700 
(Three Crore Seventeen Lakh Three Thousand Seven Hundred Only) Equity Shares, having face value of Rs.1/- (Rupees One 
Only) each at a premium of Rs. 9.80 (Rupees Nine and paise Eighty Only) by way of preferential allotment. 
 
The Board also proposed raising Rs. 5,40,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores Forty Lacs) (rounded off) by way of preferential allotment 
to non-promoters by fresh issue and allot 49,99,996 (Forty Nine Lakh Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Six) fully 
paid- up equity shares of the Company, having face value of Rs.1/- (Rupees One Only) each at a premium of Rs. 9.80 (Rupees 
Nine and paise Eighty Only). 
 

2. Purpose or Objects of the Preferential Issue: 
 
The purpose or object of raising funds by issuing Equity Shares is to repay the existing loans raised from the banks/financial 
institutions. 
 

3. Kind and amount of Securities, and the price at which security is being offered  
 
The Company proposes to issue and allot an aggregate of 3,67,03,696 (Three Crore Sixty-Seven Lacs Three Thousand Six 
Hundred and Ninety-Six Only) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.1/- (Rupees One Only) each at a premium of Rs. 9.80/- (Rupees 
Nine and Eighty Paisa Only) per equity share in accordance with the ICDR Regulations and applicable law, to the promoters and 
non-promoters. 
 
 

4. The price or price band at which the allotment is proposed: 
 
The issue price is Rs 10.80/- (Rupees Ten and Eighty Paisa Only) per Equity Share having face value of Rs. 1/- (Rupees One 
Only) each, at a premium of Rs. 9.80/- (Rupees Nine and Eighty Paisa) per Equity Share. 
 

5. Basis on which price has been arrived at: 
 
While the Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and Calcutta Stock Exchange, however, the shares 
were frequently traded on and the trading volume of Equity Shares of the Company was higher on BSE during the preceding 90 
trading days prior to the Relevant Date for computation of issue price and also there was no trading of Shares of the Company on 
Calcutta Stock Exchange. Therefore, trading volume of the Equity Shares on the BSE has been considered to determine the issue 
price. 
 
In terms of the provisions Regulation 164(1) of ICDR Regulations the price at which Equity shall be allotted shall not be less 
than higher of the following: 
 
 the 90 trading days volume weighted average price of the related equity shares quoted on the recognised stock exchange 

preceding the relevant date; or 
 

 the 10 trading days volume weighted average prices of the related equity shares quoted on a recognised stock exchange 
preceding the relevant date. 

 
We also confirm that the Articles of Association doesn’t contain any article which provides for particular method for 

determination of price in case of preferential issue. 
 
However, the proposed allotment to the individual allottee(s) shall be more than 5% of the post issue fully diluted Equity Shares 
capital of the company, and therefore, the pricing of the Equity Shares to be allotted shall be higher of the following parameters: 
 
I. Price determined as per the provisions of the Regulation 164(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations (in case of frequently 

traded shares) which is Rs. 10.75 (Rupees Ten and Seventy Five Paisa Only) per Equity Share.  
 
OR 
 

II. Price determined as per provisions of the Regulation 166A(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations which is Rs. 10.75 (Rupees 
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Ten and Seventy Five Paisa Only) per Equity Share.  
 
Hence the floor price is Rs. 10.75 (Rupees Ten and Seventy Five Paisa Only) per Equity Share. In view of the above, the Board 
of the Company has fixed the Equity Share price of Rs. 10.80 (Rupees Ten and Eighty Paisa Only) which is above the floor price 
as determined in compliance with the requirements of the ICDR Regulations.  
 
 

6. Name and address of valuer who performed valuation; 
 
The valuation report dated August 29, 2023, issued by Mr. Prabhakar Kumar, an Independent Registered Valuer, Registration 
No.IBBI/RV/02/2021/14527, having its Registered Office situated at Building No. 1, 3rd Floor, Shiva Enclave, Pitampura, New 
Delhi-110034, India), in accordance with Regulation 166A of the ICDR Regulations (“Valuation Report”). The Valuation Report 

shall be available for inspection by the members and the same may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: 

www.mauria.com. 
 

7. The relevant date on the basis of which price has been arrived at: 
 
In terms of the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in case of preferential issue of equity shares, the date 
thirty days prior to the date on which the meeting of shareholders is held to consider the proposed preferential issue shall be the 
relevant date. The Annual General Meeting is proposed to be held on Thursday, September 28, 2023 and accordingly, August 29, 
2023 is the relevant date for preferential issue.  
 
 

8. The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made: 
 
The allotment is proposed to be made to the Proposed Allottees belonging to Promoter, Promoter Group and Non-promoter as 
mentioned at point no. 14 below. 
 

9. Intention of Promoters, directors or key managerial personnel to subscribe to the offer or contribution: 
 
Except Mr. Vishnu Kumar Sureka, Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, Mr. Prem Lata Sureka and Mr. Deepanshu Sureka, promoters/ 
directors who will be subscribing to Equity shares in the preferential issue, none of the other promoters and directors or key 
management personnel of the Company intends to apply /subscribe/contribute to any of the Equity Shares. 
 

10. The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed: 
 
Under Regulation 170 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, Preferential Allotment of the Equity Shares is required to be completed 
within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of passing of the special resolution of the shareholders of the Company or 
within the statutory time limits prescribed by the regulatory authorities subject to all the necessary approvals being in place. If 
any approval or permissions by any regulatory or statutory authority or the Central Government for allotment is pending, the 
period of 15 (fifteen) days shall commence from the date of such approval or permission being obtained. 
 

11. Change in control, if any, upon preferential issue: 
 
Consequent to the proposed conversion of Loan into Equity Shares and allotment of Equity Shares; there will be no change in 
control or change in management of the Company.  
 

12. Justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together with valuation report of 
the registered valuer:  
 
The said provision will not be applicable. 
 

13. The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been made during the year, in terms of 
number of securities as well as price. 
 
No preferential issue was made during the current financial year. 
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14. The Shareholding pattern of the Company before and after the allotment of securities under the preferential issue: 
 
 
Sr 
No Category Pre-Issue    Post-Issue 

  
  

Number of 
Shares 

 % of Share 
Holding  

Preferential 
Offer 

Number of 
Shares 

 % of 
Share 
Holding  

A 
Promoters and 
Promoters 
Group Holding 

          

1 Indian           

  Individual / 
HUF 

             
9,84,75,200  

                                       
73.93  

                    
2,87,03,700  

                  
12,71,78,900  

                                
74.85  

  Sub Total A(1) : 
             
9,84,75,200  

                                       
73.93  

                    
2,87,03,700  

                  
12,71,78,900  

                                
74.85  

2 Foreign 
Promoters 

 -   -   -   -   -  

  Sub Total A(2) :  -   -   -   -   -  

  Total A= A(1) + 
A (2) : 

             
9,84,75,200  

                                       
73.93  

                    
2,87,03,700  

                  
12,71,78,900  

                                
74.85  

          
                                 
-    

  

B Non Promoters 
Shareholding 

          

1 INSTITUTIONS           

  Mutual Funds / 
UTI 

 -   -   -   -   -  

  
Financial 
Institutions / 
Banks 

 -   -   -   -   -  

  Insurance 
Companies 

 -   -   -   -   -  

  
Foreign 
Institutional 
Investors 

 -   -   -   -   -  

  Sub Total B(1):  -   -   -   -   -  

              

2 NON - 
INSTITUTIONS 

          

  Bodies 
Corporate 

                 
7,63,575  

                                        
0.57  

                       
30,00,000  

                       
37,63,575  

                                  
2.22  

  Indian Public 
             
3,27,87,083  

                                       
24.61  

                       
47,68,515  

                    
3,75,55,598  

                                
22.10  

  Directors And 
Their Relatives 

                          
-    

                                           
-    

                                 
-    

                                 
-    

 -  

  Non Resident 
Indians 

                 
1,82,350  

                                        
0.14  

                                 
-    

                        
1,82,350  

                                  
0.11  

  
Others (IEPF, 
Clearing 
Member, HUF) 

                 
9,91,792  

                                        
0.74  

                        
2,31,481  

                       
12,23,273  

                                  
0.72  

  Sub Total B(2): 
             
3,47,24,800  

                                       
26.07  

                       
79,99,996  

                    
4,27,24,796  

                                
25.15  

  Total B = B(1) + 
B (2) : 

             
3,47,24,800  

                                       
26.07  

                       
79,99,996  

                    
4,27,24,796  

                                
25.15  
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  Total ( A + B ) : 
           
13,32,00,000  

                                     
100.00  

                    
3,67,03,696  

                  
16,99,03,696  

                              
100.00  

              

C 

Shares Held by 
Custodians. 
Against which 
Depository 
Receipts have 
been issued 

                           
-     

                -     
                           
-     

                  -     
                    
-     

  
GRAND 
TOTAL (A + B 
+ C): 

           
13,32,00,000  

                                         
100  

                    
3,67,03,696  

                  
16,99,03,696  

                              
100.00  

 
 
 

15. The current and proposed status of the allottee(s) post the preferential issues namely, promoter or non-promoter: 
 
 

    Pre-Issue shareholding   Post Issue Shareholding 

S.No. 

Name of 
the 
Proposed 
Allottee (s) 

No. of shares % Present Issue No. of shares % 

1 

Quality 
Synthetic 
Industries 
Limited 

                                                           
-    

0.00 1,71,29,629 1,71,29,629 
               

10.08  

2 
Prem Lata 
Sureka 

                                            
77,36,150  

5.81 23,14,814 1,00,50,964 
                 

5.92  

3 
Deepanshu 
Sureka  

                                         
1,38,66,000  

10.41 18,51,851 1,57,17,851 
                 

9.25  

4 
Vishnu 
Kumar 
Sureka  

                                            
33,30,000  

2.50 27,77,777 61,07,777 
                 

3.59  

5 

Navneet 
Kumar 
Sureka 
(HUF) 

                                         
2,07,18,000  

15.55 11,57,407 2,18,75,407 
               

12.88  

6 
Navneet 
Kumar 
Sureka     

                                         
2,21,53,400  

16.63 34,72,222 2,56,25,622 
               

15.08  

7 Amit Jindal 
                                                           
-    

0.00 2,31,481 2,31,481 
                 

0.14  

8 
Amit Jindal 
HUF 

                                                           
-    

0.00 2,31,481 2,31,481 
                 

0.14  

9 
Geetika 
Srivastva 

                                                           
-    

0.00 7,68,518 7,68,518 
                 

0.45  

10 Pitam Goel 
                                                           
-    

0.00 4,62,962 4,62,962 
                 

0.27  

11 
Tushar 
Aggarwal 

                                                           
-    

0.00 6,94,444 6,94,444 
                 

0.41  

12 Swati Goel 
                                                           
-    

0.00 5,74,074 5,74,074 
                 

0.34  
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13 
Divya 
Aggarwal 

                                                           
-    

0.00 5,74,074 5,74,074 
                 

0.34  

14 
Radhey 
Shyam 
Aggarwal 

                                                           
-    

0.00 14,62,962 14,62,962 
                 

0.86  

15 

S.B. 
Overseas 
Private 
Limited 

-                                                   0.00 30,00,000 30,00,000 
                 

1.77  

    
                                         
6,78,03,550  

                                            
51  

                           
3,67,03,696  

                              
10,43,07,246  

                    
61.51  

 
 
 

16. Identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners of the shares proposed to be allotted and/or who 
ultimately control the proposed allottees. 
 
 
 

S.No. Name of the Proposed Allottee (s) Beneficial Owner 
 

1.         Quality Synthetic Industries Limited  Navneet Kumar Sureka  
2.         Navneet Kumar Sureka (HUF)  Navneet Kumar Sureka 
3.         Vishnu Kumar Sureka Vishnu Kumar Sureka 
4.         Navneet Kumar Sureka  Navneet Kumar Sureka  
5.         Prem Lata Sureka Prem Lata Sureka 
6.         Deepanshu Sureka  Deepanshu Sureka  
7.         Amit Jindal Amit Jindal 
8. Amit Jindal HUF Amit Jindal 
9. Geetika Srivastava Geetika Srivastava 
10. Pitam Goel Pitam Goel 
11. Tushar Aggarwal Tushar Aggarwal 
12. Swati Goel Swati Goel 
13. Divya Aggarwal Divya Aggarwal 
14. Radhey Shyam Aggarwal Radhey Shyam Aggarwal 
15. S.B. Overseas Private Limited Vijay Kumar Gupta 
 
 

17. Lock-In Period: 
 
The Equity shares to be allotted shall be subject to lock-in for such period as specified under the provisions of relevant 
Regulation(s) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Also, entire pre-preferential holding of the proposed allottees, have been locked 
under Regulation 167(6) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. 
 

18. Requirements as to re-computation of price: 
 
The Company undertakes to re-compute the price of the Equity Shares in terms of the preferential allotment under this resolution 
as per the provision of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, where it is required to do so.  
 
The Company also undertakes that if the amount payable on account of re-computation of price is not paid within the time 
stipulated in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the specified Equity Shares shall continue to be locked-in till the time such 
amount is paid by the allottees. 
 

19. Disclosure specified in Schedule VI of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, if the issuer or any of its promoters or directors is a 
wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower 
 
Neither the Company nor its Promoters or Directors have been declared as willful defaulter or fraudulent borrower as defined 
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under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.  
 
None of its Promoters or Directors are a fugitive economic offender as defined under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. 
 

20. Listing: 
 
The Company will make an application to the Stock Exchanges at which the existing shares are already listed, for listing of the 
Equity Shares, and the Equity Shares so allotted shall rank pari-passu with the existing equity shares of the Company in all 
respects, including dividend. 
 

21. Practicing Company Secretary’s Certificate:  
 
Practicing Company Secretary of the Company, M/s. Harish Kumar & Associates have issued a certificate dated September 04, 
2023 confirming that the issue of the Equity Shares is being made in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations. The copy of the certificate shall be placed in the meeting and Company’s website link for the Certificate is 

www.mauria.com. 
 

22. Principal terms of assets charged as securities: Not applicable 
 
 

23. Other Disclosures/Undertaking: 
 
a) The Company is eligible to make the Preferential Issue under Chapter V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations;  
b) The proposed allottees have not sold or transferred any Equity Shares during the 90 (Ninety) trading days preceding the 

relevant date; and 
c) The Equity Shares held by the proposed allottees in the Company are in dematerialized form only. 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 42, Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended including rules notified 
thereunder (“Act”) read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended and other 

applicable provisions, if any (including any statutory modifications(s) or reenactment thereof, for the time being in force), 
Regulation 160(b) of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (“ SEBI (ICDR) 

Regulations”), Chapter V of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations the said Preferential issuance requires prior approval of the Shareholders 
of the Company by way of a special resolution. 
 
The Board of Directors believes that the proposed preferential issue is in the best interest of the Company and its members. The 
Board recommends the resolution as set out in the accompanying notice for the approval of members as a Special Resolution. 
 
Except Mr. Vishnu Kumar Sureka, Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, Mr. Prem Lata Sureka and Mr. Deepanshu Sureka, promoters/ 
directors, Promoters/Directors of the Company and their relatives, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company including their relatives are in, anyway, concerned or interested, in the above resolution. 
 

Item No.06 

 Special Resolution  

In the light of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your company seeks to obtain overall consent 
of the shareholder with monetary annual limits that the Board of Directors may enter into with its Related Parties (as defined 
under the Companies Act, 2013) from time to time for the financial year 2023-24 and beyond depending upon the business 
exigencies as it would be in compliance of and consistent with the requirement of obtaining prior approvals of the shareholders 
for each and every Related Party transactions. 

 
All prescribed disclosures as required to be given under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meeting of 
the Board and the Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in Resolution No. 04 under Special Business of the Notice in the tabular format 
for the kind perusal of the members. 

 
Members are hereby informed that pursuant to the second proviso of section 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013, no member of 
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the company shall vote on such Ordinary resolution to approve any contract or arrangement which may be entered into by the 
company, if such member is a related party. 

 
The Board of Directors of your company has approved this item in the Board Meeting held on 04th September 2023 and 
recommends the Resolution as set out in the Notice for the approval of members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 
Also, it is to note that all entities falling under the related parties shall not vote to approve the transaction as set out at Item no. 
04, irrespective whether the entity is party to the said transaction or not. 

 
Except Promoter Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, no other Director or any other 
person is concerned or interested in the Resolution. 
 

Item No.07  

Ordinary Resolution 

 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of the Cost 
Auditors for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2023 as per the 
following details: 

 
Sl.No. Name of the Cost Auditor Industry Amount of Fee 

1. M/s Jai Prakash &Co. Steel(LPG Cylinder)  Rs. 55000 

 
2. M/s Jai Prakash &Co. Machinery & Mechanical 

Appliances (Regulators & Valves) 
 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

 
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 05 under special business 
of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 2023. 

 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No.  05 under Special Business of the Notice. 

 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 05 under Special Business for approval by the shareholders. 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 
Sd/- 

(DIVYA AGARWAL)   
COMPANY SECRETARY 
ROOM NO. 107, 1STFLOOR, 
ANAND JYOTI BUILDING, 
41, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA-700001-(WEST BENGAL) 
CIN: L51909WB1980PLC033010 

Date: September 04, 2023 
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ANNEXURE 
 

PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD - 2 ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF 
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI) INFORMATION ABOUT THE DIRECTOR PROPOSED TO BE RE- 
APPOINTED/ APPOINTED UNDER IS FURNISHED AS BELOW: 

 
 

Name of Directors MANOHAR MENGHRAJ PUNJABI 

DIN 10213816 
Date of Birth 04-10-1961 
Date of First Appointment/ re- 
appointment on Board 

26-06-2023 

Designation Non-Executive Independent Director 
Qualification Primary Education 

Nationality India 

Expertise in specific functional 
area 

Finance, Accounts & general managements 

Relation with other Directors Not related to any of the Directors 

List of public companies in which directorship 
held(including foreign Companies) 

1. Mauria Udyog Ltd. 

Listed entities in which membership of 
Committee of Board held. 

NIL 

Listed entities from which resigned during past 
three years 

NA 

Shareholding in the Company NA 
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 

TO THE MEMBERS 

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 43° Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the company for the vear ended 31° March, 2023. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Financial Results for the year ended 31% March, 2023 are as under: Rs. in Lacs 

PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22 

Standalone Consolidated Standalone 

Revenue From Operations 23165.00 23169.00 24113.36 

Other Income 2499.92 2495.52 496 84 

Total Income 25665.92 25668.92 24610.20 

Cost of materials consumed 13409.59 13409.59 1323351 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 50.27 50.27 408.94 
Changes in mventories of fimshed goods, Stock-n-Trade -1045.34 (1045.34) 847.62 

and Work-in-progress 
Emplovee benefits expense 1204.52 1204.52 915.84 
Finance Cost 2554 80 2554 80 557.01 

Depreciation and amortization expense 301.33 301.33 342.03 

Other expenses 54584 82 9484.88 9143 06 

Total Expenses 15050.090 25060.05 25448.01 

Profit(loss) before exceptional items and tax (291.07) (291.13) (337.81) 
Exceptional items - - 

Profit/(loss) before tax (291.07) (281.07) (337.81) 

Tax Expenses 

(1) Current tax - - - 

(2) Deferred fax 628 12 628.08 (613.41) 
Profit/(loss) for the vear after tax (219.19) (919.21) (224.40) 

Other Comprehensive Income (19.28) (19.28) 2.42 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (935.47) (038.49) (221.98) 

Earnings Per Share (Basic / Diluted) () (0.069) (0.69) (0.17) 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

The Gross revemies has touched Rs 25668.92 Lacs compared toRs. 24610.20 Lacs previous vear which 1s 77.88% higher than last year However company is still 
under the red with after -tax standalone loss at Rs. (919.19) Lakhs for 2022-23 closed on March 31, 2023 standalone Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
stands at Rs.(938.47) Lakhs compared to Rs. (221.98) Lakhs last vear.
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The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules thereunder, with effect from 
April 1, 2017 and accordingly financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015 as amended by the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2016. 

FUTUREOUTLOOK (STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS) 

The good news being that the world finally came out of the shadows of the COVID-19 pandemic, however, with the Ukraine war still continuing, poses serious 
challenge that the world faces today. The war has stoked an increase m flation leading to increase in miferest rates across the world as inflation has reached 40 year 
high in developed countries. The interest rate hikes are threating a looming recession in the world However silver lining 1s that Indian economy 15 resihient & 
performing vibrantly. With the sound economic policies undertaken by the Central Government, India 1s on the path to become third largest economy in the world. 

The Board has been making continuing efforts to solve the challenges being faced by the company. 

As the members are aware the company was classified as a NPA by the working capital bankers due to default in repayment & servicing of 1ts debt. 

The company haz reached a settlement plan wnth iis largest lender of working capital and has been able to finalize a 4:5yrz payment plan ending in December 2026. Further, duning 

the year company was successful in reaching settlement plans with almost all remaining lenders. 

The manufacturing business of the company 1s slowly and steadily increasing, however there are severe challenges being faced due to shortages in availability of raw 
material and logistical reason. 

Your directors are optimistic of better performance in turnover and profits during 2023-24 compared to previous vear. Dunng the first quarter of financial year 2023- 
24 ended June 30, 2023 company has reported a profits 614.00 lakhs. 

DIVIDEND 

In view of losses vour directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023. 

Durning the vear 2022-23 the Board of directors did not recommend payment of mterim-dividend. 

RESERVES: 

In view of losses incurred during the vear no amount has been transferred to reserves. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The paid-up equity share capital as on 31" March 2023 stands at 1332.00 Lacs. There was no public issue, rights issue, bonus 1ssue or preferential issue, etc. during 

the year. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares, nor has it granted any stock options.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Additions of Property, Plant & Equipment (gross) during the year under review amounted to Rs 353 59 Lakhs and net carrying value of Property Plant & Equipment 

stood at Bs. 3421.52 Lakhs as at 31% March, 2023. 

FIXED DEPOSITS 

The company has not accepted any deposits from public during the financial vear under review and as such there were no fixed deposits outstanding as on 317 March, 
2023. 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Durning the vear under review M's Strawberry Star India Pvt. Lid. (SSIPL) has become a Subsidiary of the company. In order to acquire the assets of SSIPL, Company 
acquired 19.999 equity shares (out of 20000 equity shares) of SSIPL. M's Strawberry Star India Pvt. Lid. 15 in real estate & in renting business. SSIPL does not fall 
amongst the related parties of Mauria Udyog Lid. 

The Company has no joint venture or associate. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

As on March 31, 2023 thers were no outstanding loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act. The details of the Loans, Guarantees 
and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A detailed report on contracts and arrangements made during the year 2022-23, transactions being in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length have been 

reported and annexed hereto in this report m the prescribed Form AOC-2 read with note no. 13 of the Financial Statements. 

The terms & conditions of the above mentioned transactions are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The closing balances of such related parties, wherever 
outstanding, are not overdue. 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

Fourteen meetings of the Board of directors were held during the year 2022-23. For details of the meetings of the Board, please refer to the corporate governance 
report, which forms part of this report. 

BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013( “the Act”) and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) under Regulation 
17{10) of Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements, Regulations, 2015 The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking mputs from all 
the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes. information and functioning, etc. The



A MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 43" ANNUAL REPORT 

performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of 

committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the 
mdividual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the 15sues 

to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. 

FAVMITIARTIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as 
issues being faced by the mdustry. The details of various familianization programme provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the Companys website 
WWW. maura com. 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies { Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 has been made in the prescribed Format and forms 
part of the Directors’ Report as Annexure 

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

In terms of requirements under Schedule TV of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held 

on 14/02/2022. 

The Independent Directors at the meeting reviewed the following- 

*. Performance of non independent Directors and board as a whole. 

*. Performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive Directors and non-executive Directors. 

. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to 

effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES 

With effect from Tuesday July 14, 2015, the scrip of vour company got listed on BSE Limited (BSE) under the Direct Listing Route of BSE with Scrip Code 539219 
{beaning ISIN: INE150D01027). 

Accordingly, as on date, the shares of vour Company are listed on BSE as well as Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE). 

Market price data - High, Low during the each month in last financial year 2022-23 has been given under Corporate Governance Report. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

A detailed Report on Corporate Governance 1s given m “Annexure-A” to this report. In terms of Pari E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2013), the Compliance Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary certifying compliance with
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conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in Regulation 16 to 27 of Listing Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange(s) where the shares of the company 

are listed, 15 also enclosed. 

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

1 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no maternal departures; 

i. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial vear and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

itl. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other trregulanties; 

wv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

v, they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; 

Vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively. 

# No fraud against the company has been reported by the Auditors as well as by Audit Committee or noticed by the Board of Directors 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

Based on the framework of intemal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, work performed by the intemal, statutory 
and secretarial auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board committees, including the audit committes, the 

board 1s of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial vear 2022-23. 

DIRECTORS&KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL/ INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Act, all Independent directors have submitted declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as 
provided in Section 145(6) of the Act and Regulation 16{1)(b) of the SEBI Regulations. 2015. 

There has been following changes in the composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the year 2022-23: 

» Shr Rannveer Singh Rishi (DIN-08253892) who has resigned wef October 20, 2022, 

¥ Shn Rannvijay Singh Rishi (DIN: 08974731) who has resigned wef October 20, 2022 

As on March 31, 2023, the composition of Board of Directors was as follows: 

S.No. Name Designation 

1 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka Managing Director (Executive-Promoter) 

2 Smt. Deepa Sureka Whole-time Woman Director (Executive, Promoter) 
3 Smt. Veena Sureka Director (Non-Executive, Non-Independent) 
4. Smt. Sujata Kumar Director (Non-Executive Independent) 

5. Shri Birendra Kumar Director {Non-Executive Independent)
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After March 31, 2023 ull the date of signing of Annual Report, Mr. Manohar Menghraj Pumabi (DIN: 10213816) has joined the Board wef 26/06/2023 as Non- 

Executive Independent director. 

Also. during the financial year 2022-23 the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecumary relationship or transactions with the Company. 

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Veena Aggarwal (DIN: 00060415) retires by rotation and being eligible has offered herself for re-appomtment in 
the 43" Annual General Meeting. 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

The Companys policy on directors” appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in the corporate 

governance report, which forms part of the directors” report. 

INSIDER TRADING POLICY 

The Companys policy on sider trading has been uploaded on the web-site of the company www maura com and all necessary steps have been taken to comply with 

the said policy. 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

Your directors have established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and formulated a Policy in order to provide a framework for responsible and secure whistle 

blowing vigil mechanism The Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine concems about 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the codes of conduct or ethic policy. This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Comnutiee in exceptional cases. 

We affirm that no personnel has been denied access to the audit commattee. 

During the vear 2022-2023, no such report were made to the Chairman of Audit Commuites 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Company has developed and implemented the Risk Management Policy and the Audit Committee of the Company reviews the same periodically. The Company 

recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business and hence 1s committed to managing the nisk ina proactive and effective manner. The 

Company's Management systems, organizational structures, processes, standards, code of conduct and behaviors together form the Risk Management System of the 
Company and are managed accordingly. 

The common risks faced by the Company include Raw Material Procurement Risk, Environment & Safety Risk. Market Risk, Technology risk, Business Operational 

Risk, Reputation Risk, Regulatory & Compliance Risk, Human Resource Risk Working Capital and Business continmity Risk. Your Company has well defined 
processes and systems to identify, assess & mitigate the key risks. A platform for exception reporting of violations is in place which is reviewed regularly and 

remedial measures are being undertaken immediately.
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Your directors, the Management and all of the employees subscribe to the philosophy of compassionate care. We believe and act on the ethos of generosity and 

compassionate care, characterized by willingness to build a society that works for evervone. This is the cornerstone of our CSR policy. The web-link of Companys 

CSR Policy alongwith Projects approved for making expenditure is enumerated at https: /mauria com/policies’. There has been no change in policy as well as the 
project approved for the FY 2022-23. 

Company continues to undertake the CSR work during the vear under review on a voluntary basis over and above what has been required under CSR guidelines. The 

CSR activities are overseen by the Chairman and the Managing Director on a regular basis. The Annual report on the CSR Activities forming part of this Report 13 

annexed hereto. 

Your directors have constituted the Corporate Social Responsibihity (CSE) Committee comprising of Shr Navneet Kumar Sureka as Chairman. and Smt. Sujata 

Kumar and Smt. Veena Aggarwal as members. 

The said committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken 

by the Company, monitoring and implementing of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on the CSR activities. 

During the year 2022-2023, the CSR Committee met once and provided status updates to the Board of directors of the company. 

Your company’s investment mn CSR activities for the year 2022-23 was Rs. 44.48 Lakhs which 1s above the requirement of minumum 2 % of the average profits of the 
company for the last three vears. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act. 2013(here-in-after known the “Act™) and 

Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. Dunng the year Mr. Rannveer Singh Rishi, chairman of the Audit Committee resigned and Smit. Swata Kumar a 
member took over as the new Chairperson of the committee. Mr. Birendra Kumar, a Non-executive independent director was appointed as a member of the 
Commuttee wef 28/10/2022. 

As on March 31, 2023 Audit committee comprises of following directors: 

SL No | Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Smt. Swata Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 
2 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka Executive Member 

3 Sh Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 
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The details of terms of reference of the audit committee, number and dates of meetings held, attendance of Directors during the year 2022-23 are given tn the 

Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

The primary objective of the Comittee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management's financial reporting process to ensure accurate and 

timely disclosures, 
® All the recommendations of Audit Committee has been accepted by the Board of Directors during the reportable vear. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

During the vear two members of this committee namely Mr. Rannveer Singh Rishi as Chairman & Mr. Rannvijay Singh Rishi. resigned Consequent thereto two non- 
executive directors Mrs. Veena Aggarwal & Mr. Birendra Kumar were nominated on this committee and Mrs. Swyata Kumar member of the committee took over as 
the new chairperson wef 28/10/2022 

As on March 31, 2023 this committee consisted of following directors: 

SL. No | Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Smt. Sujata Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 
2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal Non-Executive-Independent Member 

3 5h Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

The said comnuttes has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and recommending to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, 
kev managerial personnel and other employees; formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board diversity 
and identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in semor management and to recommend to the board their appointment and 

removal. 

The details of number and dates of meetings held. attendance of NRC during the vear are given in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual 

Beport. 

During the year 2022-2023, Nomination & Remuneration committee met once and provided status updates to the Board of directors of the company. 

® The web-link of policy relating to criterion for making payment to Non-executive directors 1s https://'mauvria com’ wp-content'uploads/2018/01/3-MUL-Criterion- 
for-making-payment-to-Non-EXD-1 pdf 

STAKEHOLDERS" RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

During the vear two members of this committee namely Mr. Rannveer Singh Rishi as Chairman & Mr. Rannvijay Singh Rishi, resigned. Consequent thereto two 

non-executive directors Mrs. Veena Aggarwal & Mr. Birendra Kumar were nominated on this committee and Mrs. Sujata Kumar member of the commutiee took over 
as the new chairperson wef 28/10/2022. 

As on March 31, 2023 this committee consisied of following directors:
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SL No | Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Smt. Sujata Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 
2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal Non-Executive-Independent Member 

3 Sh Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Comnuttee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the company. 

During the vear 2022-2023, Stakeholders Committee met Four-times and provided status updates to the Board of directors of the company which 1s elaborated under 

corporate governance report forming part of this report. 

WEBLINK OF THE COMPANY: 

The web address of the company is https://mauria com/Tinancials’ where the annual return referred to in sub-section (3) of section 92 has been placed. 

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 

REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Commuttee has been set up to redress 

complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 

During the year 2022-2023, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual harassment and hence no complaint 1s pending as on 31.03.2023 for 
redressal. 

PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE. 2016 

® The Company has initiated proceedings under Section 2 of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against its trade recervables M/s. Linkwise Marketing Private 

Limited and M's. Nexus Commosales Private Limited, before the NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide Company Petition No. C.P.(IB)/86(KB) and 190813401725 of 2021 

and the matter is currently pending before the Hon'ble NCLT. Kolkata Bench. Hon'ble NCLT has accepted the matter. 

® One of the financial creditor of the Group has filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 before Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide Company Petition 

No. CP. (IB) — 1388/2022 dated February 23, 2022 for initiation of corporate insolvency resolution process. The Company after negotiations with the creditor reached a settlement, 

however, the company is vet to discharge the remaining liability.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND 

DATE OF THE REPORT 

Consequent to the report of the forensic Auditor undertaken as per the direction of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between Amrapali 
group of companies and Sureka group of companies (Compames promoted by the Promoters), the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide order dated 02.12.2019 has directed 

Maura Udyog Ltd & Company promoted by the Promoters other Sureka group of companies and their Directors viz Mr. Navneet Sureka and Mr. Akhil Sureka to 

deposit Rs. 167 Crores. In response to the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, it has filed an application on 09.12.2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to accept 
the Title -deeds of immovable properties belonging to Sureka family members and associate companies (based on latest valuation report) worth amounting to 
Rs 208 31 Crores and after reducing the incumbency amount of Rs. 39 34 Crores balance value of properties work out to Rs. 168 97 crores. Based on order of the 
Hon'ble Supreme Court, directors of the company has estimated a liability of Rs. 30.00 Crores as on 31.02.2020 and since ongmal title-deeds of Immovable 
properties having gross value of Rs. 208.31 crores has already been deposited. as guarantee to supreme court, the liability arising from the order dated 02 12.2019 

can be considered as settled and accordingly it has been recorded mn books. 

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER 

MADE 

1. By the Auditor in his report: 

The Auditors’ Report being self-explanatory requires no further comments from the Directors. 

=
 By the Company Secretary in practice in his Secretarial Audit Report: 

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer by the Secretanal Auditors in the Report 1ssued by them for the financial year 2022- 
23 which call for any explanation from the Board of Directors. 

DISCLOSURE OF RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR AND JUSTIFICATION/RATIONALE FOR SUCH RE-APPOINTMENT 

During the vear no independent director has been reappointed for second term. 

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY. EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE 

PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR 

During the year no independent director was reappointed for second term. 

However Mr. Manohar Menghra; Punjabi has been appointed as an Non-executive Independent Director wef 26th June 2023 on the recommendations of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee keeping in view his experience in Finance & marketing & international business. The Board recommends for his 
appointment to the shareholders. 

NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

DURING THE YEAR
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During the vear under review M's Strawberry Star India Pvt Ltd (S5IPL) has become a Subsidiary of the company. 

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

Post March 31, 2023 till signing of this report company has recetved Interim Order’ Show-cause notice VIZ. WIM/SMLBD/IVS/27532/2023-24 
dated 19.06 2023 issued by Ld WTM SEBI recerved on 03rd July, 2023, under sections 11(1). 11(4). 11(4)(A). 11(B)1. 11(B)2 and11(5) of SEBI Act 1992 read 

along with SEBI Rules 2005 consequent to the investigation undertaken with regard to trading activities of five scrips including that of the company durmg 2017 nll 

September 2022. 

Company has preferred an appeal before the Hon'ble SAT denying and disputing the allegations leveled against the company. Company has also filed the reply to the 
Ld WTM SEBI denying allegations and company 1s hopeful of favorable orders in this regard. 

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

During the year under review M's Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. (SSIPL) has become a Subsidiary of the company, Financials of M/s SSIPL has been consolidated 
and consolidated financials have been reported as above under the heading Financial Results 

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS EMPs/EMPLOYEES:- 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 (2) and 5(3) of the Companies { Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 1s attached as Annexure which forms part of this report. 

RU LE 5(1) OF THE COMP ANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF M AN AGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial vear 2022-23, ratio of the 
remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 and the comparison of 
remuneration with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof. 

S. Name of Director) EMP Ratio of |% Increase in the | % increase in the median | Average percentile increase already 
No. Remuneration of | Remuneration remuneration of | made in the salaries of employees 

Director to median employees other than the managerial personnel 

remuneration of im the last financial year and is 
Employee comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out if there are any 
exceptional circumstances for | 
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increase in the managerial 
remuneration 

There has been no increase in the remuneration of employees including Managing director, Chief Financial Officer and company secretary during the 

financial year 2022-23 in view of financial conditions of the company. 

Further it 15 hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid 1s as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

® Thee details including names of the Top 10 Employees in terms of salary drawn during the reporting period is attached as Annexure hereto. 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

There 1s no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review. 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

There has been no change in the accounting policies during the period under review. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Company has identified all key ternal financial controls, which impacts the financial statements, as part of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). The SOPs 

are designed for all critical processes across all plants, warehouses and offices wherein financial transactions are undertaken. The SOPs cover the standard processes, 
tisks, kev controls and each process 1s identified to a process owner. The financial controls are tested for operating effectiveness through management ongoing 
monitoring and review process and independently by the Internal Audit. In our view the Internal Financial Controls, effecting the financial statements are adequate 
and are operating effectively. 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

-No Frauds Were Reported by Auditors Or Reported To Central Government In The Financial Year Ended On March 31, 2023. 
-None of The Directors of Your Company Ts Disqualified as Per the Provisions of Section 164(2) Of the Act The Directors of The Company Have Made Necessary 
Dhsclosures, As Required Under Various Provisions of The Act. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return for the financial vear 2022-23 will be available on the website of the Company at htips://mauria com/financials/ 

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting. Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 effective from 

07.09.2016. As per the Rules, Unclaimed unpaid dividends / shares thereon are to be transferred to IEPF at the end of 7 years. The shares in respect of which dividend 
has not been paid or claimed for 7 consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to TEPF following the prescribed procedure. The company has 1ssusd public 

notice to enable to claim the shares. Such shares remaining unclaimed have to be transferred to IEPF Authority within the date prescribed. The holders of such shares 

or their legal heirs can reclaim the shares from the IEPF Authority through the Company following the due procedure. 

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. The copy of Code of Conduct as applicable 

to the Directors (including Senior Management of the Company) is uploaded on the website of the Company www mauria com. 

The Managing Director of the Company has issued a Declaration that the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 

compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Semior Management. As there 1s no Chief Executive Officer in the Company, this Declaration has 

been issued by the Managing Director of the Company which is appended to this Report, 

CEOQO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

In terms of the requirements of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Managing Director and the CFO have submitted necessary certificate to the Board of Directors stating the particulars specified under the said Clause. The certificate 
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board of Directors. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

Outlook of Indian Economy: 

With a GDP of 53.2 trillion, India 1s the world's fifth-largest economy. The country has one of the highest GDP growth rates in the world. 

The Indian economy grew by 7.2 % during 2022-23. The economy is expected to perform better than expected in the second half of the year. For the next 

fiscal years India is likely to grow with a robust growth-rate of around é.5 %. Overall India remains fastest growing economy in the world leaving China 
behind. 

India’s underlying economic fundamentals are strong and despite the short-term turbulence, its impact on the long-term outlook will be marginal. 

Industry Overview: 

As vou are aware that your Company 1s engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading m varied products: 

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG): 

With India’s economic growth closely hnked to energy demand, the need for oil and gas is projected to grow further, rendenng the sector a fertile ground for 

investment.
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Textile: 

With consumerism and disposable income on the rise, the retail sector has experienced a rapid growth in the past decade. Changing lifestyles and increasing demand 

for quality products are set to fuel the need for apparel. The sector contributes 14% to mdustrial production, 4% to India’s GDP and constitutes 13% of the country’s 

export earnings. 

The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, buoved hy both strong domestic consumption as well as export demand. 

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SEGMENT-WISE AND PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED (MUL) 1s an ISO 9001:2008 company certified by BSI, accredited by UKAS. MUL 15 also certified for OHSAS: 13001:2007& ISO 
14001:2004 by BSI for its Health Safety and Environmental Management Systems. We are a Govt. of India recognized TRADING HOUSE. for consistent export of 

our products to various parts of the world. Your company 1s largest manufacturer and exporter 1n India exporting its products to more than 75 countries across the 

world MUL exports its products to practically every continent of the world. Products of the company meet all key international standard certification including 
certification for manufacture of cylinders according to DOT for BA'BW standard for USA in India. 

In the recent past company has entered into American market. 

The manufacturing Works 1s situated at Faridabad, on the outskirts of New Delhi in the NCR region. 

You directors are optunistic of future growth of the company. 

EXPOSURE TO EXPORTS OF LPG CYLINDERS 

WELDED STEEL LPG CYLINDERS 

Over the past 30 vears MUL has produced the cylinders as per different international standards such as EN 1442, ISO 4706, SANS 4706, DOT 4BA, KS ISO 4706. 

ISO 22991 1S 3196. OS 120. NIS 69, AS 2469, AS 2470, SNI 1452, S15 1178 and EN 13322-1. Customers such as BP, SHELL, TOTAL, BOC/LINDE, VITOGAZ 

and ADDAX ete. to name but a few have enjoyed our international quality at an affordable price. We have installed rigorous standards with modern equipment and 

a keen and well-tramed workforce. We produce the cylinders from 4.0 litre(1 7kgs. gas capacity) to 120.0 litre (50.0 kgs.) for LPG and other gases such as ammonia 
and refrigerants. 

The company has made export sales (FOB) during the financial vear ended under report amounting to Rs. 16857.23 Lakhs 

We are committed to satisfy our customers by providing Quality Product which gives highest value for money. 

We believe that emplovees are our most important asset through which we can reach the top in each category of our products and services. Therefore, we will 
emphasize on their continuous improvement through upgradation of relevant knowledge and traimng.



MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 43" ANNUAL REPORT 

We commit ourselves to continuous growth, so as to fulfil the aspirations of our customers, employees and shareholders. 

Committed To Quality 

We don’t just manufacture products, we create satisfaction. Eurospa has deploved extensive resources to ensure the optimum quality of tts products. The resterative 
tests, the microscopic adherence to quality and inspection, all ensures that all Eurospaproducts are of world-class quality. We treat each and every product as a 

challenge, and every achievement a reason to set new goals. 

MUL apart from manufacturing of LPG Cylinders, Valves, Regulators, Disposable Cylinders, Methyl Bromide Cylinders &Refillable Cylinders, being its main 
activity, has also undertaken the following -- 

IL TERRY TOWEL DIVISION 

The company undertakes manufacturing of terry towels in addition to cylinders. MUL has a top-of-the-line manufacturing facility to manufacture world-class terry 
towels as per the prevailing international standards. 

Spread over 30,000 sq.ft, this unit boasts of an in-house and completely integrated infrastructure alongwith a talented pool of professionals from the textile industry. 

The unit comprises of a modern facility and a weaving plant equipped with all the relevant machines. The ultra-modern Terry Towel Manufacturing Unit has the 

state-of-the-art technology sourced from Switzerland, Germany and Italy. 

Your directors are pleased to inform that the total turnover of the Terry Towel Division during the year under report has been at Rs 37 43 Crore in comparison to 33.53 
Crore ‘during the previous year. 

Zero Defect Production InTerry Towel 

Automatic Fabric Inspection machine has been installed to ensure that only zerodefect fabric goes for production. To lend smooth velvet finish to the products, 
specialized shearing machines have been imported. The end product is also inspected by the finishing team for even nunor defects, if any. The objective is to ship 
only those products which reflect MUL ’s unflinching commitment to quality. 

II. LPG CYLINDER ACCESSORIES 

The company also manufactures various other LPG Cylinder Accessories such as Cylinder Guards, Neck Rings, Bummer Set. Cooker Ring & Adopter. 

RECOGNITION & AWARDS 

The company is the recipient of FIEQ s Niryat Shree Bronze Trophy Award for its excellence in exports.
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EEPC INDIA, Eastern Region awarded the company on 25 02 2011 Export Excellence for Star Performer as large enterprise in the product group of other fabricated 

metal products, exel machinery & equipment for its outstanding contribution to engineering exports during the vear 2008-09 and for the vear 2009-10 as well which 
was recerved on 20.12.2011 by Shri NK. Sureka, then director of the company. 

The company was also represented in the Annual Premier Vendors” Workshop conducted by Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited held at Mumbai on 04.11.2011 
wherein a Trophy for the best performance was awarded to the company. 

The Indian Council of Small & Medium Exporters (ICSME) has awarded Niryat Shiromani Puraskar to Shri N. K. Sureka, a director of the company and Gold Medal 
to the company for export performance on 23.03.2007, 

The company participated in the “Haryana State Safety and Welfare Awards Scheme” in the vear 2006 and the Directorate of Industrial Safety & Health, Labour 
Department, Haryana placed on record its appreciation of the management for taking proactive steps by implementing safety, health and welfare schemes for the 

workers. 

The Engineering Export Promotion Council of India (EEPC INDIA) awarded Silver Trophy to vour Company as National Award for Export Excellence 2011-12 on 
15" March 2013 in the presentation ceremony held in Munibai. 

Industries & Commerce Department, Government of Haryana conferred State Export Award 2013-14 to the Company on 08.06 2015. 

AUTOMATION 

The company 1s continuously automizing and upgrading the manufacturing facility to meet the latest technological advancement. 

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D) 

MUL has its in-house R&D facility and a fully equipped design studio that creates innovative and vibrant designs for towels 1n line with prevailing international 
trends and forecasts. The studio 1s equipped with CAD system and 1s managed by well-known and talented designers It 1s also fully capable of designing towels as per 
the buyer's designs, material and colour specifications. 

The management of the company also keeps a tab on the international trends by attending various mternational fairs & conferences. 

The company’s continued focus on R&D has resulted in several approvals of its products in developed markets and significant progress in 11s initiative. 

MUL has a complete and tegrated towel manufacturing facility which makes its products internationally compatible tn terms of quality and price. Tt also helps to 

reduce production lead time to a considerable extent. 

Tt 1s now all set to carve a niche for itself in the competitive international market by exporting world class products. 

FORGING NEW RELATIONSHIPS
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Having consolidated its infrastructure and strengths, the company 15 planning to expand and grow its overseas market in times to come. It plans to forge mutually 

rewarding business associations with its potential clients. For this purpose, it has chalked out an ambitious plan. The management of the company is committed to 
provide its clients reliable and quahty products at competitive prices and thus nurture enduring relationships with them 

The change in the mternationallocal Govt. Policies do have its significant impact on the business of the company in the international as well as local markets, thus, 
effecting the volume of sales including the exports of the company. 

SWOT ANALYSIS OF LPG INDUSTRY 

Strength: 

Over 30 years” experience in manufacturing LPG Cylinder, Valves and Pressure Regulators. 
Exporting in over 60 countries all over the globe. 
Easily availability of raw material. low cost labour and transportation 

+ Increasing demand in overseas LPG market 
+ Strong experienced management 
* Encouraging export policies 
+ Customer loyalty 

Weakness: 

+ Raw material Cost Intensive 

« Work inefficiency 

+ Working capital 

+» Economic factors 

+ Poltical uncertainties 

Opportunities: 

+ Innovation 

+ New Market 

+ Huge Demand 
* Growing Industry 
+ (Geographic best location 

Threats: 

+ International'regional competition 

+  TUncernainty of input cost 

+ Continuous govt. interference (Interest rate'Regulatory compliance ) 

+ Slowdown in national/global economy/demand 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
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The Company has a proper and adequate mternal control system to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or 

disposition and those transactions reauthorized, recorded and reported correctly. The internal comtrol is exercised through documented policies, guidelines and 
procedures. Tt 15 supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits conducted by in house trained personnel The audit observations and corrective action taken 

thereon are periodically reviewed by the audit committee toensure effectiveness of the internal control system. The internal control is designed to ensure that the 

financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other data, and for mamtaiming accountability of persons. 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

The brief on Financial Performance of the Company 1s already provided in the Boards™ Report of the Company. 

RISK & CONCERNS 

At MUL, all key functions and divisions are independently responsible to monitor risk associated within their respective areas of operations such as production, 
finance, msurance, shipping. legal and other issues like health, safety and environment. 

Cylinders and terrv towel products are globally traded commodities and their prices are subjected to mternational market forces of demand-supply and other factors 
that influence price volatility. With these two businesses presently accounting for the major proportion of MUL s revenues, changes in global price levels will have 

an impact on the company’s performance. 

Your company has identified the following risks with possible impact on the company and the mitigation plans of the company: 

Kev Risk Impact on the Company Mitigation Plans 

Commodity Price/availability Risk Risk of price fluctuation on the basic raw- 

material like HR Cols. CR Coils. MS 

Bunk, Brass, Aluminum alloy, zinc- 

ingots. chemicals, Fabrics, grey var, Dve 
power etc. 

Adequate level of raw matenal mventory has to be 

maintained at all times to ensure quick turnaround 
time for orders received. Any volatility in the prices or 
disruption in availability of raw material can impact 
the profitability of the Company. However, MUL has 
strong relationships with the raw matenal suppliers 

and optimum level of raw material. 

Uncertain global economic environment- slow growth mn 

global economy 

Impact on demand and realization of 

Exports. 

Company's business 15 quite diversified thereby 

diversifying the risk as well Company keeps on 

reviewing new business opportunities. 
Interest Rate-risk. Any increase in interest rate can affect the 

finance cost. 

Dependence on debt is minimum and we have 
sufficient funds with Banks to settle the entire debt in 

case need arises. 

Compliance risk. 

Competition Risk 

Any default can attract penal provisions. 

Your company is always exposed to 
competition Risk from Asian Countries 

By regularly monitoring and reviewing of changes in 
the regulatory framework and timely compliance 

thereof. 

By continuous efforts to enhance the brand wmage of 
the Company by focusing on R&D, quality, 
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like Sri Lanka. China, Cost, timely delivery and customer service. By 

Taiwan, and other African Countries. The | introducing new product range commensurate with 

increase in competition can create | demands your company 
pressure on plan to mitigate the risks so wvolved. 

maroins, market share etc. 

As per global trend, all labour mtensive manufactunng activities are being discontinued in the developed countries and are now shifting to developing countries 
wherein India 1s most preferred destination specially of products like Cylinders & Towels. The company is in an advantageous postition as far as products 

manufactured are concerned. 

OUTLOOK 

The company 1s taking all efforts to improve the quality and productivity to get more orders at competitive rates. The company’s business 15 committed to achieve 
world benchmark quality besides expanding on new product offering from new clients. Further the business will continue to focus on improving its cost competitive 

position. These measures will ensure the company mamtaming its leadership position in the Indian/world market. Due to theown Manufacturing ‘processing plant the 

company 1s able to quote better rates and mamtam safety of products high quality & productivity in the finished goods manufactured. Barring unforeseen 
circumstances the company is confident of achieving better results in the current year. The key risks for the global economy include US-China trade war, exit of 
Britain from European Union and the situation in the Middle East and Africa. The developing nations of Asia are expected to experience a higher rate of growth next 

few years. 

The current economic state, fears of high inflation, uncertain international supply chains due to war between Russia & Ukraine and challenging retail environment, 
pose new threats to businesses across all sectors. Your Company 1s focused on “Survive, Revive, Revitalise and Thrive” strategy and 15 constantly monitoring the 
factory level performance, driving sales through online channels and cost optimisation across all functions. Your Company 1s strategically positioned to harness the 

present challenges, given the strength of its Brand, innovation capabilities. 

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Company's HR philosophy is to establish and build a high performing organization, where each individual 13 motivated toperform to the fullest capacity, to contribute 

to developing and achieving individual excellence and departmental objectives and continuously improve performance to realize the full potential of our personnel. 

AUDITORS 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

The Company has appointment M/s NKSC & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076), Delhi as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the 40% Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, on resignation of previous statutory auditors M's LK. Bohemia & Co, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata having Firm Registration 
Number 317136N. 

COST AUDITORS
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The Company has appointed M's Jaiprakash & Co, Cost Accountants for conducting the audit of cost records of the Company relating to LPG Cylinders, Regulators 

& Valves for the financial vear 2021-22. Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit &Auditors) Rule, 2014 ratification of the 
remuneration of Cost Auditors is being sought from the Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM Further, the Company has maintained all the cost accounts 

and records as required under the relevant laws. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

The Board of Directors of the Company, in compliance with section 204 of the Act have appointed Ms. Jyoti Arva, Practicing Company Secretary (M. No.-A48050, 
COP-17631) of Ms. Ivoti Arva & Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors to conduct secretanial audit of the Company for the FY 2023-24. The 
Secretarial Audit Report as per Section 204 of the Act for FY 2022-23 1s placed as annexure to this report 

No adverse comments have been made in the said report by the Practicing Company Secretary. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO 

Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to conservation of energy, 

technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings/outgo : 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

Measures taken, additional investments and impact on reduction of energy consumption 
Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy. 

-Company has replaced their entire Thynistor base SAW (submerged arc welding) and MIG (Metal inert gas) welding machines from their production with Inverter 
base machines which consume approximately 30% less mput power. 47 nos. of 1000 Amps SAW and 40 Nos of 400 AMPS MIG welding sets have been replaced. 

NFD (variable frequency drive) emploved with conveyor line and in other machines resulting in power saving. 

-Rs. 66.87 lacs have been spent during 2013-14 on acquiring Solar Power Generating system with an object to reduce the lighting load and to further reduce the same 

company proposes to use LED lights. 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption 

(i) Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption. adaptation and innovation &(ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts& (iii) Technology 

Imported during the last three years. 

Following steps have been taken for enhancing productivity and quality improvements, resultinginenhanced safetvand environmental protection measures and 
conservation of energy:-
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Our company has used latest inverter based technology in welding machines for improving quality and productivity of LPG cylinders (welding machines have 

been imported from China& fully operational ) 

Flux recovery system has been emploved in SAW welding for ensuring defect free radiographic quality welding. 

Powered belt conveyers designed and installed for assembly and quality control process removing manual material movement & improving productivity. 

Electrical actuator operated blank lifting system(s) have been designed and installed in all the deep drawing press for mechanized loading and feeding of 

blanks & avoiding operator fatigue. 

Twin head SAW machines have started operating for welding both dish ends simultaneously for productivity improvement. 

Processing in a machine; trimming and joggling operation together, will remove variation in dimension, improve quality and productivity. 

Manual loading and unloading being replaced in machines by pneumatic and electrical power equipments. 

Expenditure on R&D: -NA- 

Rs. in Lacs 

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO 2022-23 2021-22 

a) Earmng in Foreign Exchange F.O B. Value of Exports 16857.23 18898.32 

b) CIF Value of Imports: 

-Raw matenal/stock-in-trade 585.40 2246.06 

Capital goods repairs 63.74 471 

¢) Commission 1600.28 2.32385 

d} Others 106.33 17.43 

Total 19212.98 23,400.35 
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Key financial ratios along with the details of significant changes (25% or more) mn FY 2022-23 compared to FY 2021-22 1s as follows: 

(A). Ratios Formulae For the year ended % Change) he 

March 31, 2023] March 31, 2022 

¥ Current ratic (in times) Current asseis / 0.46 0.36 29.25%| Refer footnote Ci) 

Current liabilities 
bj 

Debt equity ratio {in times) Total debt / Total 10.88 12.81 -15.07% Less 

equity than 
25% 

c) 

Debt service coverage ratio (in times)| Earnings available for 0.73 0.60 22.02% Less than 25% 

debiservices / 

{Repayment of 
borrowings + 
Interest) 

9 Return on Equity Ratio (%) Profit/{loss) after taxes -53% -8.% 530.10%| Refer footnote Cli) 
/ 

Total equity 

8 Return on Capital Employed Ratio Earning before 30%, -2%)| -1650.63%)| Refer footnote Cli) 
(Pre tax) (%) interest & 

tax / Capital 
employed 

f) 

Net profit ratio (9%) Net profit/(loss) / -4% -1%|  -326.32%|Refer footnote Civ) 
Revenue 

from operations 

8 
Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) Cost of Goods Sold 1.79 2.07 -13.62% Less than 26% 

/ 
Average Inventory 

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in Credit sales / Average 23.05 1.40 1551.03% Refer footnote Civ) 

times) trade receivables 

Trade payables tumover ratio (in Credit purchases / 1.52 1.61 -5.43% Less than 25% 
timee) Avorane 
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iB). Explanation on items included in numerator and denominator for computation of above ratios: 

(ij. Total debt includes non-current borrowings, current borrowings and interest accrued but not due on borrowings. 

(ii). Earnings available for debt services: Loss after tax + Finance costs 

(cy. Reasons for significant changes (25% or more) 

(i). Current ratio has been improved due to reduction in current liability on account of settlement of various 

borrowings as well as receipt of advances for sale of land. 

(ii). Return on equity ratio has fallen on account of further accumulation of losses after tax. 

(iii). Return on capital employed ratio has been improved on account of increase in EBIT in current financial vear as well 
as debt obligation being settled. 

(iv). Net profit ratio has fallen because of decline in net profit during the current financial year. 

iv}. Trade receivables turnover ratio has been improved on account of reduction in gross debtors’ balance in the 
current financial year. 

(vi). Wet capital turnover ratio has improved due to reduction in gross debtor's balance in the current financial vear. 

Average working capital has turnt negative due to reclassification of certain trade receivables as non-current. 

iD). Explanation on items included in numerator and denominator for computation of above ratios: 

(ij. Total debt includes non-current borrowings, current borrowings and interest accrued but not dus on borrowings. 

(ii). Earnings available for debt services: Loss after tax + Depreciation and amortisation expenses + Finance costs 

(E}. Reasons for significant changes (25% or more) 

{vii}. Current ratio has been decreased on account of classification of certain old trade receivables aggregating to Rs. 
14.877.15 Lacs (net of provision of Rs. 7,300.39 Lacs) as non-current during current financial year. 

(viii). Debt service coverage ratio has been improved on account of decrease in loss and borrowings obligation in current 

financial year. 

(ix). Return on equity ratio has been improved on account of decrease in loss in current financial year. 

{x). Return on capital employed ratio has been improved on account of decrease in loss mn current financial vear. 

(xi). Wet profit ratio has been improved on account of decrease in loss and increase im revenue in current financial year. 

{wii}. Inventory turnover ratio has been increased on account of increase in cost of goods sold during current financial 
ear. 

(xiii). Trade receivables turnover ratio has been increased on account of increase in revenue and decrease in average 

trade receivables due to allowance for impairment loss of Rs. 7.494 41 Lacstn previous financial year 

(xiv). Trade payables turnover ratio has been increased on account of increase in annual credit purchases.
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(xv). Net capital turnover ratio has been decreased on account of classification of certamn old trade receivables 
aggregating to Rs. 14.877.15 Lacs (net of provision of Rs. 7,300.39 Lacs) as non-current during current financial 

year resulting into negative net working capital. 

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

There has been no change in the accounting treatment for preparation of financial results, during the year under review. 

GENERAL 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions 

on these items during the year under review: 

a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to emplovees of the Company under any scheme save and except ESOS referred 

to 1m this Report. 
¢) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration of commission from 

any of 1ts subsidiaries. 
d) During the year under review, neither any fraud of any kind on or by the Company has been noticed by the Board of Directors 

of the Company nor reported by the Auditors of the Company. The Company has an mrternal financial control system, 

commensurate to the size of the business, in place. 
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Annexure-A 

WA MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

1. The Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

The Board of Directors and Management believe in adopting and practicing principles of good Corporate Governance 
with a view tor - 

- Foster a culture of compliance and obligation at every level of the organization, 

- Safeguard shareholders” interest through sound business decisions, prudent financial management and high 
standard of business ethics and 

- Achieve transparency, accountability and integrity in the dealings and transactions of the Company. 

The Company is incompliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015) 

The Company is commutted to meet the expectations of stakeholders as a responsible corporate citizen. The Company's 
Code of Conduct contains the fundamental principles and rules concerning ethical business conduct. 

2. Board of Directors 

(1) Composition: - 

As of March 31, 2023 the Board of Directors comprise of Frve Directors as under - 

Brief Particulars 

Name of Director Promoter Group Category 
Shri Navneet | He 1s an Industrialist having 29 years’ experience in the Executive 
Kumar Sureka Steel Industry and joined the Board as Promoter director Managing Director 

wef 29% July, 1997. 

Smt. Deepa Sureka | She is having 16 years experience in the company as Executive-Whole- 

Officer on Special Duty. She joined the Board as Whole- time Woman 
time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter Category wef Director 

March 28,2022. 

Non-Independent 

Smt Veena 

Aggarwal 

She 1s 1n business having 40 years experience 1a the field of 

finance & investment. 

Non-executive-Non- 

Independent 

Independent 

Smt. Sujata Kumar 

Shri Birendra Kumar 

The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and operations and provides 

an overall mdustry perspective as well as 1ssues being faced by the mdustry from time to time. The details of various 

She 13 10 service having 19 years experience 1a software 

industry. She joined the Board as an Independent Director wef. 
12/08/2014. 

Mr. Birendra Kumar has experience in the field of general 

management & human rezonrces. He joined the Board wef 
March 282022. 

Non-executive-Independent 

Hon Executive Independent 
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familiarization programmes provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the Company's website 

https://mauria com/wp-content/uploads 2023/03/2022-23- pdf 

(11) Board Meetings and attendance 

Fourteen Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended on 31% March, 2023 and the gap between two Board 
Meetings did not exceed one hundred & twenty days. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. During the 
year a separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-alia to review the performance of non-independent 
directors and the board as a whole. 

The dates on which Board meetings were held are as follows:- 

51 No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 09-04-2022 07 3 

2 245-2022 07 3 
3 30-05-2022 07 4 

E 08-07-2022 07 1 
3 28-07-2022 07 4 

[4] 10-08-2022 07 4 

7 07-09-2022 07 5 

8 10-10-2022 07 6 

8 28-10-2022 05 4 

10 14-11-2022 05 4 

11 28-12-2022 5 4 

12 10-01-2023 5 5 

13 14-02-2023 05 4 

14 30-03-2023 05 3 

(iii) Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and last Annual General Meeting{ AGM) and the number of 
Companies and committees where he/she is a Director Member. 

Name of Director Category of Number of | Attendance at Number of Number of 
Directorship Board the Last AGM Directorships in | committee 

Meetings held on listed Public posttions held 

Attended 30.09.2022 Ltd., including in other 
this company as | Companies 

on 31/03/2023 

1 | Shri NK. Suoreka Executive 10 Tes 01 01 
] Non-Executive " 

Smit. Sujata Kumar Tndepend 13 No 02 0 

3 | Sh. Rannveer Singh Non-Executive = tyre Sadependert 08 Yes Nil 04 

4 . Non-Executive Non- . 
Smt. Veena Aggarwal dependent 07 No 03 04 

5 | Sh. Rannvyay Sigh Non-Executive " ” rie ies 03 No Nil - 

- Smt Deepa Sureka Executive-Promoter 10 No 01 Bl 

8 : » E 04 
Sh. Birendra Kumar Non-Executive 06 No 02 

*Resigned wef 20.10.2022 
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Other Directorships 

s Name of the | Names of the listed entities where the Category of directorship 

No. Director person is a director 
1 Shri NK. Sureka Nil Executive-Promoter 

2 Smt. Sujata Kumar Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd Non-Executive -Tndependent 
3 Smt. Veena Aggarwal | 1 Jotindra Steel & Tubes Lid. Non-Executtve-Non-Independent 

2 Sninarayan Rajkumar Merchants Ltd Non-Executive-Non-Independent 
4 Smit. Deepa Sureka Nil Mil 
5 Sh. Birendra Kumar Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd Non-Executive-Non-Independent 

Disclosure of relationships between directors infer-se 

Shr Navneet Kumar Sureka, Managing Director & Smt. Deepa Sureka, Director are related as Husband &wife. 

# Chart setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors:- 

Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, Mrs. Deepa Surcka, Mrs. Veena Aggarwal, Mrs. Sujata Kumar & Mr 

Birendra Kumar possess the below skills expertise’ competence whereas other 15 well versed in his own 
fields. 

Core skills/expertise/ competencies identified by the board of directors as | Those actually available with the 

required in the context of its business(es) and sector{s) for it to function | board 

effectively 

1. Ability to understand Financial Markets As per the Board, all these 
2. Ability to understand Regulatory/Statutory framework applicable to the | skills/expertise’ competencies are 

Company available with the Board 

3. Quick decision making 
4. Understanding of Company’s business verticals 
5. Experience in developing policies and processes relating to corporate 

governance 
6. Leaderships skills for guiding the management team 

_ Ability to formulate long term and short term business strategies 

8. Ability to understand Financial Statements 

# Confirmation by the board regarding independent directors 

The Board of Directors do hereby confirm that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the 
conditions specified 1n SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are 
independent of the management. 

# Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry of 

his tenure along with a confirmation bv such director that there are no other material reasons 
other than those provided: During the year ended March 31, 2023 two dependent directors have 
resigned from the Board of Directors. They have resigned due to personal reasons and further, they have 
also confirmed that there are no material reasons other than those provided. 

3. Audit Committee 

The constitution of the Audit Committee 1s in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013(here-in-after known the “Act”™) and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. During the vear Mr. Rannveer 
Singh Rishi, chairman of the Audit Commuitee resigned and Smit Sujata Kumar a member took over as the new 
Chairperson of the committee. Mr. Birendra Kumar, a Non-executive independent director was appointed as a member of 

the Committee wef 28/10/2022. 
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As on March 31, 2023 Audit committee comprises of following directors: 

SL Name of Members Category Designation 

No 

1 | Smt Sujaa Kumar Non Executive Independent | Chairperson 
2 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka Executive Member 

3 5h Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

(1) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set-out m Section 177 of the Act & the role as per 

theRegulation18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015 

(ii) The Audit Committee had Six Meetings during the financial year 2022-23 ended on 31% March, 2023 as 
per details thereof and the names of Directors who attended the said meetings, are as under- 

Details of the Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial vear 2022-23 and attended by the 

Directors: 

Name of 

Directors 09/04/2022 30/05/2022 10/08/2022 07/09/2022 14/11/2022 14/02/2023 

Sh. Rannveer 

Singh Rishi — 

Chairman *{upto 

20.10.2022) 

Yes Yes NA NA 

Smit. Sujata 
Kumar-Member/ 

Chairperson { wef 
28.10.2622) 

Yes Yes Ves Yes Yes 

Sh. Navneet 
Kumar Sureka- 

Member 

Yes Yes Yes 

Sh. Birendra 

Kumar-Member** 

Yes Yes 

“Resigned wef 2010/2622 
““Appomted wef 28/10/2022 

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Pursuant to Regulationl9 of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Act, the Board has re- 

constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and adopted new terms of reference 

The terms of reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes: 

+ To formulate a Nomination and Remuneration Policy on: 

— determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, 

— puiding remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel ("EMP™) and other employees and Board 
diversity. 

» Recommend Nomination and Remuneration Policy to the Board. 

+ Identify candidates who are qualified to become Directors 
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Identify persons who are qualified to become Senior Management (Senior Management of the Company means 

employees of the Company who are Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads). 

* Recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Semor Management. 

+ Lay down the process for evaluation of the performance of every Director on the Board. 

~The constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 1s in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 there-in-after known the “Act™) and Regulation 19 of the Listing 

Regulations, 2015. 

Durning the vear two members of this committee namely Mr. Rannveer Singh Rishi as Charman & Mr. Rannvijay 

Singh Rishi, resigned. Consequent thereto two non-executive directors Mrs. Veena Aggarwal & Mr. Birendra 

Kumar were nominated on this commutes and Mrs. Sujata Kumar member of the committee took over as the new 
chairperson wef 28/10/2022 

As on March 31, 2023 this committee consisted of following directors: 

5L No | Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Smt. Sujata Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 

2 Smt Veena Sureka Non-Executive-Non-Independent Member 

3 Sh. Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

During the wear 2022-2023, the Nomunation & Remuneration committee met once on 10-01-2023 wath full 
attendance of committees members and took note of continuous efforts being made for appointment of suitable 

candidate as the Non-executive director on the Board. 

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Director: 

Criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors; 

Experience and ability to contribute to the decision making process 
Problem solving approach and guidance to the Management 
Attendance and Participation in the Meetings 

Personal competencies and contribution to strategy formulation 

Contribution towards statutory compliances, monitoring of controls and Corporate Governance 
The evaluation of dependent directors shall be done by the entire board of directors which shall mclude o

h
 1 

a. Performance of the directors; and 

b. Fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in these regulations and their independence 
from the management: 

Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not participate. 

5. Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

Pursuant to Regulation 19 of the Listing regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Act, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy which provides guidance on: 

- Selection Criteria for Directors 
The Company shall consider the following aspects while appointing a person as a Director on the Board of 
the Company:
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Skills and Experience: The candidate shall have appropriate skills and experience inone or more fields of 

technical operations, finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration public admimstrative 

services, research, corporate governance, or any other discipline related to the Companys business. 

Age Limit: The candidate should have completed the age of twenty-one (21) vears and should not have 

attained the age of seventy (70) vears. 

Conflict of Interest: The candidate should not hold Directorship in any competitor company, and should 
not have any conflict of interest with the Company. 

Directorship: The number of companies in which the candidate holds Directorshipshould not exceed 

the number prescribed under the Act or under the Listing Agreement requirements. 

Independence: The candidate proposed to be appointed as Independent Director, should not have any 

direct or indirect material pecuniary relationship with the Company and must satisfy the requirements 
imposed under the Act or under the Listing Agreement requirements 

Selection Criteria for Senior Management 

As per policy, Senior Management for the purpose of this policy shall mean employeeshired at the level of 

Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads or equivalentpositions The policy provides that the 
candidate should have appropriate qualifications, skillsand experience for discharging the role. The 
qualifications, skills and experience of each such position shall be defined in the job description, which will 
be mamtainedby the HR function. 

6. Remuneration for Directors. EMP and other Emplovees 

The policy provides that the remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees shall be based on the 
following key principles: 

* Pay for performance: Remuneration of Executive Directors, KMP and other employees 1s dependent on 
short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goal. The 
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors shall be decided by the Board based on the profits of the 
Company and industry benchmarks. 

* Balanced rewards to create sustainable value: The level and composition of remuneration 1s reasonable 

and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and employees of the Company and encourage 
behaviour that 1s aligned to sustainable value creation 

» Competitive compensation: Total target compensation and benefits are comparable to peer companies in 
the manufacturing industry and commensurate to the qualifications and experience of the concerned 

individual. 
» Business Ethics: Strong governance processes and stringent nisk management policies are adhered to, mn 
order to safeguard our stakeholders” interest. 

Performance Evaluation 

The process approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitee requires the Chairman to imtiate 
the performance evaluation process in the months of Jamuary-March every year. The performance 

evaluation is conducted based on approved cnteria in the evaluation forms. The process highlights are as 
under: 

a) Board: Each Board member completes the self-evaluation form. Independent Directors discuss the 

self-evaluation forms in a separate meeting and share their feedback with the Chairman The Chairman 
discusses the evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and later with the entire Board at the 
Board Meeting
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bk) Committees: Each Committee member completes the self-evaluation form and shares feedback with 

the Chairman. The Chairman discusses the evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and 
later with the entire Board at the Board Meeting. 

c) Chairman and Executive Directors: Each Board member completes thepeer evaluation form 

Independent Directors discuss the peer evaluation forms in separaie meeting and share their feedback 
with the Chairman The Chairman conveys feedback individually to the concerned Dhrectors. 

d) Independent Directors: Each Board member completes the peer evaluation and shares feedback 
with the Chairman. The Chairman conveys feedback individually to the concerned Directors. 

Remuneration to Directors 

a) Non-Executive Directors 

No remuneration other than sitting fees of Rs. 300/- for attending Board Meeting is paid to each of non- 

executive directors. There is no pecuniary relationship and transactions with Non-Executive Directors. The 

company's policy for making payment to the Non-executive directors is available at 
https:/mauria.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/3-MUL-Criterion-for-making-pavment-to-Non-EXD-1. pdf 

(i) Sitting fees paid to Directors for meetings of the Board during 2022-23:- 

Name of Director Amount () 

Smt. Veena Aggarwal 3500 
Smt. Sujata Kumar 6500 
Shr Rarmveer Singh Rishi* 4000 
Shr Ramnvijay Singh Rishi* 1500 
Shr Birendra Kumar®* 3000 

Total 18,500 

*Resigned wef 20.10.2022 

** Appointed wef 28.03.2022; 

b) Executive Directors 
1. Remuneration paid to Mr. NK. Sureka, Managing Director 

Amount {Rs.) 

a) Salary for twelve months of 2022-23 (Apnl 2022 37.50.000 

to March 2023) 

b) Provident Fund Contributions 21,600 
¢) Perquisites (including Bonus & Eamed Leave) 647.856 

Total 44.49.4586 

# Service contracts. notice period, severance fees. NA. 

2. Remuneration paid to Mrs. Deepa Sureka, Whole-time Director 

Amount (Rs.) 

a) Salary for twelve months of 2022-23({ Apnl 2022 18.00.,000 

to March 2023) 
b) Provident Fund Contributions 21.600 

¢) Perquisites (including Bonus & Earned Leave) 465.800 

Total 18.68.4000 

#» Service contracts, notice period, severance fees. NA
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# Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors —INil 

7. Code of Conduct for the Directors & Senior Managerial Personnel 

In compliance to the provisions of Regulation 17 (5) of the Listing Regulations, the Board has laid down a code of 
Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel and all Board Members and Senior 
Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance of code of conduct as on 31* March, 2023 and a declaration to 
that effect duly signed by the Managing Director 1s attached and forms part of this report. 

8. Stakeholders” Relationship Committee 

The constitution of Stakeholders” Relationship Comuniitee is 1 accordance with the requirements of Section 178 
of the Compantes Act. 2013 (here-in-after known the “Act™) and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. 

During the vear two members of this committee namely Mr. Rannveer Singh Rishi as Chairman & Mr 
Rannvijay Singh Rishi, resigned. Consequent thereto two non-executive directors Mrs. Veena Aggarwal & Mr. 
Birendra Kumar were nominated on this committee and Mrs. Sujata Kumar member of the commiitee took over 
as the new chairperson wef 28/10/2022. 

As on March 31, 2023 this committee consisted of following directors: 

SL | Name of Members Category Designation 
No 

1 Smt. Sujata Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 

2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal Non-Executive-Independent Member 
3 5h Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independem Member 

The Stakeholders” Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the 

company. 

During the vear 2022-23, Stakeholders Committee met four times and provided status updates to the Board of 
directors of the company. 

Name of Directors Date of Meetings 

09-04-2022 | 08-07-2022 10-10-2022 10-01-2023 

Sh. Rannveer Singh Rishi* chairman (upto Yes Yes Yes NA 
20/10/2022) . 
Smt. Sujata Kumar chairperson (wef Yes Yes Yes Yes 

28/10/2022) 

Shri Rannvijay Singh Rishi® No No Yes NA 
Smt. Veena Aggarwal®™* NA NA NA Yes 
Sh, Birendra Kumar®* NA NA NA Yes 
“Resigned wef 20/10/2622 
*< dppointed wef 28/10/2022 

Ms. Divya Agarwal has been nominated as the Compliance Officer. 

Number of pending transfers Nil 

Number of Shareholders Nil 

Complaints received 

Number of Complaints Nil
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Not solved. 

9. Details of Prospectus & letter of offer 

No Prospectus & letter of offer for issuances and related filings were made to the stock exchange where 1t 1s 

listed. 

10. General Body Meetings 

Details of Location and time of holding of last three AGMs 

(a) 

AGM for | Venue Date Time Special Resolution Passed 

the 

financial 

vear 
2019-20 AGMheld through | 31.12.2020 | 2:00 1) Approval for appointment of Sh. Navneet 
40™ AGM | Video PM Kumar Sureka, (DIN: 000545929) as the Managing 

Conferencing“ VC™) Director for a term of One Years wef 01.04.2020 
or Other Audio 

Visual Means 
(“OAVM) 

2020-21 AGM held through | 30.09.2021 | 2:00 1) Approval for appointment of Sh. Navneet 
41% AGM | Video PM Kumar Sureka, (DIN: 00054929) as the Managing 

Conferencing(“VC™) Director for a term of Five Years wef 01.04.2021 

ar Other Audio 
Visual Means 

(“OAVM) 
2021-22 AGM held through 30.09.2022 | 2:00 Nil 
42" AGM | Video PM 

Conferencing(“VC™) 

or Other Audio 
Visual Means 

(“OAVM) 

As per the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2013. the shareholders were given the option to 
vote on all resolutions through electronic means, M's A G D & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN: 

033552N), Faridabad in practice as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in 

a fair and transparent manner connected with the aforesaid AGMs. 

Postal ballot (through e-voting) in last 3 years & Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot: 

Financial Year | Cut-off Voting E Voting | Resolutions 

Date period results 

announcem 
ent date 

2020-21 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2021-22 11/03/2022. | 28/01/2022 1-Ordinary Resolution-Sub-division of Equity 

to shares of the company from Face Value Rs. 
26/02/2022 10/-each to Face Value of Re 1/-each per 

share 
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2- Ordinary Resolution-To increase the 
Authorised Share Capital of the company & 

consequent amendment in the Memorandum 

of Association of the company. 

2022-23 20/05/2022 | 27/05/2022 28/06/2022 | |-Special Resolution-Appomtment of Mrs. 

to Deepa Sureka (DIN: 00060284) as Whole- 

25/06/2022 time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter) 

wef 28/03/2022 

2 -Ordinary Resolution Appointment of Mr 

Birendra Kumar (DIN: 08666368) as Non- 

Executive Independent Director 

(c) Details of Special Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot: Special Resolution wrt the 

appointment of Mr. Manohar is required to be passed in the ensuing 43 AGM through Postal Ballot’ remote 

e-voting] 

M's A GD & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRI: 033552N), Fandabad im practice has been appointed as 

the Scrutimzer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner 
during the ensuing 43” AGM to be held on 28" September. 2023 

11. Disclosure: 

a) Materially Significant related party transactions 

1 All Transactions with related parties were mn the ordimary course and at arm’s length and have been disclosed 

mn 
note no. 15 of the Annual Accounts for the year 2022-23 

11 The terms & conditions of the above mentioned transactions are not prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company and there 13 no transaction of material nature for the year 2022-23 which are prejudicial to the interest 

of the company. The closing balances of such related parties, wherever outstanding, are not overdue. 

The Web-link for policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party 
transactions 15 http: www mauria com Policies html 

(b) Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 

three vears. 

For details please refer to Secretarial compliance report attached herewith as an annexure. 

(c) Details of Compliance with Mandatory Requirements of SEBI (LODE) Regulations, 2015 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations including 
comphances mentioned tn Part A to Part D of Schedule TL 

For details please refer to Secretarial compliance report attached herewith 2s an annexure. 

(d) Web link where policy for determining “material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:
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The policy for determining “material” subsidiaries of the Company 15 available at https: /mauria com/'policies’ 

12. Means of Communication 

* Quarterly results: 

The Quarterly, Half vearly and Annual Results of the Company are sent to BSE Ltd in accordance with 
the SEBI{LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

+ Newspapers wherein the results normally published: 

The quarterly and wearly results are published m English m widely circulating “Financial Express™ and m 
Bengali m “AsthikT api ~ from Kolkata. 

+ Any website, where displayed: 

The Quarterly, Half vearly and Annual Results are displaved on Company's website 

www.mauria.com The Company's website contams a dedicated section “Investors” under which the 
details/information of interest to various stakeholders is displayed The Results are also sent to BSE Lid, 

which is displayed by BSE on its website http: www. bseindia com. 

* Whether it also displays official news releases: 

All financial and other vital official news releases and documents under the SEBI Listing Regulations are 
also communicated to the BSE Ltd. besides being placed on the Company’s website www mauria com. 

+ Presentations made to the Institutional Investors or to the Analysts: 

No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts dung the year under review. 

14. General Shareholder information 

Company Registration Details The Company is registered in the State of West Bengal, 
India. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) 

allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs (MCA) 1s- L31909WB1980PLC033010. 

AGM © Date, time and venue 43% AGM to be held on Thursday, the September 28, 
2023 at2 00 PM at 

Anand Jyoti Building, Room 

No.107,1"Floor.41 Netaji 
Subhas Road. 

Kolkata — 700 001 

Plant Location: Mauna Udyog Limited 
Sohna Road. Sector-35 

Faridabad-121015 (Haryana) 

+ Fmancial Calendar (Tentative) 

Results for quarter ending June 30, 2023 26" July, 2023 

declared on 

Results for quarter ending September 30, 2023 14" November, 2023 

Results for quarter ending December 31, 2023 14% February, 2024 

Audited Results for the entire Financial Year 

ending March 31. 2024 26™ May, 2024
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s Date of Book closure 

» Listing On Stock Exchanges 

+ Demat ISIN Number for NSDL and CDSL. 

s+ Stock Code: 539219 

Friday, the 22™ September, 2023 
to Thursday, the 28® September, 2023 

(both days inclusive) 

Equity 
BSE Limited 

PI. Towers, Dalal Strest. 
Fort, Mumbai-400001. 

Exchange Scrip Code:339219 

Calcutta Stock Exchange 

7. Lyon Range, 
Kolkata-700001 

Exchange Scrip Code:23114 

INE130D01027. 

¢ Financial year: April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 

+ Dividend payment date: Not applicable 

+ Address for correspondence: Room No. 107, Anand Jyoti Building. 1st floor, 

41 Netaji Subhas Road. Kolkata, West Bengal, 700001 

Market price data - High, Low during the each month in last financial year: 2022-23 

m— High Price 

w— | owe Price 

+ High'low of market price of the Company's 
Shares traded on Stock Exchange during the 
Financial Year ended 31% March, 2023
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* Registrar & Transfer Agents 

* Share Transfer System 

The shares have commenced trading on the BSE since January, 

2017 during the financial 2016-17. The last quoted price during the 
financial vear ended 31% March, 2023 was Rs. 4.75 for each 

equity shares of Rs. 1/-each recorded on 31.03 2022. On Feb 26, 

2022 each of Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each were sub- 

divided mito face value of Rs. 1/- each. Shares have not been traded 
on CSE during the financial year ended 31% March, 2021 and the 
last quoted price was of Rs.3.50 per Share as per transactions on 
CSE on 3% March. 2000 

M's. Beetal Financial & Computer 

Services (P) Ltd BEETAL HOUSE. 
99. Madangir, Behind Local Shopping 
Centre, Near Dada Harsukh Dass 

Mandir, New Delhi-110062 

Phone No. 29961281 (6 Lines) 
Fax No. 29961284 

All the transfers received are 

processed by the Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent. Share 
Transfers are registered and 

returned within a masinmum of 

15 days from the date of lodgment 
if documents are complete in all 

respect. In case the shares are 

transferred through Demat 
mode, the procedure 1s adopted as 

stated in Deposttories Act, 1996. 

* Share holding pattern as on 31-03-2023 

Category No. of Shares Percentage 

Promoters GS. 84, 75.200 73.93 

Persons acting in concert - - 

Mutual Funds and UTI - - 

Banks. Financial Institution & g 5 
Insurance Companies. 

FI's - - 

Private Corporate Bodies 8. 85.474 0.66 

Indian Public 3.38.35.326 2541 

NRIs! OCBs - 

Total 13,32.00,000 100.00 

» Distribution of shareholding as on 31" March, 2023. 

No. of Shares Number Amount 

Number of | % to Total | Numberof |InRs. %s To Total 

From To Shareholders | Shares 

01 500 8170 | 91.80 | 6505629 6503629 4.88 

501 1000 399 [ 443 3080038 3080038 231 

1001 2000 209 | 2.23 | 3028851 3028851 227 
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2001 3000 50 | 1.00 | 2269500 2269500 1.70 
3001 4000 17 | 0.18 | 605489 603489 0.46 
4001 5000 21 [0.23 | 967046 967046 0.73 
5001 10000 39 EE! | 3011357 3011357 226 
10001 above 52 [057 [113731850 | 1137318%0 | 8538 

TOTAL 8007 | 100 | 133200000 | 133200000 | 100.000 

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: The Company 1s not a sizable 
user of commodities, hence exposes itself moderately to the price risk on account of procurement of 
commodities. 

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with anv revisions thereto during the relevant 

financial vear, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme 
or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad- 

The last Credit Rating that Company had obtained was for the purpose of Bank Loan Faciliiy of 
Rs. 320 Crore from M/s Brickwork vide its letter dated 23™ March, 2018 which was valid for a 

period of Twelve Months from the date of aforesaid letter. was as follows - 

Fund Based-BWRBBB- (Pronounced as BWR Triple B Minus) Outlook: Stable Assigned 

Non-Fund Based-BWRA.3 (Pronounced as BWR A Three) Assigned 

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE SENSEX, CRISIL Index etc. 

Mauria Udyog Limited S&P BSE SENSEX 

Month High price | Low price Month High price Low price 

Apr-22 4.96 | 3.42 Apr-22 60845.1 56009.07 

May-22 4.75 3.59 May-22 57184.21 52632.48 

Jun-22 4.05 | 3 Jun-22 56432.65 50921.22 

Jul-22 3.6 | 3.2 Jui-22 576159.27 52094.25 

Aug-22 3.7% 2.8 Aug-22 60411.2 57367.47 

Sep-22 3.66 | 2.80 Sep-22 60676.12 56147.23 
Oct-22 4.95 | 3.4 Oct-22 b0786.7 56683.4 

Nov-22 4.77 3.1 MNov-22 63303.01 60425.47 

Dec-22 3.97 | 3 Dec-22 63583.07 59754.1 

Jan-23 6.32 | 45 Jan-23 ©61343.96 58699.2 

Feb-23 1.78 431 Feb-23 61682.25 58795.97 

Mar-23 7.12 | 6.67 Mar-23 60498.48 57084.91 

* Market —price of each share of face-value of Rs. 1/-each. On Feb 26, 2022 each of Equity shares of face value of 
Rs. 10/-were sub-divided into face value of Rs. 1/- each 

In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason 

thereof: 

N/A The securities of the Company have never been suspended from trading 

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

Liquidity:- Out of total number of 13,32 00.000 Equity Shares of the Company 13.30.65.850 equity 

shares constituting 99 50% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital were held in 
dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023 and as such, there is sufficient liquidity in the stock.
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#+ Outstanding global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or anv 

convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs Warrants or any convertible instruments till date. 

o VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

Your directors have established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and formulated a Policy 1 order to provide 

2 framework for responsible and secure whistle blowmmgvigil mechanism The Vigil (Whistle Blower) 
Mechanism aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the codes of conduct or ethic policy. This mechanism also 

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism 

and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 

‘We affirm that no personnel has been dented access to the audit committee 
# Recommendations of Committee: All the recommendations as made by the Committees to the 

board from time to time have been accepted / complied-with by the Board 

® Loans & advances to Subsidiaries:- Nil 

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Information in this regard 1s mil as no funds 
were raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under 

Regulation 32 (7A) dunng the vear under review. 

+ A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority —Certificate Obtained & Attached 

herewith. 

+ Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of 

conditions of corporate governance —Certificate cbtained & Attached herewith 

(2) Total Fees For All Services Paid By The Listed Entity And Its Subsidiaries, On A Consolidated Basis, To The 

Statutory Auditor And All Entities In The Network Firm/Network Entity Of Which The Statutory Auditor Is A 

Part - 

The required information for the Financial Year 2022-23 1s given as under:- 

Fees paid to the Auditors 

Name of the Company ees paid for Audit [Fees paid for other services 

cluding Tax Audit) (Rs.) |(Rs.) 

Mauria Udyog Lid. 5.55.000 NA 

Fees paid to the all entities in the network firm/metwork entity of which the statutory auditor 1s a part 

Name of the Company Fees paid for Audit Fees paid for other services 

NA NA NA 
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Disclosures In Relation To The Sexual Harassment Of Women Af Workplace (Prevention. Prohibition And 
Redressal) Act. 2013:- 

a. Number of complaints filed durmg the financial year - NIL 

b. Number of complaints disposed off during the financial vear - NIL 

c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year — NIL 

# Non-Compliance of Corporate Governance Requirement-NIL. 

DisclosuresWithRespect toDemat Suspense Account’ Unclaimed Suspense Account: 

There 1s no demat suspense account’ unclaimed suspense account of the Company because such a requirement never got 
necessitated in relation to the shares of the Company. As such, the information in this regard 1s Nil. 

Declaration by Managing Director on Code of Conduct 

The Code of Conduct for the Directors and the Senior Managerial Personnel was adopted by the Board of Directors. All 
the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed that they have complied with the code of conduct 
during the financial vear ended on 31% March, 2023. 

MATURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

Sd/- Sd/- 
NK.SUREKA SUJATA KUMAR 

Mg. DIRECTOR DIRECTOR 
Place: New Delhi DIN:00054929 DIN: 01310030 
Dated : 04” September, 2023



JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

A Peer Reviewed Firm 

Form Na. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2023 

[Pursuant wo section 20408 of the Companies dot 2003 and rude 

Vo, U of the Companies (Appomtment and Reanpreration Personnels 

Rudex, 2044] 

la 

Ihe Members 

M/S MAURIA UDYOG LTD 

And Jyoti Building, 41, Netaji Subhash Road, 

Ruoism Na 107. 1st Floor, kolkata- 70000 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to wood corporate practices by M/s Mauria Udyog Lid 

(CIN: LS1909W B198O0IPLC033010) ( hereinafter called the company), Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided me & reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory  compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based an my verification of books. papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company. 

its uificers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | 

hereby report that in my opinion. the company has, during the audit period covering the 

financial vear ended on 31° March, 2023 complied with the story provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliagnee-mechanism in 
plice to the extent, in the manner and subjeet 1 the reporting made hereinafier: 

| have examined the bovks, papers, minute hooks, forms and returns fled and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to 
the provisions of 

(i) Fhe Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder: 

(1) Ihe Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1936 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder: 

(iif) [he Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder: 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations__m 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Diregfpvestment 

and External Commercinl Borrowings: 

K-009, DDA LIG FLATS, POCKET-C, MOLARBAND, NEW DELHI-110076 

Phone No. +91-9541237622 E-Mail : csjyotiarya@gmail.com 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act. 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

(a) The Seeurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

l'akeovers) Regulations. 201 |- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period: 

ih) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992 and the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended: - to 

the extent applicable to the company: 

fc) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009: - to the extent applicable w the company: 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, |9949; - Not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period. 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Hoard of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008-Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(fy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an 1ssue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations. 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to the 

extent applicable to the company; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations. 

2009- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period: 

(hy The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, |998; 

Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and 

(iy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and [Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2001 5- to the extent applicable to the company. 

(vi) (Mention the other laws as may be applicable specifically wo the company): 

I." The Factories Act, 1918; 

2. Industrial Disputes Ag, 1947; 

3. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936: 

4, The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, 

3. Employees” State Insurance Act, 1 948; 

6, The Employees” Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1932; 

7. Eyual Remuneration Act 1970; 

8. The Contract Labour ( Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970; 

U. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961; 

10. The Payment of Bonus Act. 19635; 

IT. The Environment { Protection) Act, 1986: 

12, The Water { Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act. 1974; 

13. The Air {Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act. 1981; 

14. The Competition Act, 2002: 

15. The Sexual [Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, 

Redressal) Ace 2013; 



(3) 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Following: 

(i) Seereturial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India-generally 

complied with 

{ii} The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange 

Limited (BSE) & Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE), 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the 

Act, Rules. Regulations, Guidelines, Standards ete. as mentioned above, 

I further report that 

Ihe Hoard of Directors of the Company is duly constitited with proper balance of executive 

directors. non-executive directors and independent directors including a woman director. The 

changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board 

Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days mn advance, and a 

system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Under the 

review period. Mr, Rannveer Singh Rishi, Non-Exceutive- Independent Director and Mr, Rannvijay 

Singh Rishi. Non-Executive- Independent Director, both were resigned from the Board wel 

20/10/2002, 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded 

in the minutes of the meetings of the Bourd of Directors or Committees of the Board as the case may 

be. 

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws. rules. 

regulations and guidelines. 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexuere 4 and forms an 

integral part of this report. 

FOR IJYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 

(Company secretin LAsg w Zed 

of Mo 48056 7 
oR. Ho. ies) 
ry 

CS Jyoti Arva SRE 

Membership No, 48050 

C.P. No: 17651 

UDIN:- AD4SOSO0EN0086Y255 Date: 26/08/2023 

PR Nao.: 2299/2022 Place: New Delhi 
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Annexure A 

The Members 

M/S MAURIA UDYOG LTD 

Anand Jyoti Building, 41, Netaji Subhash Read, 

Room No 107, 1st Floor, Kolkata- 70000 

My Secretarial Audit Report for Financial Year ended on 31°" March 2023 of even date is to be 
read along with this letter, 

0. 

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records: The verification 

was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We 

believe that the processes and practices, we [ollowed provide a reasonable basis for our 

opinion, 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company, 

Where-ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete. 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards 1s the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the company. 

FOR JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 

(Company secretaries) 

| 

C1" No.: 17651 

LIDIN: = AHSOSOE000869255 Date: 26/08/2023 

PR Ni: 2299/2022 Place: New Delhi 



JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

A Peer Reviewed Firm 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To 

Ihe Members 

M/S MAURIA UDYOG LTD 

We hive examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/S Mauria Udyog Limited 

("the Company™), for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as per the relevant provisions of Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the 

period from April 011, 2022 to March 31, 2023. 

Phe compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 

examination was limited to 0 review of the procedures and implementation thereof. adopted by the 

Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 10 our examination of the relevant records 
and the explanations given to us and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we 

certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as mentioned in the 

above incntioned Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 201 5, as applicable. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company 

FORIYOTIARY A & ASSOCIATES 

CS Jvati Arva A 

Membership Nao. 481510 

CLP Now: 17651 Date: 26/08/2023 
UN: ABROSHEOD086928% Place: New Delhi 
PR No.1 2299/1022 

 —  — — || 

K-009, DDA LIG FLATS, POCKET-C, MOLARBAND, NEW DELHI-110076 

Phone No. +91-9541237622 E-Mail : csjyotiarya@gmail.com 



JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

A Peer Reviewed Firm 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant 10 Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C ¢lause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

Te 

The Members 
M/S MAURIA UDYOG LTD 

We have examined the books. minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company and declarations made by the directors and explanations given by the Company. M/s Maura 

Udyog Lid having CIN L31909WB1980PLC033010 and having registered office at Anand Jyoti Building. 

41 Netaji Subhas Rd. Room No.107, Ist Floor, Kolkata WB 700001 (hereinafier referred to as ‘the 

Company’). produced before us hy the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 

with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations; 2015, 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Direciors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the poral www.mea.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers. we hereby certify that none of the Directors on 

the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been 

debarted or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India. Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

[Sr No. | Name of Directors | DIN | Date of Appointment 

[ | Navneet Kumar Sureka dl 00054929 29/07/1997 
2 Sujata Kumar 01310030 12/08/2014 

3 | Veens Aggarwal 000604] 5 10/10/2020 

4 | Deepa Sureha 00060284 28/03/2022 

E | Birendra Kumar 08666368 28/03/2022 
MNaie: During the ar. 

Mr Rupveer Singh Rishi, Non-Executive Independent Divectar and Mr. Rannvijay Singh Rishi, Non- 

Executive Independent Director, both were resigned from the Board woe. f 200102023 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficiency ar effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company 

FOR JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 

Company seereGipita hs Ase (Cumpany seer MRE ATES 

= 

CS voi Arva 4 
Membership No, 48050 

CP Nog: 17651 

LDN; = ARO FE000869277 Date: 26/08/2023 

PR No. 2299/2022 Place: New Delhi 

ee —— 

K-009, DDA LIG FLATS, POCKET-C, MOLARBAND, NEW DELHI-110076 

Phone No. +91-9541237622 E-Mail : csjyotiarya@gmail.com 



MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 
(AN ISO 14001 & OHSAS 18001 CERTIFIED COMPANY) 

Works - Sohna Road. Sector-25, Faridabad-121004 (Haryana), INDIA 
Ph +91-120-4002000. Fax: +91-129-2231220, Visit us "www manna com 

CIN: L51909WEB1980PL.C033010; e-mail Id- mavria@mauria com 

ANNEXTRE ITT 

ANNUAL REPORT-2022-23 ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S 

REPORT-2022-23 

1. | A bref outline of the company’s CSR policy, = Promoting preventive health care. 
including overview of projects or programs » Promoting Education through schools to the Under 

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the Privileged Section of the Society. 

web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 

programs. 
2. | The Composition of the CSR Committee Chairman- Sh. Navneet Kumar Sureka 

Member - Smt. Sujata Kumar 

Member — Smt. Veena Aggarwal 

3. | Average net profit of the company for last three Rs. (15490.34) Lakhs 

financial vears 
4, | Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount Rs. (309.81) Lakhs 

as in item 3above) 

5 Details of CSR spent dunng the financial vear: 

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial Rs. A448 Lakhs 
year 

b) Amount unspent , if any NIL 

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the | Through Trust. details given below: 
financial year is detailed below: 

CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN 2022-23 

5. [CSR Sector in Project or | Amount Amount spends on Cumu-lative | Amount Spent 

No. | Project and | which the | pro- Outlay projects Expend-iture | direct or 
activities Project is grams (Budget) - into the through 
wlentified | covered Area project or Direct Over- repori-ing implement-ing 

programs Expend- _— period agencies 

i Expend- |p lakhs) | (Rslakhs) 
(Rs. iture(Rs. 

Lakhs) Lakhs) Lakhs) 

1. | Providing | Schedule 
Subsidized | VII- Sec- Haryana. | 44.50 44.48 _ 44.48 Lakhs | 44.48 Lakhs 
Medicines, | (1){it)Erad | Dellu Lakhs Lakhs- / 

education | icating 
through extreme 

schools to | hunger & 

under - poverty, 
previleged | Promoting 
sections of | education 

the society. | & 
Preventive 

Healthcare 



MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 
(AN ISO 14001 & OHSAS 18001 CERTIFIED COMPANY) 

Works - Sohna Road. Sector-25, Faridabad-121004 (Haryana), INDIA 

Ph +91-120-4002000. Fax: +91-129-2231220, Visit us "www manna com 

CIN: L51909WEB1980PL.C033010; e-mail Id- mavria@mauria com 

In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial 
vears or any part thereof the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board 

report -INA 

Responsibility Statement:- 
The MUL CSR committee takes responsibility of the implementation & momtoring of CSR policy and also 

adherence to the CSR objective & policy of the company MUL CSE committee 18 committed to the CSR 

objectives of the company & will ensure that all proposal & projects under the CSR policy will be monitored & 
implemented from time to time. 

Sd/- 
Sd/- 

Navneet Kumar Sureka Sujata Kumaar 

Chairman- CSR Committee Member- CSR Committee 

Date: 04/09/2023 Date: 04/09/2023 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi 



MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 
(AN ISO 14001 & OHSAS 18001 CERTIFIED COMPANY) 

Works - Sohna Road. Sector-25, Faridabad-121004 (Haryana), INDIA 

Ph +91-120-4002000. Fax: +91-129-2231220, Visit us "www manna com 

CIN: L51909WEB1980PL.C033010; e-mail Id- mavria@mauria com 

Projects Approved by the Board for CSR Expenditure 

{A)-Providing Subsidized Medicines, education through schools to under -privileged sections of the 

society 

For MAURIADYOGLTD 

COMPANY SECRETARY 
ACS-21071



MAURTA UDYOG LIMITED 
Annexure - IT 

FORM NO. AOC 2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions during the financial year 2022-23 

not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No. | Particulars Details | 
a) Name (5) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil | 
b) Nature of contracts arrangements transaction Nil | 

c) Duration of the contracts arrangements transaction Nil | 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the Nil | 

value, if any 
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ Nil | 

1) Date of approval by the Board Nil | 
g) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil | 
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required Nil | 

under first proviso to section 188 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions during the financial year 

at Arm’s length basis.-As per Annexure 

| SL. No. Particulars Details 
a} | Mame (5) of the related party & nature of relationship As per 

Annexure 

b) Nature of contracts arrangements transaction 

c) Duration of the contracts arrangements transaction 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 

e} | Date of approval by the Board 
1) Amount paid as advances, if any 

Sd/- Sd/- 
Navneet Kumar Sureka Sujata Kumar 

Mg Director Director 

DIN-00054929 DIN- 01310030 

Date: 04.09.2023



MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

ADC-2 

Annexure - 11 

2022-23 

Sl. No | Name of related party and nature Nature of contracts/ Duration of the Salient terms of the Value (In Rs. 

of relationship arrangements/ contracts/ contracts or Lakhs) 

transactions arrangements/ arrangements or 

transactions transactions 

1 Helpline pharmacy Purchase of goods and As Mutually Agresd As Mutually Agreed 0.64 

Services 

2 Quality Synthetic Industries limited | Sale of goods and As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 952.58 

services 

3 Bihariji 1spat Udyog Limited Purchase of goods and As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1037.98 

services 

4 Quality Synthetic industries Limited | Interest As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 11.99 

5 Sri Narayan Raj Kumar Merchants Interast As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 11.15 

Limited 

6 Bihariji 1spat Udyog Limited Interest As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 25.51 

7 Be Indi Fashion Indi Private Limited | Lease As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 0.70 

2 Taanz Fashion India Private Limited | Leases As Mutually Agread As Mutually Agreed 02.40 

3 Jotindra Steel & Tubes Limited Leases As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 18.00 

10 Quality Synthetic industries Limited | Leases As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 02.00 

11 Vehnoudevi Properties Rent Paid As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1.80 

12 Helpline Pharmacy Sale Of Goods/Sevices As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 0.28 

13 Jotindra Steel & Tubes Limited Sale Of Goods/Sevices As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 0.46 



WB MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 43° ANNUAL REPORT 
Annexure 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Pursuant to provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 3(2) &3(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. the details of remuneration of the employees are given below: 

{2) Top 10 Employee in terms of remuneration who were Employed throughout the financial year: 2022-2023 

Namre 
of If employee is 

Employ relative of any 

ment Qualification Date of Director or Bo of 
1 ~ Designatic | Annual {(Whethe and Commencem A Manager. Equity 

Ng | “ame n Gross r experience of ent of Age provide the Capital 

Contract | the employee | Employment name of such held 
ual or Director of 

Otherwis Manager 

€ 
NavnestK M Co . 

1 | umerSure | i CoS | 3780000 | oon PY |  Gradate | 01.04.1995 | 50¥ms NA 2:84 
5 Director Roll 

. Manager 
Mohit i Company tr - = ~ 

2 Thakur Administra 866996 Roll MBA 13.12.2021 33 Ys NA 0.73 
tion 

E [Poa F.O 898920 | COPAY | Graguate 08.07.2020 59 Yr NA 0.67 
Gupta Roll 

Yogesh Account = Company Ets = i 
4 Mathar Head 888036 Roll Graduate 01.04.1998 62 Yrs NA 0.67 

Officer-on = . Nav: 

5 Deeps Special | 1200000 | SPY | Graduate 01.04.2007 50 Yrs HHAmeRt 135 
Sureka Dito Rell EumarSureka 

Officer on p 
Preml ata : = Company ; Navneet : 

& Eris Hp 780000 Rall Graduate 01.04.1995 68 Y= Roads 0.59 

- R.ohtash Finance - Company — o ” - T0695 ; ji 7 Kumar Head 96956 Roll Graduate 01.01.2005 48 Ye: NA 0.539 

Deepansh VP. - - Company — S— Sr 
g uSureka | Operations 1200000 | oy Graduate 19.07.2021 27 Yr: NA 0.50 

Sandeep Manager Company 1 - “gw AT 9 Humar Pestle iis 840000 Rall Graduate 27.12.2021 29%: NA 0.60 

: _ | Manager Company - . . 
10 | KapilDev | 4, =| 900000 |. 0 Graduate 01-04-2022 41 Yrs NA 0.68 

(b) Employees who were in the receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1.02.00,000 or more per annum © NA 

{e) Emploved for part of the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration not less than Rs. 8.50 000 per month - WA. 

{d) Employes who was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or whole time director or manager 

and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, oot less than 2% of the equity shares of the Company : NA 

Note: 
1. There were no employee in the Company, throughout the financial year or part of the year, who were in receipt of remuneration 

aggregating Rs. 1,02.00,000 or more per annum or Rs. 8,530,000 per month. 
By order of the Board of Directors 

For Mauria Udyog Limited 

Sd/- 

(N.K. Sureka) 
Alanaging Director 

Date: September 04, 2023 

Place: New Delhi
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Chartered Accountants a Rie salu 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Mauria Udyog Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

Wa have audited the accompanying Standalone ind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog Limited 

(“the Company"), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Standalone 

Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Standalone 

Ind AS financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 

for tha possible effects of the matter deseribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 

the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles ganerally accepted in india including Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS"), of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its loss including other comprehensive income, 

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

|. The Company has defaulted in repayment of its borrowing taken from various banks/ NBFCs 

and accordingly these loans have been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) by the 

respective banks/ NBFCs. The Company has not been recognising interest on such loans from 

the date of MPA classification by respective banks/ NBFCs. The amount of interest expenses 

cannot be ascertained. Further, the balances of borrowings are subject to confirmation from the 

respective banks/ NBFCs. 

iil. The Company has classified its investments in unquoted equity shares of other entities to be 

Fair Valued through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH). However, it has not obtained/ 

carried out fair valuation of such unquoted equity shares. The Company has measured 

investments in unquoted equity shares based on Net Asset Value of such equity shares as at 31 

March 2022 wherever the financial statements of such entities are available as on such date. 

The impact of fair valuation cannot be ascertained. 

fll. The Company has not used expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain 

on trade receivables as required by Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”. The impact of such non- 

compliance cannot be ascertained. However, the Company has made a provision of 2 3,287.79 

Lacs against doubtful trade receivables in the current financial year, 



NKSC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

IV, The Company had entered into certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in past 

years, In consequent to which forensic audit was conducted as per the Directions of Hon'ble 

Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between Amrapali Group of Companies and 

Sureka Group of Companies. After which the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order No. Writ 

Petition{sh(Civil) No. 940/2017 dated 2 December 2019 had directed M/s Jotindra Stee! & Tubes 

Limited and Mauria Udyog Limited including associated companies and Directors viz Mr. 

Navneet Kumar Sureka and Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka to deposit 2 16,700.00 Lacs. In response to 

the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, it had filed an application on 9 December 2019 before 

the Hon'ble Supreme Court to accept the Title deeds of immoveable properties belonging to 

Sureka family members and associate companies {based on latest valuation report) worth 

amounting € 16,897.00 Lacs net of incumbency amount of # 3,934.00 Lacs including Properties 

amounting 2 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Mauria Udyog Limited. 

In the financial year 2019-20, the Company had charged 2 1,500.00 Lacs in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss against the above matter on an estimated basis and reduced the value of 

properties (property which is deposited to Hon'ble Suprema Court]. 

The Company has neither provided for liability against this matter, nor any amount has been 

shown as contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets”. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143{10) 

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide & 

basis for our qualified opinion, 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 

in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whale, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 

matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 



NKSC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Loss allowance for Trade receivables (refer 

Note 8 and point iii of Basis for Qualified 

Opinion paragraph) 

The Company has trade receivables of ¥ 

10,103.10 lacs as at 31 March 2023 (net of 

impairment loss of ¥ 3,287.79 lacs). During 

previous year, the Company had recorded a 

charge of ¥ 7,300.38 lacs towards provision for 

doubtful debts for such trade receivables. 

Owing to the nature of operations of the 

Company and related customer profiles, the 

Company has significant long standing trade 

receivable balances, for which appropriate loss 

allowance is required to be created for expected 

credit losses using simplified approach in 

accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109, 

Financial Instruments, measuring the loss 

allowance equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses. 

For the purpose of expected credit loss 

assessment of trade receivables, significant 

judgment is required by the management to 

astimate the timing and amount of realization of 

thesa receivables basis the past history, customer 

profiles, and consideration of other internal and 

external sources of information, including the 

impact of COVID 1% pandemic In aforesaid 

estimates. 

Considering the significant judgement involved, 

increased complexities due to the pandemic, 

high estimation uncertainty and materiality of the 

amounts involved, we have identified loss 

allowance on trade receivables as a key audit 

matter for current year audit. 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

s Understanding the trade receivables process 

with regards to valuation and testing of 

controls designed and implemented by the 

management. 

» Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade 

receivables at year end on sample basis. 

« Obtained a list of outstanding receivables, 

with the identified significant long 

outstanding receivables, and discussed plan 

of recovery lifetime with management. 

s Circularized balance confirmations to a 

sample of trade receivables and reviewed 

the reconciling items, if any. 

» Verified the appropriateness of judgments 

regarding provisions for trade receivables 

and assess as to whether these provisions 

were calculated in accordance with the 

Company's provisioning policies. 

» Tested subsequent settlement of trade 

receivables after the balance sheet date on a 

sample basis, as applicable. 

« Verified the related disclosures made in 

notes to the financial statements in 

accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109. 

+ The Company has not used expected credit 

loss model to assess the impairment loss or 

gain on trade receivables as required by Ind 

AS 109 "Financial Instruments”. 
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(Refer Note 65, read along with point iv of 

Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph) . 

The Company is exposed to a variety of different 

laws, regulations and interpretations thereof 

which encompasses indirect taxation and legal 

matters. In the normal course of business, 

provisions and contingent liabilities. may arise 

from legal proceedings, including regulatory and 

other Governmental proceedings, constructive 

obligations as well as investigations by 

authorities and commercial claims. 

Based on the nature of regulatory and legal cases 

management applies significant judgement 

when considering whether, and how much, ta 

provide for the potential exposure of each 

matter, These estimates could change 

substantially over time as new facts emerge as 

each legal case or matters progresses. 

Given the different views, possible basis the 

interpretations, complexity and the magnitude of 

the potential exposures, and the judgement 

necessary to determine required disclosures, this 

is a key audit matter, 

Litigation, Claims and Contingent Liabilities | Principal audit procedures performed: 

We understood the processes, evaluated the 

design and implementation of controls and 

testad the operating effectiveness of the 

Company's controls over the recording and re- 

assessment of uncertain legal positions, claims 

and contingent liabilities. 

We held discussions with senior management 

including the person responsible for legal and 

compliance to obtain an understanding of the 

factors considered by management in 

classification of the matter as ‘probable’, 

‘possible’ and ‘remote’; 

Examined the Company's legal expenses on 

sample basis and read the minutes of the 

board meetings and the legal compliance 

committee in order to ensure completeness, 

We read the correspondence from Court 

authorities and considered legal opinion 

obtained by the Management from external 

law firms to evaluate the basis used for 

provisions recognised or the disclosures made 

in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

We also obtained direct legal confirmations for 

significant matters from the law firms handling 

such matters to corroborate management's 

conclusions. 

For those matters where Management 

concluded that no provision should be 

recorded, we also considered the adequacy 

and completeness of the Company's 

disclosures made in relation to contingent 

liahilities, 
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Emphasis of Matter 

|. We draw attention to Note 8 to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes the 

classification of disputed and long outstanding trade receivables as non-current aggregating ¥ 

8,027.16 Lacs (net of provision of ¥ 3,287.79 Lacs) wherein the management has explained the 

reasons for not writing off/ provided for such receivables. 

I. ‘We also draw attention to Note 23 to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes 

that ona of the financial creditors of the Company has filed petition under Section 7 of 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 before Hon'ble NCLT. Kolkata Bench vide Company 

Petition No. C.P.(IB) — 138/2022 dated February 23, 2022 for initiation of corporate insolvency 

resolution process. The Company after negotiations with the crediter reached a settlement, 

however, the Company is yet to fully discharge the remaining liability. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters, 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not indude the standalone finandal 

statemants and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us 

after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit ar otherwise appears 

to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Annual Repart, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 

required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charg ed with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in 

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
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detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a trua and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company of to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of this Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of tha Act, we ara 

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

. Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the gaing concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's shility to continue as a going 
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concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Company to cease lo continue as 8 gaing concern. 

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements, including the disclosures. and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, ameng other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We alsa provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable, 

ralated safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with thase charged with governance, we determina those matters that 

ware of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about thie matter ar when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasanably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 

such communication, 

Other Matter 

Proviso to Rule 3(1) af the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books af account using 

accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the 

Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies 

{Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2023. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by Section 197(18) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 

remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid 

down under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. 

(2) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of section 143{11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 1", a statement on 

the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
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(3) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, wa report that: 

a) 

b) 

€) 

gl 

hi 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt 

with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS 

specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder except for the 

matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph; 

the matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion & Emphasis of Matter paragraphs, in our 

opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company: 

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 

31,2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal finandial controls with reference to Standalone Ind 

AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we 

give our separate report in "Annexure 2°, 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according te the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company, as detailed in Note 65 to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, has 

disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2023; 

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

Hence, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise; 

iii, There ware no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 

i, (a) The Management has represented that, to the bast of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
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“Intermediaties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Company 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

{h) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been received by the Company fram any person(s) or entity(ies}), incduding 

foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understa nding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that tha Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nathing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 

the representations under (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the 

compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 

For NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICA| Firm Registration MNo.020076N 

0” 4 yal 
Partner 

Membership No.: 521986 

UDIN: 235219B6BGODNKI498 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor's Report 

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent 

Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2023] 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone 

Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into can sideration the information, explanations and 

written representation given to us by the management and the books of account and other records examined 

by us in the normal course of audit, we repart that: 

i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of property, plant & equipment. 

{B) The Company has maintained praper recards showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of the property, plant & equipment 

which, in our opinion, is reasonable having reg ard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 

assets, During the year, the property, plant and equipment of the Company have not been physically 

verified by the management and as such, we cannat comment an material discrepancies existing, if 

any. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is not reasonable having regard to the size of the 

Company and the nature of its assets, 

{¢) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessen 

and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of lessee) disclosed in the Standalone ind AS 

financial staternants of the Company are held in the name of the Company except for the details 

given below: 

Land/ | Total | Leasehald/ | Gross Block as at | Met Block as at Remarks 

Building | number | Freehold March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023 

of cases 
{% in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs) 

Land 2 Frashold B,681.90 8,681.90 | Refer Note 11 of 

accompanying 

Standalone Ind 

AS Financial 

Statements 

Building 1 Leasehold 33640 28251 | Refer Note 3 of 

accompanying 

Standalone Ind 

AS Financial 

| 
Statements | 
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ii) 

if) 

(d) 

(el 

(a) 

{b) 

(a 

(B) 

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets during 

the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for 

holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and 

rules made thereunder, 

The Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for goods- 

in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, For stocks lying with third parties at the year end, these 

have not been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As 

informed, ne material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out during the 

yaar, 

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during the 

year, in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of fixed deposits 

and there is no requirement to file quarterly returns/statements with such banks and/or financial 

institutions. Therefare, reporting under clause {ii)ib) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

During the year, the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of leans, or 

stood quarantee, or provided security to the following entities: 

Sr | Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in the 

No 
nature of loans 

1 Aggregate amount 
1 

granted / provided 

during the year 

- Subsidiaries Mil Mil hil Mil 

- Joint Ventures Nil Nil Mil Mil 

- Associates Nil Nil Nil Nil 

- Others Nil Nil ¥ 541.32 Lacs Mil 

2 Balance outstanding 

as at March 31, 2023 

in respect of above 

| cases 

- Subsidiaries Nil Mil Mil Nil 

- Joint Ventures hil Wil Nil Mil 

- Associates Mil Nil Mil Nil 

|__| -Others Nil Nil ¥ 23642 Lacs Nil 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

conducted by us, we are of the opinion that, the investments made, guarantees provided, security 

given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 

and guarantees provided by the Company during the year are not prejudicial to the interest of the 

Company. 
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(iv) 

[v) 

(wi) 

(wii) 

(<] 

{e} 

il 

al 

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of the loans and advances 

In the nature of loans have not been stipulated as these loans are repayable on demand. Thus, we 

are unable to comment whether the repayments or receipts during the year are regulas and report 

amounts overdue for more than ninety days, if any, as required under clause (iii) (d) of paragraph 3 

of the Order. 

There were no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted which has/have fallen due during 

the year, have been renewed or extended. Further, there were no instances of fresh loans being 

granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. 

The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Details of the same are as below: 

Particulars 
All parties | Promoters Related Parties 

Aggregate amount of loans/advances in 

Mature of loan 

- Repayable on demand (A) 
il Nil Nil 

-Agreement does not specify any terms or 

period of repayment (B] 7541.32 Lacs Nil ¥ 541.32 Lacs 

Total (A+B) 
% 541,32 Lacs Nil # 541.32 Lacs 

Percentage of lpans/advances in nature of 100% 100% 100% 

loan to the total loans 

Based on information and explanation given to us in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and 

securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

rot accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Sections 73 ta 76 of the Act and 

the rules framed there under, Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order 

is not applicable. 

We have broadly reviewad the books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of 

products where the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 

under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under and we are of the 

opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We 

have, however, not made 3 detailed examination of the records with a view to determing whether 

they are accurate or complete. 

The Company is not regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues 

including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added 

tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, though 

the delays in deposit have not been serious. 
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According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed dues in respect of provident 

fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, 

excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, which were outstanding, at 

the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable are as 

follows: 

Name of the Nature of the | Amount | Periodto | DueDate | Date of | 

statute dues (Ein which the Payment 

Lacs) amount 

relates 

The Employees’ | Provident Fund 625| 2019-20 Various Various 

Provident Funds 
dates dates 

and Miscellansous 

Provisions Act, 1952 

Employees’ State | Employee State 236| 2019-20 | Various | Notyet 

Insurance Act, 1948 | Insurance 
dates paid 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, disputed dues in respect of provident 

fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, salas tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, 

excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, which were outstanding, at 

the year-end for a period of more than six manths from the date they became payable are as 

follows: 

Name of | Nature of | Amount Amount Period to which Forum where 

the statute | the dues | (F In Lacs) paid the amount dispute is 

under relates pending 

protest 

Income Tax | Income 17.16 Nil Assessment year Commissioner of 

Act, 1961 tax 
2008-09 Income Tax 

Income Tax | Income 6.45 Nil Assessment year Commissioner of 

Act, 1967 tax 
2009-10 Income Tax 

Income Tax | Income 163 nil pssessment year | Commissioner of 

Act, 1961 tax 
2010-11 Income Tax 

income Tax | Income 21.59 Mil Assessment year Assessing officer 

Act, 1961 tax 
2012-13 

Income Tax | Income 77.16 Mil Assessment year Central 

Act, 1961 ax 
2017-18 Processing 

Centre, Bengaluru 

Income Tax | Income 15.44 Nil Assessment year Central 

Act, 1961 tax 
2018-19 Processing 

Centre, Bengaluru 
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(wii) 

(ix) 

1x) 

(xi) 

ial 

5) 

fc) 

{d) 

(e) 

{=} 

(al 

Income Tax | Income 3,770.54 Nil Assessment year Central 

Act, 1961 tax 
2020-21 Processing 

Centre, Bengaluru 

Wa have not come across any transaction(s) which were previously not recorded in the books of 

account of the Company that have bean surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has defaulted in 

repayment of loans to banks and finandal institutions during the year. The details of which are as 

follows: 

Nature of borrowing | Name of lender Amount Period of Delay 

{% In Lacs) 

Term Loan Housing Developmant 2,083.07 1-44 months 

Finance Corporation Limited 

Term Loan Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 179343 | 1-41 months | 

i. Total 327650 | 1 

The Company has not been declared willul defaulter by any bank of financial institution of 

government or any government authority. 

The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause (ix){c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

On an overall examination of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds 

raised on short-term basis have, been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

On an overall examination of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the 

Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Companies Act. 

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 

joint ventures or sesociate companies, as defined under the Companies Act, 

Based upon the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer including debt instruments and term loans. Therefore, reporting under clause (x){a) of 

paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable 

Based upan the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, 

reporting under clause {#)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
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{ain 

(xiii) 

(wiv) 

(xv) 

fev) 

{avi 

(avid) 

(xix) 

{b) 

© 

ta) 

(by) 

and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company 

or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor 

have we been informed of any such instance by the management. 

No report under saction 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by the 

auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, during tha year of upto the date of this report. 

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and upte the date 

of this report. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 

a Midhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under dause (xii) of paragraph 1 of the Order is not 

applicable. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by the 

Company with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where 

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements etc, 

as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

In our opinion, the Campany has an intarnal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 

of its business. 

We have considerad the Internal Audit Reperts of the Company issued till date, for the period under 

audit, 

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not antered into any 

non-cash transactions with directors or persans cannected with him during the year and hence, 

provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to tha Company. 

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not required to be 

registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under 

clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses far tha current financial year. In the immediately 

preceding financial year, cash loss amounted to 2 495.78 Lacs, 

There has been no resignation of the statutary auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting 

under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accom panying Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 

gxamination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we believe that material uncertainty exists 

35 on the date of this audit repart and due to which the Company may not be capable of meeting 

ite liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 1o the future 

viability of the Company. Wa further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the 
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(ax) 

{xi} 

(a) 

(bh 

audit report. We further draw attention to note 8 of the accom panying Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements which describes the measures taken by the Company to recover its trade receivables. 

There are no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing 

projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil ta the Actin compliance with second 

proviso to section 135(5) of the Companies Act. Hence, reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 

of the Order is not applicable. 

There are no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) en other than ongoing 

projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Actin compliance with second 

proviso to saction 135(5) of the Companies Act, Hence, reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 

of the Order is not applicable. 

The reporting under clause 30d) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 

financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of 

said clause under this report. 

For NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 020076N 

Pri 
Partner 

Membership No: 521986 

UDIN: 23 521986BGODNKIASS 

k Goyal 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report 

[Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent 

Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2023) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 201 3 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mauria Udyog Limited (“the 

Company”) as of March 31,2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility far Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act, 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 

both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, 

Dur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion on the Company's internal financial controls systam over financial reporting. 



NKSC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 

the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of Standalone ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control aver finandal reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL 

For NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.020078 

EF $0 

Partner 

Membership No. 521986 

Din: 23521986BGQDNKI498 

Place: Mew Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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Mauris Udyag Limited 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(AN amacits are Tin aes unless stated ethene) 

Incoma 

Ravens from operation 

Crthes income 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Cost of materials consumed 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Changes in invenlones 

Employne benefit expense 

Finance costs 

Deprecation and amonsation expense 

Other avpensas 

Total Expenses 

(Lows) befors exceptional items and lax 

Less: Esceptional dems 

(Lom) before tax 

Tax expanse 

Current tax 

Deferred tax charge/{henafith 

{Lasal after lax 

Other eamprehenslve incame/{lae) 

Items that will nat be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

= Remaasurarant of sgunty imdumsnds 

~ Remeasurerment of defined benefit plans 

= Income Lax relating to these (ams 

tema that will be reclassified subsequently to profit ar los 
- Foreign curancy translation resarve 

- income tax rlating fo these ilemy 

Total compralensive (long) 

Earnings/(Loss) per equity share 

Bape and dilutes fleas) ger share 

The accompanying nates farm an integral part of trese Branca! fatements 

As por our rapa of ven dite 

For WESC & Co. 

Chartered Sccountants 

Firm Reglstration No, I20076N 

Pa 
Mambarchin No: 521966 

UDI: 23521980BGO DNAS 58 

Place: Nw Dilla 
Duate: May 30, 2023 

Mate Far the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 3023 March 31, 2022 

Ell 23,169.00 24,111.36 
2,499.92 49684 

25,668.92 14,610.10 

3 1140959 1323357 

EF] 5027 apaga 

15 (L045 34) BT 62 

36 1.204 52 91584 

IF 1554.80 5T0 

32 301.33 M0 

5 SAR A2 343.08 

25,959.95 25,448 01 

221.87) 1837.87) 

297.07} (BITE) 

Sk = . 

5b BRI [613.41) 

E2812 (613.41) 

319.15} (224.40) 

239 aa 

ad 40.38) 3-391 

56 11.84 in 

{26.123 a.70 

994 50 

(30 0.761 
(2.1) 1.72 

[333.47 [221 98) 

= 10.69) 1.17) 

For andyen behalf of the Board of Dwecton of 
Ma Limited 

Haves 

Manag ng Dwrecior 

DIM; 0054989 

p= 
Chief Finanoal Officer 

PAN: ADMNEGO TIEN 

Place Maw Dnlhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 

Lael 
Sujata ar 

Dhsector 

Dit: 071370030 

Nivya 
Divya 
Company Socretary 

ACE A210 

ol
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Mauris Udyag Limited 

Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 317, 2023 

LAN amounts are ¥ in lies, unless stated otherwise) 

Cash flow from operating activities 

[Loss befor tax 

Adjustments to reconcile (loss) before tax to cash generated from operations 

Brovision for employes bensfits 

Dupfeciation and amarti sation expanses 

Impairment of security deposits 

(Profit)flos: on sale of investments 

(Profitifloss on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Interest income 

Dividend inearma 

Liabifities ng longer required written back 

Finance costs 

Other compichensive incoma 

Operating prefit/ (loss) before working capital changes 

Adjustments for (increase) decrease in operating assets 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

|ventodies 

Trade receivables 

Loans 

Other finznoiaf assets 

Other non-financial amets 

Adjustments for increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 

Trade payables 

Other financial labbties 

Provisions 

Otbver non-financial ables 

Cash generated from operations 

Less Income; tas paid, net of refunds 

Net cash flow generated from operating activities [A] 

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities 

(Payments far) FPL istargible assets and CWP 

lingreaselfdecrease in vestments 

Interest imoome 

Dividend incoma 

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) 

Cash flows from (used in] financing activitios 

{Payments lar) borrowings 

Finance costs 

Net cash inflow (used In) financing activities [C) 

Net [decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (A+B +C) 

Cash and cash equivalents a the baginning af the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Notes to Statement of cash flows! 

Components of cach and bank balances (refer Mates 14 and 15) 

Cash and cash eguivalents 

Other bank balances 
Cash and bank balances at end of the year 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 11, 2023 March 11, 2022 

(291.07) 837.81) 

29 nn 

30.33 34203 
1,478.24 . 

oro (0.96) 

3.96 (1.599) 

(102.10 (63.26) 

10.08) no) 

(278.18) 203% 

7.554,80 357.00 
(12.25) 243 

3,681.23 0.28) 

41,48) 1,291 4%) 

332.12) 11447 

6755.75 41126 

315 337 

110.66 (174.07) 

B20 1339.15 

(1,805.42) 1.005.593 

242038 (25.45) 

18.28 (10.58) 

451252 221730 

15322.11 1,593.99 

(21,881 14.68%) 

15,300.23 1,574.10 

(T&T.281 ©s12.0m 

11.07 [3.38) 

02.10 63.26 

0.08 gz 

(654.03) (552.17) 

(12,140.28) 1802 46) 

(2,554.80) 1557.81) 
(14,695.08) (1,359.47) 

(48.47) (332.54) 
121.84 45438 

72.97 121.84 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 11, 2022 

7287 121.84 

1 A55 6% 1474.20 
1,528.66 1,536.04 

—Lontinued on rar page 



Mauris Udyog Limited 
Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

HAF amounts are Tin lacs, unless stated olhanaise) 

Continued from previous page 

{ii}. Reconcliston between the opening and dosing balances ir the balance sheet for Rabilites arising from financing activities 

Particulars MNarn-current borrowings Currant Interest on 

(including current maturities) borrowings borrowings 

For the year ended March 31,2023 
Balance as at Apel 1, 2022 1251692 218270 4.35 

Lesa dravweals/finterest accuned during the year - 252284 2554.80 

Ind AS adpstments [5,615 45) - = 

Loan repaymant/interest payment during the year (833.000 (11,461.72) (554.71) 

Other non-cash charges 1104.11) 14.11 2566 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 5.96438 12,993.74 7.09 

For the year ended March 37. 2022 

Balance a1 a1 Agel 1, 2021 19,500.17 15,847.11 195 

Loan drawalsfinterest zccured during the year E 1.39069 557.01 

Adjustment for processing fee . PLE . 

| can repayment/interest payment during the year (Géd.46] 11,589.33) (556.51) 

Dither nar-cash charges {B.354.79) 6354.79 - 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 12,516.92 21.827.91 4,35 

These are no non-cash changes an account of offeer of changes in foreign xchange rates and fair valiies, 

{iii}. The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the “ladirect hMeshod™ as sel out in the (nd AS - 7 "Statoment of Cash Flows” 

specifivd undies Section 133 of the Companies Ac, 2013. 

(lv), The above Statement af cash flaws thauld be read in conjuction with the aceampanying notes 1 to 6%. 

As per ur report of even date, 

For MKSC & Ce. 

Chastared Accountants 

Firm Registration Ma. 020076N 

Priyan 
Partnar 

ldembershio No: 521586 

DIN; 23521 9B6BGODNKS40E 

Place: New Defy 

Date: May 30, 2023 

For and on bakall of the Board of Directors of 

Mauria Udyog Limited 

Navneet Kumar Sureka 

Managing Director 

Dik; QOD58%29 

le 
Chief Financial Gificer 

PAN: ACNPGITOIM 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 

DIN: 01310030 

Siva Pgpad 
Company Secretary 

ACS A210 
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Mauria Udyeg Limited 

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

T= 

{il 

ii) 

(iii 

Reporting Entity 

Mauria Udyog Limited (the Company] is a public company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at 

Anand Jyoti Building, 41 Metajl Subhas Road, Room No. 107, 1st Floor, Kolkata WB — 700001. The Company was 

incorparated on September 24, 1980. The shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (B5E) 

and Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE). The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of LPG 
cylinders and related accessories like valves and regulators, and textile products. 

Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards: 

These Standalone Ind AS financial etatemants ("the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance 

with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs MCA") under Section 

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly 2pplied the accounting policies 

for all the periods presented in these financial statements, 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board 

of Directors on May 30, 2023. 

The significant accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial statements are 

included in Mote 2. These policies have been applied consistently by the Company for all the periods presented 

in these financial statements. 

Current and nen-current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with the 

Company's narmal operating cycle other criteria sel out in tha Schedule Ill to the Act. 

) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (3), which is alse the Company's functional currency. 

All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated. 

| Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items: 

Items Basis of measurement 

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value 

Net defined benefit asset/liability Fair value of plan asset less present value of defined 

benefit obligation 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(wv) Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related 

disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Significant management judgements: 

» Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an 

assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

« Business model assessment — The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups 

of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement 

reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance 

measured, tha risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers 

of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are 

derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are 

consisient with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's 

continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held 

continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and 

neeardingly prospective change to the dassification of those assets are mada, 

» Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment 

of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of 

recoverable amount of the assets. 

+ Classification of leases — Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determing the lease term as the non-cancellable period 

of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is reasonably 

certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-leasa basis and thereby 

assassos whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercsed. 

in evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements 

undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the |wase and the importance of tha 

underlying asset to the Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the 

availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term 

reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the 

Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contract. 

» Expected credit loss (ECL) = The measurement of expected credit less allowance for financial assets measured 

at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions 

and credit behaviour (eg. likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses), The Company makes 

significant judgements regarding the following while assessing expected credit loss: 

* Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk 

* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 

product/market and the associated ECL 

= Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(i 

Provisions — At each Balance Sheet date, based on the management judgment, changes in facts and legal 

aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. 

However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

Significant estimates: 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual 

values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the 

expected utility of the assets, Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence 

that may change the utility of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying 

assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary 

increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact tha DBO amount and the annual defined 

benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques te determine the fair value of financial 

instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions 

consistent with how market participants would price the instrument, 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Revenue 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for 

determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning 

revenue earned fram contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone 

selling price basis, using a five-step model, Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Censtruction 

Contract. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. 

Revenue from sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised upan transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount that 

reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those preduct or services at the 

fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which Is generally the transaction price, net of any 
taxes/duties and discounts. 

The Company satisfies a perfarmance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria 

is met; 

a The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's 

performance as the Company performs; or 

b. The Company's performance creates of enhances an asset that the customer cantrals as the asset is 

created or enhanced; or 

c The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and 

an entity has an enforceable right ta payment for performance completed to date. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Fer performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point 

in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied 

Revenue from sale of products is recognised al a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied, 

Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export sales 

is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Company recognises provision 

for sales return. based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale. 

Other operating income 

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and 

conditions attached to the benefits ara satisfied 

Other income 

Rental income 

Rental income fram investment property is recognised as part of ather income in profit or lass on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general 

inflation, Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of 

the lease. 

Interest income 

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method 

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through 

the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset 

Commission income 

Commission income are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss only when the relevant services have been 

rendered, 

{iii} Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benefits: 

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the 

related services are provided, Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus ele. are recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as 

current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet, 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

iv] 

(wl) 

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences 

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The liability 

in respect of compensated absences ls provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit 

Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are 

recognised immediately in other comprehensive income, 

Foreign exchange transactions and translations 

Initial recognition: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency amount 

of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currancy at the date of transaction. 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monetary assets and Fabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated translated 

using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are measured 

in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of 

transaction except far non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates 

at the date when fair value is determined. 

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatemant of the Company's monetary 

items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous 

financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets) are 

recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise. 

Foreign operations: 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR the functional currency of the Company. 

at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into 

Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction of an average rate if the average rate 

approximates the actual rale at the date of the transaction 

Tax expense 

Incame tax comprises current and deferred tax, I: is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the 

stent that it relates to & business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other 

comprehensive income. 

Current fax 

Current lax comprises the expected lax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 

adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the 

bast estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related 

to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 

date. 
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 

recognised amounts, and itis Intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

Deferred fax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of tomporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 

tax is alse recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits, Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a 

business combination and that affects neither accounting nar taxable profit or loss at the time of the 

transaction; 

- taxable temporary differences arising an the initial recognition of goadwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 

against which they can bie used. The existence of unused tax losses is strang evidence that future taxable prafit 

may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax 

asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or thera is convincing other evidence 

that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax 

assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the 

extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

(wi) Inventories 

Raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued 

at lower of cost or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by 

item basis. Cost comprises of all cast of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing them 

to their respective present location and condition, Cost is determined using first in, first out method of inventory 

valuation, 

Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value. 

Net reafisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management's estimate based on demand 

and market of the inventories, 

(vii) Leases 

As lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor classified as finance or operating lease. Lease income from operating 

leases where the Company is a lesser is recognised in income an a straight-line basis over the lease term unless 

the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected 

inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. 

UD) 
o
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Long term employee benefits: 

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund 

All employess of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined 

contribution plan. Both the employee and the omployer make monthly contributions to the plan at & 

predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 

1852, These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India The 

Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for 

contribution to defined contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expanse in statement of profit 

and loss in the period during which the related services are rendered by the employees. 

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuily 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit pian other than a defined contribution plan. 

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments 

to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount 

equivalent to 15 days basie salary for each completed year of service, Vesting occurs upon completion of five 

years af service. Banefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity is accounted for 

on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. 

The present value af such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past 

service cast and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the abligations are to be 

settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change 

in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income ar expense in the other comprehensive income. The 

Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future henafit 

that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair 

value of any plan assets 

The Company determines the net interest expense/lincome) on the net defined benefit lisbility/tasset) for the 

period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 

annual period to the then-net defined benefit liablity/ (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined 

benefit llability/{asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense 

and other expenses related to dafined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 

to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recogmsed 

immediately in the statement of profit and loss, The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of 

a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

The Plan assets of the Company are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India through a trust created by 

the Company in terms of an insurance policy taken on fund obligations with respect to its gratuity plan. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

{viil) Cash and cash equivalents 

(kx) 

Cash and cash equivalants consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible ta cash with original maturities of three months or less at the time of 

purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 

are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets 

Provisi 

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation ay a result of a past event that probably 

requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 

If tha effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 

cash flows (representing the bast estimate of the expenditure required to settla the present obligation at the 

balance sheet date] at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 

the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised 2s finance cost. 

Contingent liability 

Contingent liabilities are possiole obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be 

confirmed by the cecurrence or nen-sccurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not whally within the 

control of the Company, Whara it is not probable thit an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the 

amaunt cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed a5 a contingent liability, unless thie probability 

of outflow of econamic benefits is remote, 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are possible assets that anses from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non-oecurrence of ene or mare uncertain future events not whally within the control of 

the Company. 

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress) 

Recognition and measurement 

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Freehold land is carried 

at cost All other items of proparty, plant ard equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever 

applicable), which includes capitalised harrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non- 

refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of 

bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing 

the item and restoring the site an which it is located. 
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If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 

accounted for as separgte tems (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and 

equipment recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 

deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amaunt of recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and 

the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a 

separate asset is derecognised when replaced. 

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period 

in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value 

over their useful life using straight fine method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods 

are as uncer and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule II of the Act. 

The useful lives of the assets are as under: 

Particulars Useful lives (in years) 

Tangible assets: 

Land Indefinite 

Bullding | 30 Years 

Ownership flat 60 years 

Plant & machinery 15 Years 

Electrical installations 10 Years 

Dies 15 Years 

Vahicles B Years 

Cranes 15 Years 

Measuring & tasting 10 Years 

Furniture & fixture 10 Years 

Office building 60 years 

Office equipment 5 Years 

Computers 3 Years 

Air conditioners and fans 10 Years 
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Truck trailers 8 Years 

Fire-fighting equipment 15 Years 

Solar power generating system 8 Years 

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives 

as given above best rearesent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on 

addition ta property, plant and equipment |s provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for 

intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date 

of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be. 

Depreciation methad, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at gach financial year-and, and changes, if 

any, are accounted for prospectively. 

(xi) Intangible assets 

Recognition and measurement 

An intang/ble asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic banefits attributable to the asset 

will flow te the Group and where its cost can be reliably measured. 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less 

accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairmant losses, Cost comprises the purchase price and any 

cost attributable ta bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use 

Amortisation 

Amartisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the 

straight-line method and is included In depredation and amertisation in the statement of profit and loss. 

The useful livas of intangible assets are as follows: 

Particulars Useful lives {in years) | 

Intangible assets: 

Computer software 3 years | 

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, |f 

any, are accounted for prospectively. 

Losses arising from the retirement of and gain er losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and 

recognised as income or expense in the statement of prafit and loss 

{xii} Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewsd at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 

at's ar CGU's recoverable amount is estimated. Why 
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Fer impairment testing, assets that do not generale independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash- 

generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are 

largely mdependent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGLs, 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual ssset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less 

costs to sell Value in use is based an the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specie 

ta the CGU (or the asset). 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment lass recognised in 

respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CEU, and then 

te reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

After Impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 

remaining useful life. 

(xiii) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs 

directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time 

ta get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are 

recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(xiv) Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated, All other financial 

assats and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument, 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to its acquisition of issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit and loss, 

Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and lass is expensed in the statement of 

profit and loss, 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: 

* amortised cost, 

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCIL or 

+ Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

The classification depends on tha entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 

terms of the cash flows, 
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the 

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 

as at FVTPL: 

« the asset is held within & business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and 

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt investment is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at 

FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 

fiows and selling financial assets; and 

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to 

present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI [designated as FVOCI = equity investment), 

This alection is made an an investment by investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or VOC! as described above are measured 

at FWTPL This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably 

designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FYOC| 

or at FYTBL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a 

portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to 

management. The information considered includes: 

» the stated policies and objectives for the portfolia and the operation of those policies in practice. These 

include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a 

particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related 

liabilities ar expected cash outflows or reafising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

+ how the parformance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management; 

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are managed; 

s how managers of the business are compensated ~ e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value 

of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

+ the froquency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales 

and expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that de not qualify for derecognition are not 

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets 

Financial assats that are held for trading ar are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value 

basis are measured at FYTPL, 
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Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 

recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated 

with the principal amount eutstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and 

casts (eq, liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as # profit margin, 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company 

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a 

contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet 

this condition, In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows, 

+ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment 

and extension features; and 

» terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g, non- recourse features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the salely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment 

amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of prineipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, 

which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract Additionally, for 3 

financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium ta is contractual par amount, a feature that permits 

or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued {but 

unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) 

is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial 

recognition 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at amartised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, If any. Interest income and impairment 

are recognised in the statement of prafit and loss. Any gain ar loss on derecognition is recognised in statement 

of profit and loss. 

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assats are subsequuntly measured at fair value. Net gains and losses. induding 

any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, 

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the 

effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. 

Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are 

reclassified to profit or lass. 

Equity investments at FOC: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as 

income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or less. 

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amertised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at 

FUTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or itis a derivative or It is designated as such on initial recognition 
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, 

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are 

recagnised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain of loss on derecognition is also recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss 

Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and 

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to 

settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

B ho. 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or it transfers the nights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially 

all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither 

transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the 

financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains 

aither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not 

derecognised. 

Einancial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when itz contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 

expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the 

modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based an the modified terms is 

recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and 

the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and less. 

Impairment of financial instruments 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses oni 

«Financial assets measured at amorlised cost; and 

Financial assets measured at FVOC|- dabt investments 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt 

securities at FVOCH are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or mare events that have 

a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a 

financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data: 

» significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
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+ abreach of contract such as a default er being past due for agreed credit period; 

+ the restructuring of a lean or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider 

otherwise; 
s itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; ar 

s the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Expected credit loss 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that rasult from all possible default events over the 

expected life of a financial instrument. 

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that 

are possible within 12 manths after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument 

is less than 12 months). 

In all cases, the maximum period considered whan estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual 

period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 

When datermining whether the eredit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 

and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information 

that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 

information and analysis, based an the Company's historical experience 2nd informed credit assessment and 

including forward looking information. 

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed 

credit period. 

The Campany considers a financial asset to be in default wher: 

« the barrewer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group 

to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

« the finandal asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 

present value of all cash shortfalls (ie, the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance 

with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount 

of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheat 
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Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is 

no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtar does 

not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amaunts subject to 

the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activitias in order 

to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

(xv) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to eguity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 

average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as banus issue, 

share split or consolidation of shares. 

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as 

at the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a later date. 

(xvi) Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reparting provided to the chief 

operating decision makar. 

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment 

information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate 

resources to the segments and assess ther performance 

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management befieves that such information is the most 

relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these 

industries, Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. 

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further: 

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other incoma directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment 

including inter-segment revenue. 

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the 

sagment result, Expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments are 

included under unallocable expenditure, 
3. Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallocable 

income, 

4, Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments, 

Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a whale 

and not allocable to any segment. 

The Board of Director(s) are collectively tha Company's "Chief Operating Decision Maker” or "CODM' within the 

meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 46 for segment information. 
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Maurin Udyog Limited 
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 37, 2023 

(if amounts are ¥ in facs, unless stated otherwise) 

Capital work-in-progress As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Balance at the beginning - B72 

Addition during the year: 

Building material purchased dunng the year 268.91 14.37 

Capitalised during the year: 

Building (85.97) (51.0%) 

Balance at the end 183.94 - 

Capital work-in-progress ageing As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Projects in progress 

Less than 1 year 183.94 - 

1-2 years . " 

2-3 yaars - 

More than 3 years . - 

183.94 - 

Investment in subsidiary As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Unguoted. at cost 

Strawberry Star India Private Limited 1.68 

119,999 (March 31, 2022: Nil) equity shares of @ 10 each) 
1.68 - 

Footnotes: 

{i1. There are no significant restrictions an the right of awnership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal 

(il), Name of Entity Relationship Place of % of Accounting 

business Ownership interest Method 

Strawberry Star India Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% Cost 

Space intentionally left blank. 



Maurin Udyog Limited 
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

[Ail amounts are ¥ in jacs, unless stated otherwise) 

7 Investments 

Investment in equity instruments (At fair value through OCI) 

Quoted 

Agritech India Limited 
(780 (March 31, 2022: 780) equity shares of 2 10 each) 

Fortune International Limited 

110,000 {March 31, 2022: 10,000) equity shares of ¢ 10 each) 

Bihari lspat Udyog Limited 

[1,000,800 (March 31, 2022: 1,00,800) equity shares of ¥ 10 each) 

Sri Narayan Raj Kumar Merchants Limited 
{28,530 [March 31, 2022- 28530) equity shares of ¥ 10 each] 

Quality Synthetic Industries Limited 

(36,650 [March 31, 2022 36,650) equity shares of 10 each) 

Reliance Industries Limited 

(9 (March 31, 2022 9) equity shares of 10 cach) 

Math Bio-Genes (india) Limited 

(B58 (March 31, 2022: B58) equity shares of ¥ 10 each) 

Total (A) 

Unquoted 

Bihari International Limited (refer footnote i) 

[20,000 (March 31, 2022: 20,000) equity shares) 

ST Engineering Services Limited 

{2,880 (March 31, 2022: 2 480) equity shares of ¥ 100 each) 

Bihariji Fancy Fibers and Fabrics Limited (refer foomate ii) 

(471,771 (March 31, 2022: 471,771) equity shares) 

V1. Estates Private Limited (refer footnote I) 

(40,000 (March 31, 2022: 40,000) equity shares) 

Amrapall Smart City Private Limited (refer footnote ii) 

{1,000 (March 31, 2022 1,000) equity shares) 

Synrgy Freightways Private Limited 
(490 (March 31, 2022: 490) equity shares of 100 each) 

SKD Extates Private Limited 

{4,900 March 31, 2022: 4,900) equity shares of T 100 each} 

Magnum Products Private Limited 

(Nil (March 31, 2022: 12,500) equity shares of 2 10 each) 

Bihari Highrise Private Limited 

(10,890 (March 31, 2022; 890) equity shares of © 10 sach) 

Az at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

073 0.96 

2.50 530 

153 153 

18.43 1843 

49.40 4540 

8.21 024 

1.21 183 

76.41 79.69 

GED 0.35 

5.16 587 

57.28 5092 

£0.00 BO.00 

0.10 0.10 

562 $62 

5199 5267 

. 1555 

. 0.06 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(AY amounts ane ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

«Continued from previous page 

Bihari Properties Private Limited 

(B50 (March 31, 2022: B50) equity shares of ¥ 10 each) 

Bihariji Developers Private Limited 

(Mil (March 31, 2022: 1,780) equity shares of 2 10 each) 

Sarvome Housing Private Limited 

(S00 (March 31, 2022: 900) equity shares of 10 each) 

Adish Developers Private Limited 
{Nil (March 31, 2022: 120) equity shares of ¥ 100 each) 

Bihari Estate Private Limited 

(400 (March 31, 2022: £00) equity shares of ¥ 10 each) 

VL Land & Housing Private Limited 

(1.200 (March 37, 2022: 400) equity shares of T 100 Bach) 

Achal Estates Private Limited 

{400 {March 31, 2022: 400) equity shares of 2 100 sach) 

Bihariji Land & Housing Private Limited 
(110 {March 31, 2022: 110) equity shares of ¥ 100 each) 

VEBM Estates Private Limited 

{Nil (March 31, 2022: 8D) equity shares of T1700 each) 

DS Software Limited (refer footnote ii} 

11,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,000) equity shares] 

JCT Electronics Limited (refer footnote ii) 

[2,500 (March 31, 2022: 2,500) equity shares] 

Maving Picture Co. India Limited (refer footnote i) 
(4300 (March 31, 2022: 4,300) equity shares) 

JK Pharmachem Limited (refer footnote ii) 
{10,000 (March 31, 2022; 10,000) equity shares) 

Suraj Stone Corporation Limited (refer footnate il) 
(19,000 {March 31, 2022; 19,000) equity shares) 

Total (B} 

(A+B) 

Footnotes: 

Book value of quoted investments 

Book value of unguoted Investments 

Market value of quoted Investments 

Na information regarding face value of such investments is avalable with the Company. 

. Fer explanation on the Company risk management process, rofer note 48 

As mt As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

= 0.05 

& 0.18 

013 0.07 

= 0.26 

an 0.09 

1.27 0.43 

063 0.63 

oso oR: 

057 as? 

204.11 214.28 

180.52 293.97 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

T7641 79.69 

20401 2laze 

Taal 79.69 

There are no significant restrictions on the right of ownarship, real sability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

{A amounts are ¥ in lacs unless stated otherwise) 

[wii 

(wii, 

Trade receivables {non-current) As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Unsecured - at amortized cost 

Trade receivables considered doubtful 11.314.95 2217153 

Leas: imparment loss allowance (3,287.79) (7,300.38) 

8,027.16 14,877.15 

Footnotes: 

The Company has not measured expected credit loss of trade receivable 35 per Ind AS 109 Finandal Instruments’ [Refer Note 48) 

Trade receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks and others. (Refer Note 26) 

For explanation on the Company risk management process; refer Note 48. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally received in the Company's operating cycle. 

No trade receivables are due from directar or other officer of the Company and firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a 

director or a member either jointly or severally with other persons. 

The Company has initiated proceedings under Section § of insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against its trade receivables M/s. Linkwise 

Marketing Private Limited and M/s. Nexus Commosales Private Limited, before the NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide Company Petition No. CP. 

{IB)/BBIKBY and 1908134/01725 of 2021 and the matter is curently pending before the Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench. Hon'ble NCLT has 

accepted the matier. 

There ace certain other outstanding trade receivables which have not been realized on account of delays and long process. The details of such 

trade receivables which are eutstanding for a considerable period of time are given below. The management is monitoring these receivables 

continuously and is taking appropriate stops to recover these receivables. 

In the opinion of the management, that the amount will not be recovered in the next 12 months. Hence, the same has been classified as non- 

current in the financial statements and the Company has made necessary provision, wherever required. 

Trade receivables ageing As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Undisputed trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

0-6 manths 
- 71.13 

6-12 months 
- 241.58 

1-2 years 168.28 221.02 

2-3 yuars 21.75 9,042.32 

More than 3 years 11,098.92 12,601.48 

Lass: impairment lass allowance (3.28779) (7,300.38) 

8,027.16 14,877.15 

Other financial assets (non-current) As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Sacurity deposits 3.00381 2.85092 

Less: impairment loss allowance {1.478.24) - 

Mon-current bank balances 120,35 120.38 

1,645.92 2,971.27 

Footnote: 

For explanation on the Company risk management process, refer note 45, 

Deferred tax assets (net) As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Deferred tax assets net] (refer note 58) 3007.61 362658 

3.007.681 3,626.98 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

[AN amounts are T in lacs. unless stated otherwise) 

n 

12 

12 

Other non-current assets As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Capital advances 66.67 186.76 

Azsuls under dispute frefer footnote and Note 50) 8,681.90 8,681.90 

8,748.57 8,868.66 

Footnote: 

The said properties have been acquired by the Company pursuant to settlement of receivables from Strawberry Star India Private Limited and 

VL Land and Housing Private Limited. However, these properties have not been registered in the name af company, The title deeds of aforesald 

properties had been submitted to Hon'ble Supreme Court, vide its Ordar Ma. Writ Petition(s)(Civil} No(s). 940/2017 dated Decernber 2, 2019, 

consequence to the report of the forensic auditor undertaken as per the direction of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of india to look into 

transactions of Amrapali group of companies and accordingly shown as assets under dispute. 

Inventories As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value 
Baw materials 2217.82 2.79720 

Siores and spares 279.26 298.42 

Loose tools 13.89 475 

Work-in-prograss 3040.92 2531.1 

Finished goods 1,391.23 52.20 

Stock-in-trade 58.11 san 

Goods in Tansit 5231 165.13 

Valued at estimated realizable value 
Scrap matenals 1858 2140 

7,072.04 6,732.92 

Footnote: 

Inventories are pledged as securities for borrowings Laken from banks and others (refer note 26). 

Trade receivables (current) As at As at 

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 

Unsecured - at amortised cost 

Undisputed rade receivables - considered good 2075.94 1,981.65 

Undisputed trade recenables - which have significant increase in credit risk - . 

Leas: impairment loss allowance a 3 

2,075.94 1,981.69 

Footnotes: 

The Company has not measured expected credit lass of trade reczivable as per Ind AS 100 Finangial Instruments’. {Refer note 48) 

Trude receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks and others (refer note 26). 
For explanation on the Company risk management process, refer note 48. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally received in the Company's operating cycle. 

Ne trade receivables are due from director of other officer of the Company and firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a 

director or a member either jointly or severally with other persons. 

Trade receivables ageing As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 

0-6 manths 2010.87 1.63989 

6-12 months 65.07 mm 

1-2 years = 54.29 

2-3 years - 127 

More than 3 years - 37.69 

Less: imparrment loss allowance - 
2,075.94 
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14 

15 

17 

1a 

19 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks 

«In current accounts 

Cheques on hand 

Cash on hand 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Deposts with maturity more than three months but less than twelve manths 
Earmarked balances with banks (refer footnote) 

Balances with past office In savings bank account 

Footnote: 

Earmarked balances with banks includes balances held for unpaid dividend pertaining te financial year 2018-19. 

Loans (currant) 

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise 

Loans to 

-Employeas 

~Oihers 

Footnote: 
for explanation on the Company risk management process, refer note 48 

Other financial assets (current) 

Export incentives recoverable 

Interest accrued on deposits 

Interest accrued on trade receivables 

Footnote: 

For explanation on the Company risk management process, refer rote 48 

Current tax assets (net) 

Current tix assets (met) 

Other current assets 

Prepaid expenses 

Advances to suppliers 

Balances with government authorities 

Less: Imparment loss allowance 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

28.40 BOST 

- 21.33 

A457 19.55 

72.97 121.84 

As at As at 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 

1,455.44 141395 

020 020 

0.05 0.05 

1,455.69 1,414.20 

As at As at 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

17.40 16107 

176 823 

21.16 24.30 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

05.17 557.77 

41862 28.40 

- 14.17 

346.79 610.34 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

18842 175.29 

188.42 175.29 

As at As at 

March 11, 2023 March 31, 2022 

22.86 19.45 

24751 34959 

71385 £2122 
187.26) (307.19) 

796.96 683.07 
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(i. 

(ii). 

{iii}. 

(iv). 

(w). 

Equity share capital 

The Company has only one class of share capital having a par value of 2 1 per share, referred to herein as equity shares. 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Authorised shares 

50,00,00,000 (PY 50,00,00,000) shares of ¥ 1 cach 5,000.00 5,000.00 

000.00 £.000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 

13,32,00,000 (PY 13,32,00,000) shares of ¥ 1 each 1,332.00 1332.00 
1,332.00 1,332.00 

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Number Amount Number Amount 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,32,00,000 1,332.00 13,32,00,000 1,332.00 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,32,00,000 1,332.00 13,32,00,000 1,332.00 

Pursuant to the appreval of the shareholders accorded on February 26, 2022 wide postal ballet conducted by the Company, each equity 

share of face value of 7 10 per share was sub-divided into ten equity shares of face value of ¥ 7 per share, with effect from March 11, 2022. 

Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

Voting 
Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held 

Dividends 

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the 

shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where intenm dividend is distnbuted. The Company has not 

distributed any dividend in the current and previous year 

Liquidation 

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after 

distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the 

shareholders 

The Company has no holding company, 

Detail of shareholders holding mors than 5% of equity share of the Company 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Holding in % of Total Holding in *t of Tetal 

numbers equity shares numbers equity shares 

Me. Navneet Kumar Sureka 2.21,53400 16.63% 2.21,53.400 16.63% 

Navneet Kumar Sureka (HUF) 1,38 68,000 10.41% 1,38,66.000 10.41% 

Me. Deepanshy Sureks 2,06,10,150 15.47% 2.06,10,150 15.47% 

Mrs. Deapa Sureka 77.36,150 581% 77,36,150 5.81% 

Mrs Prem Lata Sureka 207,186,000 15.55% 2,07,18,000 15.55% 

Mr. Vishnu Kumar Sureka (HUF) 1,00,61,500 T35% 1.00,61,500 7.55% 
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(dif amounts are ¥ in fac, unless stated otherwise) 

{vi}. No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid 

wii). 

z1 

ih. 

(ii). 

(iv). 

i. 

(ii). 

up by way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of 5 years Immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date. 

Details of share held by Promoters at the end of year 

tr, Navneet Kurnar Sureka 

Mr. Vishnu Kumar Sureka 

fdr. Despanshu Surela 

Mrs. Deepa Suraka 

Mrs. Prem Lata Sureka 

Navneet Kumar Sureka (HUF) 

Vishnu Kumar Sureka (HUF) 

Other equity 

General reserve 

Opening balance 

Closing balance 

Transition reserve 

Opening balance 

Closing balance 

Retained earings 

Opaning balance 

Add: (Lass) for the year 

Add: Transferred from accumulated other comprehensive income 

Closing balance 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Opening balance 

Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Less: Transferred to retained earnings 

Clasing balance 

Total Other equity 

Mature and purpase of Other equity: 

General reserve 

As at March 31, 2023 * As at March 31, 2022 

Number Percentage change Number Percentage 

2.21,53,400 16.63% 0.00% 2.21,53.400 16.63% 

33,320,000 250% 000% 33.30,000 2.50% 

1,38,66,000 10.41% 0.00% 1,38,66,000 10.47% 

2,06,10,150 15.47% 0.00% 206,10,150 1547% 

77,368,150 581% 0.00% 77.36.150 581% 

2,07,18,000 15.55% 0.00% 2,07,18,000 15.55% 

1,00,61,500 7.55% 0.00% 1,00,61.500 7.55% 

As at Ag at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

93.85 93.85 

93.85 93.85 

1377.55 1377.55 

1,377.55 1,377.55 

{123.400 100.95 

(919.19) 224.40) 
14.84 0.05 

(1,027.75) (123.40) 

202 034) 

(19.26) 242 
(14.84) (0.05) 
(32.07) 203 

411,58 1,350.04 

The gensral reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from / to retained earnings for apprepriation 

purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other 

comprehensive income, items Included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Transition reserve 

Company had revalued its factory land in earlier year because of which company created a revaluation reserve in the year of revaluation. 

On adoption of Ind AS in financial year 2017-18, company had transferred such revaluation reserve to transition reserve. 



Maria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

{Ail amounts are & in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

fiw). 

Retained earnings 
Retained earnings represents the surplus In the Statement of Profit and Loss and appropriations. 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 

The Company recognises change on account of remeasuremant of the net defined benefit liability as part of other comprehensive income 

with separate disclosure, which comprises of 

+ actuarial gains and losses; 

« returns on plan assets, secluding amounts included m net interest on the net defined benafit liability; and 

+ any change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liaoility. 

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. 

These changes are accumulated in the FVOCI equity investments reserve. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained 

earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised or sold. Any impairment loss on such instruments is reclassified to the 

Statament of Profit and Loss. 

Space intentionally left blank... 
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fll amounts are € fn lack only stated othedwie) 

22 Borrowings [non-cumrent) As at Asal 

March 11, 2023 March 11, 2022 

Secured 

Tarr loans 

From banks refer footnote 1) = 69.72 

From othars ireler (natnate il) . 3287 

Unsecurad 

Restructured lability of betrowing jrefer footnote fil) 5.86025 11,841.28 

5.86025 11,943.87 

Footnodes: 

Term loans from banks 

\ 's Nama Anais Neon-gurment portian Current portion 

af Bossnuirg Asal As at As wt As at 

March 31, 2033 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

CIC] Bank s02 00 = 69.72 69.72 79.58 

- £9.72 69.72 79.59 

A. Term loan from ICIC) Bank Limited 

[uring the financial year 2013-14, the Company nad taken a long tefm lozn free ICICI Sank Limited of ¥ 520.00 Lacy a5 por agreement dated June 29, 2013. Tha 

choting balance of said loan is & 65.72 Lacs and ¥ 141.84 Lacs, ay a1 March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 

This loan carries iaating rate of ntorest at I-Bage &s pusticly notified from time to time + margin of 0.50% pa. 

Ropayment 

The loan is repayable in 127 equal monthly melalments of 570 Lacs {inchiding interest) each stacling from August 10, 2003 and payable till February 10, 2024. 

Co-bormowers 
hr. Mavneet Sureke and hr, Vighng Serehn 

Security 

Equitable morgage of Property st A-28, Towor-X and C-4, Tower-¥, Seeior-50. TGE Meghdutam, Noida = 20130 

B. Term loan fram ICICI Bank Limited 

During the financlal year 2012-13, the Campary had taken a lang tar lean frarn ICICI fark Lirsited of © 284.00 Lacs ax pos agreement dated january 31, 2002 

The closing balance of suid loan is #8 and T 747 Lacs ax at March 37,2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 

Tris loan carries floating rate of interest at l-3ase as pusticly natilied from tima to time + margin of LI5% pa 

Repayment 

The loan is repayable In 123 equal manthly instalmants of # 3.97 Laea Sncluding interest] gach starting fram March 10, 2012 and payable till Mey 10, 2022. The 

taan has been fully repaid as on March 31, 2023. 

Co-barrawers 
ir. Blayrst Sureks and M/s Bikar) lspat Udyog Limited 

Security 
Equitable mortgage of Property at Apartment Mo PNA TTY, 1st Floor, tha Fipnache, DLE City, Gurgaan. Haryana. 

Term loans from others 

. FR MNan-carrenk portion Current portion 

of Barrow As at As at As at As at 

hd March 11, 202 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Aditya Bela France Limited 275848 - 1287 34.39 457398 

- jie? 34.35 463.92 
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[aif armownts are iv dacs, urdess stated otherwise) 

C. Term Laan fram Aditya Birla Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2015-16, the Company had taken a long term ioan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited of ¥ 2.00000 Lacs as per agreement dated 

September 16, 2015. The closing balance of wid loan (3 ® Nil and © 247,13 Loca. as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 reipactivaly, 

Internat rate 

This loan carries lasting rate of interest at long term reference rate of Aditya Birla Finance Limited adjusted for spread 

Repayment 

The loan is repayable in 85 equal monthly instalments of # 2381 Lacs (excluding interest) each starting from October 1, 2015 and payable till October 15, 2022, 

The loan kas been fully repaid as on March 31, 2023 

Co-barrowers 
M/s Veshnadew Properties 2rivate Limited 

Sweurity 

Extlusive charge an farm house at Bougan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Village Rajokar, Deini owned by Mis. Veshnodevi Properties Private Limited. 

Personal Guarantees of Mr, Vishnu Sureka Mr. Navneet Sureka, Mrs, Deepa Sureke and Mrs, Prem Lita Suraka. 

D. Term Loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2016-17, the Company had taken a long term loan from Aditya Bida Finance Limited of # 500.00 Lacs as per.agmerment dated Ociober 

17, 2016. Tha dosing balance of said loan is Nil and # Nil, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively, 

Interest rate 

This boan cares floating rate of interest at lang term reference rate of Aditys Birks Finance Limited adjusted for spread 

Repayment 

The lgan is repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments of ¥ B33 Lacs (excuding interest] sach starting from December 15, 2016 and payable till November 15, 

2021. The loan has bean fully repaid as an March 31, 2023. 

Co-borrowers 

M/s Veshnodevi Properties Private Limited 

Security 

Exckusive charge an farm house at Bougan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Village Rajokar, Dedni owned by M/s, Veshnodes Properties Private Limited, 

Personal Guarantess of Mr. Vishnu Suneka br. Navneet Sureka, Mri, Deepa Sureka and Mrs. Pram Lata Sureha, 

E. Term Loan fram Aditya Birla Finance Limited 

[haring the financial year 2015-16, the Company had taken a long term loan from Aditya Birks Finance Limited of ¥ 2,00000 Lacs at por agreement dated 

September 16, 2075. The closing balance of said loan ls F Niland ¥ 243.13 Lacs, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 

This loan carries floating rate of interest at long term reference rate of Aditya Birla Finance Limited adjusted for spread. 

Repayment 
The loan it repayable in 85 equal monthly instalments of § 2381 Lacs texcluding Interest] wach starting fram October 1, 2015 and payable till Detober 15, 022 

The koan has been fully repaid as on March 31, 2023. 

Ce-barrowurs 

M/s Veshnodew Properties Private Limited 

Securlty 

Eclusive charge an farm house at Bowgan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Village Rajon, Delhi owned try M/s. Weshnadesi Properties Private Limited, 

Personal Guarantees of Mr. Vichau Sureka Ms, Navneet Sureka, Mrs, Deepa Sureka and Mra. Pram Lata Sureke 

F. Term Loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2016-17, the Company had taken a long term loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited of # 500.00 Lacs as per agreament dated October 

17, 2016 The closing balance of said foan is Nil and ¥ Mil, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively; 

Interest rate 

This loan carries floating rate of interest at long term reference rate of Aditya Birls Finance Limited adjusted for spread. 

Repayment 
Tha loan ii repayable in BD equal monthly instalments of ¥ B33 Lacs (ewcluding interest] each starting from December 15, 2016 and payable till Novernber 15, 

2021. The loan has bean fully repaid as an March 31, 2022 

Co-borrowers 
M/s Vashnodevi Properties Private Limited 

Security 
Eurhusive charge on farm house al Bougan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Village Rajokari, Defhi owned by M/s. Veshnodevi Properties Private Limited, 

Pessanzl Guarantees of Me Vishnu Sureha Mr. Navneet Sureka, Mra Deepa Sureka and Mrs. Prem Lata Sureha. 
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{ii}. 

G. Term Loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Comzany had ooted for meratonum of long term laan fram Aditya Birla Finance Limited floan E above) of 197.22 Lacs 

Tha closng balance of said loan im # 34.39 Lacs and ¥ 201,72 Lacs, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respactivaly 

Interest rate 
This loan carries floating rate of interest at long term reference rate of Adiya Sida Finance Lim tea adjusted for spread, 
Repayment 
The loan is repayable in 6 equal monthly instalments of ¥ 3257 Lacs {exduding interest) each starting fram Movember 15, 2022 and payable till April 15, 2023, 

Co-bormowors 

Mis Veshnodew Properties Private Limited 

Security 

Exclusive charge on farm house 3 Bougan Villa venus Westend Greens Village Rajokas), Delhi owned by M/s. Veshnodew Properties Private Limdec. 

Personal Guarantees of Me Vishne Sureka Mr, Namaat Suroka, Mis. Deepa Sureka and Mrs Pram Lata Suraka. 

H. Term Loan from Aditya Bida Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company had opted for moratorium of long term lan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited fean F above) of ¥ 61.26 Lacs 

The closing balance of said loan is § Nil and ¢ 52.00 Lacs, as at Marsch 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 

Thiz Ioan carries floating rate of interest at long term reference rate of Aditya Birla Finance Limited adjusted for spread. 

Repayment 
The lean is repayable in § equal monthly instalments of ¥ 1021 Lacs lescluging Interest) each starting from December 15, 2021 2nd payable till May 15, 2022 

The loan has bean fully repaid ai on March 37, 2003 

Co-borrowers 

M/s Veshnodevi Properties Private Limited 

Security 
Exchusive charge on farm house at Baugan Villa deanue Westend Greens Village Rajokar), Delhi owned by Mss. Veshnodevi Properties Private Limited. 
Paranal Guarantees of Mr. Vishay Sureka hr, Navage! Sureka, Mra Deepa Sureka snc Mra Prem Lata Sureka. 

Details ef restructured liability of borrowing 

MNaon-current portion Current portion 

Ne Hao ioe As at Avat Asal Aral 
a March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Prudent ARC Limited 1940000 5,850.25 11.847.28 - = 

5,860.25 11,841.28 - - 

Tha Company had taken folowing credit fac ities from Karnatasa Bank 

+ Overdraft credit facikty of ¥ 500.00 Lacs 
« Pra shipment credit facility of #550000 Laes 

» Post shipment (NLC-DP/DA, Direct) credit facility of ¥ 3,500.00 Lass 

« Post shigenant [DADP) credit facility of ¥ 3000.00 Lacs 

« Usance bill discounting - backed by inland LC fackity of 7 1,600.00 Lacs 

« ILL/FLE (DP/DA)Y/ Bank guarantee facility of ¥ 5,500.00 Lacs 
« Credit line for forward contract facility of ¥ 400.00 Laca 

Security 
First charge over entire cuent assets of the Company, both preset and future en pari-passu basis with Allshabad Bank and Andhra Bani. 

Mortgage on factory land admeasuring 23.34 acres and bulding/indiustrial irfrautructure theeon stuated at Sohna Road, Mauza Gouchy, Ballabgark District, 

Fandabad, te be shared between Karnataka Bank and Andria nank 

Equitable Mortgage of agncultural property situated at Khasra No. $71 min, 593,2 min, 26/25 and 584 Village Rajokr, Tehul Vasant Vihar, New Dali presently 

known as Plot No. AB, Grand Weston Green, Rajokn, New Dein sdmoswring 2.687 acres standing in the rama of M/s Achal Estate Private Limited. 

Euzhusive charge on plant & machinery and other fied assats eloding venicles which are financed by other financial institutions). 

Personal Guarantees of Mr. Navaset Sureka and We, Vighnu Sureka 
Corporate guarantea of M/s Aehal Estates Private Limited 
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fivk 

1 

Jin). 

Owing to severe liquidity erises tha company (8 under financial sress and had defaulted in repayment servicing of aforesaid loan and therefore the same had 

been classified as Nan-Perfarming Assets (NPAs) by the banks/fendsrs. No provision of interest had bean made after the date of dasification of loan ac NPA 

Karnataka Bank Limited has absclutely assigned and transferrod the above debt fo Prudent ARC Limited together with all undedying secinty imtaoests thareta 

and all their rights, title and interests in all agreements, deeds and documents in relation to or in connection with the said facilities. 

The Company has entered into a One Time Settlement (OTS) with Prudzat ARC Limited in the current financial year. As per the terms and conditions of the said 

O75, total lability of ¥ 11,841.28 lacs tmchuding interest of 2 1,508.72 lacs] has been sesthod at an interest-free amount of T 8,200.00 lacs to be paid within the 

nest four yeas by the Company, Accordingly, # 5880.25 Lacs has been classified under the head “nen-cufrent borrowings” as a restuctused lizkility of 

bamawing, being the present value of the restuctured lability in accordance with Ind AS 109 

The Company has applied for Maratorium of six months for bariswings taken from above lendess pursuant to the Moratorium scheme- "COVID- 19 ~ Regulatory 

Package” as per notification RBI/2019-20/186 provided by Ral dus to COVID-15 pandemic on March 27, 2020 Tha lenders have spproved such maratorkm and 

albowid the company not to repay instalments including interest cue during such Moratorium period. 

. For explanation on the Company's liquidity sak management proces, refer note 48. 

Other financial | abilities (non-current] As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Balance portion of restructured lability of borrowing (rales footnote) 2,369.00 - 
1,365.00 = 

Footnotes: 

, The Company has entered into & Ona Time Settlement POTS) with Prudent ARC Limited in the current firanclal year, As per the terms and conditions of thin sad 

OTS, total liabdity of ¥ 11,841.28 lacs jexchucing interest of ¥ 1,904.72 faca) has been setiled at an interest-free amount of ® 8,200.00 lacs to be paid within the 

rest four pears by the Company. Accordingly, ¥ 2.36900 Lact has beer classified under the head “other non-current financial labilties® a4 a restuctured lability 

of borrowing, being the present value of the forgiven liability in accordance with ind AS 109, In case the Company fails to repay the restructured barrowny, the 

said ammount will be payable along with the restructured Borrowing Fabil ty. 

For explanation an the Company's liquidity sk management process, refs: nom 45 

Provisions (non-current) As at fis at 

March 37, 2023 March 17, 2022 

Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for gratuity refer note £4] T147 21 

17.47 21 

Other non-current abilities As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Defarred portion of restructured Rabllty of borrowing irofar leat ote) 124545 - 

3,246.45 . 

Footnotes: 

The Company has evtered into a Ore Time Settlement "OTS with Prucent ARC Liméted in the current financial year. As per the terms and conditions of the sid 

OTS, total llabdity of # 11,847.28 lacs (excluding interest of 2 1,904.72 lacs) has been settied at an interest-free amount of 8,200.00 lacs to be paid within the 

naw: four years by the Company, Accardingly, # 3,246.45 Lacs has been classified under the head “other nor-eurvent financial liabilities”, being the deferred 
portion of the restructured Habibity in accordance with Ind AS 108. In ease the Company fails to tepay ihe restruciired borrowing, the sad smaunt will ba 

payable slang with the restructured borrowing liasility. 
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Borrowings (current) As at Anat 

March 37, 2023 March 31,2022 

Secured 

Working capital lean 
From banks (iefer footnote || 142069 11.53015% 

«From others (refer foatnote iil 102257 3063.29 

Term loans classified as non-performing (refer footnote iil) 327650 6,354.79 

Current maturities of nen-surent barrowings (refer note 22 and footnote Iv) wan 57305 

Unsecured 

Fram related parties (refer noie 45) 1108.55 S857 

Fram othr 155.23 180.97 

13,097.85 12,400.96 

Footnotes: 
Detalls of working capital loans from banks 

Lender's Name Rate of interest Limit As at Au at 

sanctioned March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Indian Bank {formerly Allshabad Bank) 1 yaar MCLR + 465% pa 10,000.00 - 6.62052 

Wmion Bank of India (formedly Andhra Bank) 1 year MILA 4+ 450% pa 4,000.00 1.392564 iE1a6L 

CIC] Bank 2028.25 1,185.59 

3,420.89 11.633.15 

A. Working capital loan fram Allahabad Bank 
The Company had taken fund based working cantal facility of F 2000.00 Lacs and nom-fund based working caaital facility of ¥ 8,000.00 Lacs from Allahabad 

Bank. The closing balance of said loan is # Nil and 7 6,628.92 Lacs, as at Marcn 37, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 
This loan carr faating raze of interest at | year MCLR + 4.65% pa 

Security 
Charge over sentir currant assats of the Company, both prasent and futuae on pari-passu oasis with Karnataka Bank and Andhra Bank 

Registered mortgage of 490 acre agricultural tand krawn as Mauda Garden situated at Samalka Village. Tehsil Vasant Vihar, District South West Delni, Near 

Riajaleri Flyover, MM-8, Mew Delhi 
Corparate guarantee of M/s Deepak Hotels Private Limded 

Personal Guarantees of Mi Navneet Sureka Mr. Vshne Sureka and Mr, Akhil Surexa 

B. Working capital loan from Andhra Bank 

The Company had taken cash credit of 2 4,000.00 Lacs fram Andhra Bank, Tha closing balance of said loan is # 1,392.64 Lacs and ¥ 381864 Lacs, as at March 

31, 2003 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 
This loan carries floating rate of interest at 1 year MCLA « 4.50% pa 

Security 

Charge over entire current assets cf the Company, both prevent and fufure on pan-passu basis with Karataka Bark, Allahabad Bark and Aditya Birla Financa 

Lirmited 

1st pari-passy charge on land admeasuring 23,34 acres and bulleing/induitrial infrastructure thireon situated at Sohna Road, Muza Gouchi, Ballasgarh District, 

Faridabad, 10 be shared between Karnataka Bark and Andhra Bank. 

Personal Guarantees of Mr. Navneet Sureka and Mr. Vishnu Sureka 

The Company after negotiations has enterec into & One Time Settlement ("07S") with Union Bank of India settlement vide settlement letter 

SAME HORT ISTAN22.25 dated Decenber 14, 2024. As per the terms and conditions of the said OTS, total lab®ity of ¥ 3,878.64 lacs has been settled at Li 

3,800.00 lacs to be paid before March 31, 2023 by the Company. The Company has cischarged § 2,800.00 lacs as on the balance sheet date. The Company has 

enhanced the due date fer the balance payment of # 1,200.00 lacs atter negotialon with the Bank to be pad alang with terest in the nest financial year 

. Dwtalls of working capital loans fram others 

Lender's Name Limit As st As at 

sanctioned March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Aditya Bida Finance Limited 3,000.00 302257 106329 

3,063.79 
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C. Line of Credit fram Aditya Birla Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2015-18, the Company had taken line of credit of © 3,000.00 Lacs from Aditya Birla Finance Limited as per agreement dated August 3, 
2015 The dosing balznce of said loan is ¥ 3022.57 Lacs and © 3,063.29 Lacs, as at Maren 37, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 

This lean carries floating rate of mterest at short term reference rate of ABFL adjusted for spread. 
Co-borrower 

hfs Veshnodewi Propertiss Private Limited 

Security 
Exclusive enarge on farm house at Bougan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Village Rajokas|, Delhi owned by M/s. Vashnades Properties Private Lirmdted 

Personal Guarantees of Mr. Vishru Sureka Mr. Navneet Sureka. Mrs. Deepa Sureka and Mrs. Prem Lata Sureka. 

(iii). Dretaily of term loans clanified as non-performing 

Wotzk Mahindra Bank Limited, Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited and Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited have recalled entire 

autstanding principal amount and all the other charges including interest and penal intarest payabla thereen. Therefore, these loans have boan wholly classified 

as current borrowings. 

Lender's Name Amount of As at As at 

[ ring March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Kotak Mahindra Bank Lemnited 1,650.00 1.15343 1,193.43 

Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 3,000.00 2,083.07 208307 

Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited (formedy Dewan Housing Finance Comotation 3,200.00 . anaes 

Limited) 
3,276.50 6,354.79 

D. Term Laan fram Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited. 

Curing the financial year 2017-18, the Company had taken a long term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited of ¥ 1,650.00 Lacs a per agresment dated 

August 22, 2017. The tlesing balance of said loan is ¥ 1,193.43 Lacs and ¥ 1,193.43 Lacs, as af March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 

This loan carries floating rate of interest at 1 year MCLR + 4.35% pa. 

Repayment 

The loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments of ¥ 38.25 Lacs {including interest) each starting from Octobe 5, 2018 and payablo 1 September 5, 2022 

Owing te severe liquidity rises the company is under financial stress and has defaulted in repayment/senicing of aforesaid loan and therefore the same has 

buen classified as Non-Perlorming Assets (NPAS) by the bankslenden. No provision of interest has been made after the date of classification of loan as NPA 

Due te dassification of aforesald loan as NPA, Kotak Mahindra Bank has recalled entire sutstanding principal amount of said loan and all tha other charges 

Inchuding interest and pana interest payable thereon, Therefore it has been wholly classified a1 current borrowings. 

Security 

Exclusive charge on farm land area ad meawiring 68 bighas & 19 biswas (14,568 scret) in jhaties Village, Tohsile Kapashera, District South West Dalhi = 170043 

wana by M/s Strawberry Star India Private Limited 

Corporate guarantee of M/s Strawberry Star india Private Limitea 

Letter of Comba fram M/u jotindra Steel & Tubes Limited 

Personal Guaranteas of Mr. Navneet Sureka, Me. Vishnu Surela and Mr, Akl Sureka 
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E. Term Loan fram Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 

Dissing the financial year 2012-13, the Company had taken a long term loan from Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited of 2 2500.00 Lacs as per 

agreement dated Apel 26, 2012 The dosing balance of said loan Is # 2681.07 Lacs snd # 2,083.07 Lacy, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively 

Interest rate 
Thii laan carries floating rate of interest at RPLR - 250% pa, 

Repayment 
The loan is repayable in 155 ogual monthly instalments of € 31 53 Lacs including Interest) sach starting from May 1, 2012 and payable till March 1, 2025 
Owing to sevens liquidity crises the company is under financial straas and has defaulted in repayment/servicing of aforesaid loan and therfore the sama has 

been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPAs! by the banks/lande rs, Ne provision of interest has Leen mada after the date of classificabon of loan as NPA 

Dus to daswsification of aforesaid loan as MPa, Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited has recalled entire outstanding principal amoisnt of said loan 

and all tha other charges including interest andl penal interest payable thereo. Tnerefore. it has seen wholly classified as current berawings. 

Co-borrawans 

Wir. Mavneat Sureka, M/s Bhama Properties Private Limited, Mis Prem Lass Sucka, Me Vishnu Sweka and Mrs Deepa Sureka 

Security 

Equitable Mortgage of Property by way of deposit of the title deeds in respect of the agroultural Land ad measuring 12 Bigha out of Khasara No. 821/Imin(1-5), 

022(5-5) and G2315-8;, situated at Village Reokars, Tehel Vasant Vikan, lew Delhi owned oy M/s Bhama Properties Private Limited, 

F. Term Loan from Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited 

[ring the financial year 2018-19, the Company had taken a long tem loan from Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited of © 1,200.00 Lacs a3 per 

agreement dated Apnl 9, 2018, The diasing balance of said lean is ZT MNiland 71,1492 Lass, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31. 2022 respectively. 

Interest rate 

Ths loam carries floating rake of imtorest at DHFL's RPLR - 7.70%, 

Repayment 
“Thar fan is repayable in 130 rgqual ranthly instalments of ® 16.61 Lacs (including imeresi each starting fram June 1, 2018 and payable til March 1, 2029. 

Owing to severs liquidity crises the eampany is under Enancial dress and has defaulted in repayment servicing of aforesaid loan and therefore the same has 

been dassified 2s Non-Perfarming Assets (NPAs) by te barky fenders No provision of interest has been made after the date of classification of loan as NPA 

[ue to classification of sforesaid loan as NPA, Dewan Housing Finance Carporstion Limited has recalled enlive outstanding prncipal amount of sad loan and 

the other charges including interest ama penal interest paysble thereon, Thursfare, # fad been wholly cleuified os cument barrawings in previous financial year. 

Tha loan has boon fully repaid as on March 11, 2023. 

Co-borrowers 

M/s 5H, Estates Private Limited, Mr. Wish Sunska, Me, Navneet Suraka, Mew Pram Lata Sura, Mre. Deepa Sureka and Mr. Pramod Kumar Agarwal 

Security 
Mortgage af Property at Farm House al F-28 known Floris Bansal Mudd No, 18, Killa = 20rmini1-0), 210-141 2314-16), Vill Samalaka Bandh Road, New Dell - 

110037 belonging to M/s 5 KD, Estates Prvate Limited 

G. Term Laan from Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited 

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company had taken a lang term loan from Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited of ¥ 2000.00 Lacs as per 

agreement dated May 7, 2018. Tha closing balance of sid lean is 2 Niland # 1,929.07 Lacs, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 reupectively. 

Interest rate 

This loan carres interest at 11.10%, 

Repayment 

The loan is repayable in 131 equal monthly instalments of 2769 Lacs including interest) each stating from Apnl 1, 2018 and payable tll Fetwuary 1, 2028. 

Owing to severe liquidity crives the company 1s under financial stress and has defaulled in repayment/servicing of aforesaid loan ard therefore the sama has 

been classified 33 Non-Performing Assets (PAs) by the banks/lenders, Mo provision of mterest has been made after the date of classification of loan as NPA. 

Dus to classification of aforesaid loan as NPA, Dewan Hausing finance Corporation Limited hax recalled entire outstanding prindpal amount of said foam and all 

the other charges including interest and penal interest payable thereon. Therefore, it had asm wholly classified as current borrowings in previous financial year 

The loan has been fully repaid as an March 31, 2023, 

Co-borrowers 

hss SHD Estates Private Limited and Mr, Vishnu Sureka 

Mortgage of Property at Farm House ai F-200 known Fars Bansal Musil No. 18, Kika - 20m in(1-0], 2306-14), 23/1 (4-18), VB Samalaks Bandh Rosd, New Deh 

110037 Balonging t= M/s 5K.0, Estates Private Limited 
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As at As at (iv). Details of eurrent maturities of non-current borrowings 
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Currant maturtlos on farm loans from banks ATR 7959 

Current maturities on lerm loars from others 3439 453158 

Currant maturtios on vehicle and equipment loans from othen® . 29.48 

104.11 573.05 

* Vehicle and equipment loans fram others are from Tata Motors Finance Limited and Sundaram Finance limited. The closing balance of sid loan & ¥ Nil and ? 

289,48 Lacs, as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively 

Tree loan has been hlly repaid as an March 37, 2023, 

The sams are sacured by way of hypothecation of the vehicleyequipmants financed by the larder and Personal Guarantes of Mr. Vishnu Sureks and Mr, 

Mavnoet Sureka. 

iv). Amsunt of esntinuing default as on balance shee! date in respect of loan including interest is as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

Working captal loan from banks * 1.39264 - 1,392.64 

Warking capial loan from other . 2157 2.57 

Tarn loans classified as non-performing * 377650 - 1.27650 
1287 152 34.39 Current maturities al non-carent borrowings 

# his the account has been elassifiad 2s Non- Performing Assets (NPAs) by the lenders. No provision of interest has been made after the date of classification af 

Larrowings as NPA Hence, the amount of intarest default cannat be nscertajned 

(wi). One of tha financial craditer of the Company has filed petition Lnder Section 7 of inselvency & Banknuptcy Code. 2016 before Hon'ble HOLT, Kofkata Bench vide 

Company Patition Ma. CPB] = 138/2022 dated February 23, 2022 fat mitialion of corporate insolvency resokation procs, 

The Company after negotiations with the creditor reached a setilemant, however, the Company & vet to discharge the remaining lizbility 

(w). For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 48. 

As at As at 7 Trade payables 
March 31,2022 March 31, 2022 

Trade payables due 
- te miers and small enterprises irefor note 43) - 1.24 

= to athens TA05.25 D487 61 
7.405.25 5,488.85 

Footnotes: 
(i). Trade payables other than dun to MSMEs are nonsinterei! bearing ard sme naimally settled im the Company's operating cycle 

fii). The Company's exposure to currency and Sguldity risks are disclosed |r ote 45. 

Trade payables ageing 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 11, 2022 

Due to micrs and small enterprises 

Luss than 1 year - 124 

Due to others 

Lass than | year 467947 ECIFRY 

1-2 years 
175.10 2410.40 

2-3 years TINT E42 BY 

1.811.571 26229 

7,405.25 5458.85 
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8 

Other financial liabilities (current) 

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 

Employes related payables 

Expenses payadle 

« bo micro and small enterprises (refer note 433 

- to others 

Footnote: 
For explanation on the Company's liquidity rik management process, refer note 44 

Provisions (current) 

Provision for employee benefits 

Previgion for gratuity (refer note 44) 

Other current Fabilities 

Unpaid dhvichends 

Advances and depois 

tebvance for sale of land 

Statutory dues payable 

Spare intentionally left blank 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

7.09 435 

0.63 6.28 

352 27s 

BRA4 65.35 
200.08 148.73 

Az al As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

22.86 27.03 
22.86 27.03 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0.20 0.20 

2255.13 T9752 

308373 - 

£47 4529 
5,355.53 843.00 
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31 Revenue from operations 

Sale of products 

Manufacturing goods 

Trading goods 

Sale of services 

Job work charges 

Other operating revenues 

Export incentives 

Sale of scrap 

Information required as per Ind AS 115: 

Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets 

Revenue from customers based in India 

Revenue fram customers based outside India 

Timing of revenue recognition 

Transferred ata point in time 

Trade receivables and contract assets/{liabilities) 

Trade receivables 

Performance abligation and remaining performance obligation 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

21,378.14 21,965.12 

54.26 458.35 

= 19.03 

33197 291.65 

1,404.63 1379.21 

23,169.00 24,113.36 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

5.973.81 5215.04 

17,183.20 18,898.32 

23,165.00 24,113.36 

2,075.94 1,981.69 

There are no remaining performance obligations for the year ended March 31, 2023, as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goods/services. 

32 Other income 

Rental income (refer notes 45 and 47) 

Commission income 

Finance income on deferred partion of loan (refer nates 22 and 23) 

Interest income 

- on Income tax refund 

- on fixed deposits and margin money 

- on security deposits 

- an othars 

Insurance clam 

Profit on sale of investments 

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain 

Liabilities ne longer required written back 

Provisions no longer required written back 

Miscelleneous income 

33 Cost of materials consumed 

Opening stock 

Add: Purchases including processing charges: (refer note 45) 

Less: Closing stock 

Fer the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

32.66 2676 

6.68 3.02 

430.97 - 

074 1.83 

83.85 45.69 

545 - 

12.05 15.74 

- 27.54 

036 

- 1.99 

143199 EL TEL 

278.18 20.39 

1,505.17 - 

0.19 5.55 

2,499.92 496.84 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

2797.20 1,534.11 

12,830.20 14,096.60 
2.217.821 (2,797.20) 

13,409.59 13,233.51 
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34 

35 

EY) 

i, 

Li). 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Changes in inventories 

Inventories at beginning of the year 

Stock-in-trade 

Finished goods 

Work-in-prograss 

Scrap 

Inventories at end of the year 

Stock-in-trade 

Finished goods 

Work-in-progress 

Scrap 

Decrease/{increase) in inventories 

Employee benefit expense 

Salary, wages, bonus and allowances 

Employers’ cantrioution te provident and other funds (Refer note 44) 

Gratuity and leave encashment (Refer note 44) 

Staff and |abour welfare 

Finance costs 

Interest expanses 

- pn borfowings (refor footnotes | & ii) 

- on late payment of statutory dues 

- an others 

Other borrowing costs 

Footnotes: 

Owing to severe liquidity crises the company is under financial stress and has defaulted n repayment/senvicin 

Far the year anded For the year anded 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

= 39.60 

- 39.64 

- 106.36 

- 7.00 

50.27 216,33 

50.27 408.94 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

san 20.44 

852.20 465.05 

2531.0 4,188.32 

21.40 43.61 

1,463.42 4,717.43 

58.11 S811 

1,391.23 as2.20 

3,040.92 2.59348.70 

18.50 21.40 

4,508.76 3,869.81 

(1,045.34) 847.62 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1.07893 B03 64 

43.4% 38.8 

329 an 

45,19 5133 

1,204.52 915.84 
—_ 

Far the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

2488.52 01.76 

65.80 044 

0.08 oa7 

- 24.65 

2,554.80 557.01 

g of loans taken fiom the following 

banks/financial institutions and therelore the same has been classified as Naon-Performing Assets (NPA) by the banks/lendars. No provision of 

interest has boen made after the date of classification of loan as NPA 

A. Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 

B. Kotsk Mahindra Bank Limited 

Interest expense amounting to ¥ 146320 lacs has been booked on th 

negotiaitans with Indian Bank (farmerdy Allahabad Bank) 

e borrowings declared as non-performing as part of settlement 
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38 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

39 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 

Amartisation of intangible aswets (refer note 4) 

Other expenses 

Storas, spares, tools, oils, lubricants and packing materials consumed 

Outside labour charges 

Electricity expenses 

Rent and hire charges 

Rates and taxes 

Insurance 

Travelling and conveyance 
Vehicle running and mantenance 

Fremght and forwarding inet) 

Commission and service charges 

Printing and stationery 

Advertisement and publicity 

Testing and inspection charges 

Postage and telephone 
Legal and professional expenses 

Business promotion expenses 

Fees and subsen ptians 

Charity and donations 
CSR expenses (refer note 42) 

Bank charges 

Loss an sale of ROSTCL and ME|S Bcante 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Loss on sale of investments 

Repairs and maintenance of 

«Plant and machinery 

~Buildings 

-Others 

Remuneration to suditors (refer footnote) 

Director sitting fees 
Impairment of security deposits 

Inventoring written off 

Balances written off 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Footnote: 

Payment of remuneration to auditors (excluding GST) 

- Statutory audit - Standalone 

- Statutory audit - Consolidated 
« Limited review 

= Tax audit 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

10046 34159 

0.87 0.44 

301.33 342.03 

For the year ended Far the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

2,655.54 2373322 

1.44046 1467.13 

A704 507.58 

216 216 

1678 £1.00 

15.39 18.59 

109.27 3860 

24.90 11.92 

730.94 792.21 

1,601.23 £327.19 

BOB 6.00 

5.00 1.49 

98.17 Fa87 

24.35 19.19 

7.01 9433 

15459 4813 

40.70 21.67 

0.59 mal 

44.48 21.74 

18.03 3318 

4.25 16.38 

386 = 

070 - 

206,49 223.66 
116:20 124.57 

B9.56 36.54 

5.50 5.00 
0.19 0.18 

1,478.24 . 

" 406.39 

17.21 325.09 

2266 2265 
5,484.82 9,143.06 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

225 228 

0.50 - 
225 2.25 

0.50 0.50 
5.50 5.00 
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40 Earning per share 

{a}. Basic and diluted earnings per share 
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company 

{b). Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share 

Profit attnbistable to the equity holders af the Company 

ic) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic 

and diluted earnings per share 

At present, the Company does not have any dilutive potential sguity share. 

Space intentionally left blank. 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(0.69) 10.17) 

1919.19) 1224.40) 

13,32,00,000 13,32,00,000 
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41 Contingent liabilities and eommitments As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Contingent liabilities 

Claims against the Company nat acknowledged as debt 

Surety Bond issuad in favour of Haryana Sales Tax Depariment towards VAT and CST liability of a 200 2400 

third party M/s Balaji Engineering 

Income tax matters under dispute 3,909.97 - 

Commitments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for [net of 2184 i939 

capital advances of ¥ 66.67 lacs (March 21, 2022: 186.76 lacs)]. 

42 Expenditure on CSR activities 

The amount required to be spent by the Company during tha year ended March 11, 2023 was T Nil. March 31, 2022: Nil 

Details of amount spent during the year For the year ended For the year ended 

March 11, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 

On construction/acquisition of any peaperty, plant and equipment - S 

On purposes other than above 44.48 27.74 

Ad 48 21.74 

41 Disclosures relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31_ 2022 

Balance remaining unpaid lo any MSME supplier as included in: 

“Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 352 159 

interest dus on above - = 

3.52 3.99 

Fostnate: 

The Company is in the process of identifying Miore, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined undies the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006. Therefore, it is nat possible for the Company to ascertain whether payment to such enterprises has been done within 45 

days from the date of acceptance of supply of goods or services rendered by such enterprises and to make requisite disclosure except as disclosed 

above. 

44 Employes benefits 

I. Defined contribution plans: 

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee. salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards 

provident fund, labour welfare fund and EDLI, which are defined contribution plans, The Company has no obligations other than to make the 

specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. 

Expense under defined contribution plans include: For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Provident and other funds 431.49 38.16 
43.49 38.16 

Il. Defined benefit plans: 

Gratuity 
The Company operates a post-amployment defined benefit plan for Gratuity, This plan entities an employue to receive half month's salary for sach 

year of completed service at the me of retirement/exit. 

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit methad, which recognive sach period of 

service as giving rise to additional employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit sepasately to build up the final obligation 
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The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 

31, 2023. The present valug of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost. were measured using the 

projected unit credit method. 

. Net defined benefit liability As at As at 

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 

Present value of obligations 158.36 111.90 

Fair value of plan assets 158.03) 162.75) 

Total employee benefit liabilities 100.34 48.14 

MNon-curment 
1747 21 

Current 22.86 2103 

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability 

For the year ended March 317, 2023 Defined benefit Fair value of Met defined benefit 

obligation lan assets asset)/ liabi 

Balance at the beginning of the year 111.90 62.75 49,14 

Included in profit or loss 

Cument service cost 22.16 - 2.16 

Interest cost/[mcome) B11 . B11 

Expected return on plan assets - 4M 4.71) 

10.27 4.71 25.57 

Included in OCI 

— Actuarial loss (gain) ansing from: 

= financial assumptions 12.39 12.39 

- prpesience adjustment 2154 [e12) 27.96 

40.23 10.12) 40.15 

Other 

Contributions paid by the employer - oon 0.01) 

Benefits paid (24.03) (9.32) (14.71) 

(24.03) (9.31) (14.72) 

Balance at the end of the year 158.36 58.03 100.24 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 Defined benefit Fair value of Met defined benefit 

obligation plan assets {asset)/ liability 

Balance at the beginning of the year 124.32 &730 31.02 

Included in profit or loss 

Current service cost 16.19 - 16,19 

Interest cost/lincome) a0 . 9.01 

Expected return on plan assets - 633 6.33) 

25.20 6.33 18.83 

Included in OCI 

= Actuarial loss (gain) arising from: 

- financial assumptions B46 - BAG 

- euperiance adjustment 15.83) 10.76) (5.07 

2.64 (0.76) 3.39 

Other 

Contributions pald by the employer - noo 10.00) 

Benefits paid 40.26) 130.12) (10,34) 

(40.26) (30.12) (10.14) 

Balance at the and of the year 111.90 62.75 43.14 
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Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 1023 March 31, 2022 

Current service cost 2216 16.19 

Met interest cost an 9.01 

Expected return on plan assets A) 6,23) 

C. Plan assets 

The plan assets of the Company are managed by the Lie Insurance Corparation of India through a trust managed by the Company in farms of an 

insurance policy takan to fund obligations of the Company with ressact to its gratuity plan. 

Plan assets comprises of the following: March 31, 2023 % of Plan assets March 31, 2022 % af Plan assets 

Funds maraged by msurer SH O03 100% 62.75 100% 

An asset-fiability matching study is done by the Company an ar annual basis, whereby the Company contributes the net increass in the actuarial 

liabdity to the plan manager in arder to manage the lialdbly risk. 

D. Actuarial assumptions 

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upoa the market yields available on government 

bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities, Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Company. 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Discount rate 1.50% 1.25% 

Expected rate of future salary increase 500% 5.00% 

Expected rate of atwition 5.00% 5.00% 

Martality 1ALM 2072-14 JALM 2002-74 

E Sensitivity analysis 
Reasonably possible changes at the reporling date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptans, halding other assumptions constant, would have 

affected tha defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below, 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (1.00% movement) 147.589 170.27 {6.42) T2¢ 

Future salary growth {1.00% movement) 16943 148.52 739 (6.60) 

Withdrawal rate (1.00% movemant) 159.55 156,94 055 10.65) 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the 

sensitivity of the assumptions shown, 

Sensitivities due to mortality is not material and hence impact of change is not calculated. 

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions befare retirement and life expectancy are 

not applicable baling & lump sum benefit an retirement, 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(Alt amounts are T in lacs, unfess stated otherwise) 

Description of Risk Exposures: 

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company Is exposed to various risks as 

follows: 

a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increase plan's liability, increas In salaty increase rate assumption in future valuations will alio 

increase the lisklity. 

bs). Investment risks If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at 

the last valuation date can impact the liability. 

¢). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's ability. 

dj. Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities. 

e). Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations 

can impact the plan's liabddity, 

F. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years 

Duration of defined benefit obligation As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Luss than 1 year 2286 27.02 

Between 1-2 years 10.55 518 

Betwean 2-5 years B37 1765 

Cher 5 years 116.57 52.04 

158.16 111.90 

Expected contributions lo post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2023 is 2 30.53 lacs {March 31, 2022: ¥ 27.12 lacs). 

The weighted average duration of tho defined benefit plan obligation at March 31, 2023 is 12 years (March 31, 2022: 10 years). 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the standalane financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(Al amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

46 Operating segments 

A. Basis for Segmentation 

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the 

Company's management and internal reporting structure, The chief operating decision maker identifies primary segments based on the 

dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure: The operating segments are the 

segments for which separate financial [nformation is available and for which operating profitdass amounts are evaluated regularly. All 

operating segments’ cperaling results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make deeisions about resources to be allocated 

to the segments and assess their performance. 

The 'Board of Directors’ have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ['COOM), since they are responsible for all major 

decision w.rt. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger 

and acquisition, and expansion of any facility, 

The Board of Directors examines the Company's performance from business activities perspective and have identified the following 

reportable segments of its business: 

Reportable segments Operations 

Manufacturing This mainly includes manufacturing of LPG cylinders, valve, 
regulators, towels, cotton masks and PPE kits 

Trading This mainly includes trading of steel plates, steam coal and cotton 

mazks 

B. Information about reportable segments 

Segment assets, segment liabilities and Segment profit and loss are messured in the same way as in the financial statements. 

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below, Performance is measured based on segment profit (sefore 

tax), as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors. Segment profit is used 

measure performance a5 management believes (hat such information is the most relevant in evalusting the results of certain segments 

relative to oiher entities that operate within these industries, Intar-segment pricing, if any, is determined on an arm's length basis. 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 Reportable segment 
z = Total 

Manufacturing Trading 

Segment revenue 23,114.74 54.26 23,169.00 

Revenue from external customers 23,174.74 54.26 23,169.00 

Segment results (239.56) 136 (236.20) 

Total profit/{loss) before tax for reportable segments (239.56) 3.36 (236.20) 

Other incomes 2458992 

Finance costs {2,554.80 

(Loss) before tax (291.07) 

Tax expenses (628.12) 

(Loss) after tax 1919.19) 

Other comprehensive lass) (19.28) 

Total comprehensive (loss) (938.47) 

Segment asseis 23,685.20 1957.20 25,642.40 

Unallocable assets 13,735 92 

Total assets 19,378.32 

Segment [fabilities 13,037.83 16.28 13,054.11 

Unallocabile liabilities 24,580.63 

Total liabilities 317,634.74 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 

(All amounts are € in lacy, unless stated otherwise) 

a) 

bl 

Far the year ended March 31, 2022 

Segment revenue 

Revenue from external customers 

Segment results 

Total profit/(loss) before tax for reportable segments 

Other income 

Finance costs 

{Loss) before tax 

Tax benefits 

(Loss) after tax 

Other comprehensive mcome 

Total comprehensive (loss) 

Segment assals 

Unallocable assets 

Total assets 

Segment lisbilities 

Unallocable liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Geographic information 

Reportable segment Total 

Manufacturing Trading 

23,655.01 458.35 24,113.36 

23,655.01 458.35 24,113.36 

(863.17) B5.53 (777.64) 

(863.17) 85.53 (777.64) 

496.84 

557.01} 

(837.81) 
£1341 

(224.40) 
242 

(221.98) 

24,526.17 8717.98 33,2445 

14,312.44 

47,556.59 

10,509.46 1592 10,525.38 
34,349.17 
44,874.55 

The geographic information analyses the Company's revenue snd nan-current assets by the Company's country of domicile in other 

countries. In presenting the geographic information, segment revenue has been based on the gengraphic location of customers and 

segment assets were based on the geographic location of the assets. 

The Company is domiciled in India, The amount of its revenue from external customers tiroken down by location of the customers is shown 

below: 

Revenues from different geographies 

Within India 

Outside India 

MNon-current assets” 

Within India 

Outside India 

*Non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets. 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

5,979.81 5.41504 

17,185.20 1889832 

13,169.00 24,111.36 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

14,387.16 14,043.57 

14,387.16 14,043.57 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

{All amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

47 

Major customers 

Revenug from transact ons with external customar amounting to 10 per cant or more of the Company's revenue is as follows: 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Amount 

Wotldwide Distribution LLP 4,624.08 

4,624.08 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 Amount 

Waeldwida Distribution LLP 2,669.86 

Unique Industries Inc 
8,050.86 

10,720.72 

Leases 

Leases as a lessor For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Rental income from assets given on operating lease (refer footnote) 32.66 26.76 

312.66 26.76 

Footnote: 

Tha Company has given a part of its factary land and building siuated at Sghna Road, opp. Shree Sai Bharat Patroleurn Pump, Sector-55, 

Fandabad, Haryana-121004 to Mankiewicz India Private Limited and eight cranes to [otindra Seeel and Tubes Limited. 

Lease agreements entered by the Company are carcallable in nature, 

The lease rental income recogrised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for tha year in respect of such laases is F 3266 lacs (previous year 

26.76 lacs). 

__ Space intentionally feft blank... 
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Mauris Udyog Limited 

Notas to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 37, 2023 

ral amounts aoe © in lacs, unless stated otherwise] 

bl. 

UB 

Fair value hierarchy 

Lewel 1: Bt includes financial instruments measured using quoled prices. 

Leval 2: Tha fair value of fmancial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined using valuation techniques whith macmise the us of 

observable market data and raly as little as possible on entity specific estmates. If al significant inputs required to faif value an instrument are observable, the 

Irstisment 18 inchaded in level 2. 

Level 2: IF ane of more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in bevel 3 The fair value of finandal assets 

and Eabiltias included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing madels based an discounted cash flow analysis using prices from 

piiervable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar matrumants 

The carrying amounts af wade receivables, cash and cash equwvalents and other financial assets and Labilites, approvimates the far values, due to their short 

rorm natu, Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is similar to the camying value as there is na significant differences between camying value and 

fair value 

Valuation processes 

The Management perfctr the valuations of financial assets and ables required for financial reporting purposes on a periadic basis including level 3 fair 

wakes. 

Financial risk management 

The Company has exposure to the following rks arising from financial instruments: 

* Cradit risk 
= Liguidity risk 

» Market fish 

Credit risk 

The marimum exposure to cradit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets ir the Balance Shaet: 

As at As at 

March 11, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Trade receivables 
8,027.16 16,858.85 

, 21.16 2430 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equnvalents 1,455.60 1414.20 

Other financial assets 
1.97 3,581.62 

Credit tak is the sk of financial lois to the Campary if § customer or counterparty to a financial instiument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises 

principally fram the Company's receivables fram customers. 

The Company's credit risk i primarily to the amount due from customers and loans. The Company maintains a defined eredit policy and manitors the exposures 

to these eradit fitks on an ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with scheduled 

commercial banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. 

The Company has net applied expected credit Joss model as per ind AS 109 used to aes the Impairment loss or gain an trade receivables. However the 

Company based upon historical expenence determines an impairment allrwance for loss on receivables. 

\Whan a bade receivable is credit impaired, it is written off against trade receivables and the amount of the loss is recognized in the income statemant 

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off ate credited to the income statement, 

The gross caring amount of trade receivables is 2 1339089 lacs (March 31, 202% € 22,159.22 lacs). Trade receivables are generally realised witha the cradit 

pesind, except for the wace recenables included in non-current financial assets, desertion of which has bean given in Note 8 

The Company's sxpasure io credit risk for trade receivables are as follower As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 37, 2022 

Not dus 
= = 

0 to 180 days past due 201087 1911.02 

180-355 days £507 278.69 

355-730 days 188.28 275.31 

Wore than 730 days 
11,12867 21,694.20 

13,350.85 14,159.22 

Movarment in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade recevables For the year ended For the year ended 

_ Mareh31,2023  March31,2022 
Balance at the boglaning 

1,300.38 7.49441 

Impairmant loss utilised (4,002.58) (184.03) 

Balance at the and 7.300.358 



Maura Udyog Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(AN amounts see Tin lsc, unless sated otherwise) 

(ii). Liquidity risk 

Liggusdity risk |s 1h risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial Babilities that are setthed by delivering 

sath ar angther financial asset. The Company's Approach to managing liquidity is te ensum, 45 far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity ta mest its 

fiahilities when they ae fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withaul incurring unacceptable losses ae risking damage to the Company's 

reputation. 

The Company believes that its liquidity portion of ¥ 7297 lacs as at March 31, 2023 (March 37, 2032: 2 121.84 lacs) and the anticipated future internally 

generated funds from operations will enable it to meat its future known obligations in the ordinary coupe of busines except certan horfowngs 

The Company is under financial stress and has defaulted in repaymentfiervicng ef certain botrowngs and i actively pursung the lenders for 

restrueturing/rescheduling of such borrowings ta gwoid amy untoward figuidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk managemenl implies mamiaming sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount af 

credit {acdities to meel obligations when due, The Company's pofy is to regularly monitar its iguidity requirements to ensure that #& méntains sufficient 

reserves of cash and funding from Company companies to meet its uitdity requererments in the short and long term. 

The Company's hquidity managemant process as manitored by management, Inghudes the follwing: 

« Day to day funding, maraged by maritating future cash flows to entute that requirements can ba met 

+ Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company's Iguidity position on the basks of expected cash flows. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

Folizwing are the remaining contraciusl maturities of financial Kabilibes at the reparting dale 

As ak March 31, 2023 a Contractual cash flows 

Leas than Between one to More than Total 

amount one year five years five years 

Borrowings 
1BE58.09 1309785 5.RE02S 1895800 

Trade payshles 
TA0525 7.40525 - TATS2S 

Cuber financial abilities 2.56908 200.08 236800 2.56208 

Total 
25 932.43 20,703.18 522525 18,932.43 | 

As at March 31, 2022 Carmi Contractual cash flows 

rma Less than Between one to More than Total 

one year five years five years. 

Basrawings 
Sa ndd BI 2240056 11,94387 3434583 

Trade payables 
HAHB ES DARREL - 9,480.85 

Cher financial labdties 
148.73 14873 - 148.73 

Total 43,982.42 32,038.55 11,943.87 43,582.42 | 

[ii). Markt rik 

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will flugtuste because of changes in market pnces. Marke! rigk comprises theen types of 

rite inteenst rate rk, currency risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: currency risk and interest rate risk 

The ohjmetive of market risk management © te manage and control markst risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while sptimising the retum 

a Interest rate risk 

Interest rate ik fs tha risk that the future cash flows of & financial instrument will fuctiate because of changes in market interest 

intrest rabe rik arises from long-term borrowings with varisble rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate fish. 

Exposure lo interest rate risk 

The risk fs managed by the Company by maintaining an apprepriate mix between fied and floating rate borrowing. 

rates. The Company's mam 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 37, 2023 

CAR aerioumts ave in lick, wnigss stated otherwise) 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable: rate instruments 

The sensitity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period 

For floating rate fiabilties except for the borrowings against which no imerest lability is being recogrisad, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the 

Iabdity outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. 4 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reposting interes 

rate rik internally to key management parsoone] and represants management's assessrent of the remenably possible change in interest rates, 

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax 

50 bps Increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 

Iinterest on loans from banks 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 (1.30) 1.30 10.90) 0.90 

Ear the year ended March 31, 2022 {EET GET 459% A59 

Interest on loans from others 

Tor the year ended March 31, 2023 20:00) 20.00 3.7m 13.76 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 117.48) 17.48 (12:03) 12m 

ly, Currency risk 

The Camaany undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies comenently, Bpuset to exchange rite Auctustions arse. Exchange rate exposures 

ure managed within approved policy parameters, 

Exposure to foreign curremey risk 

The carrying smaunts of the Company's foreign currency denommaled monetary assets and monetary fisbilibes at the end of the reporing penod are a5 

fellows; 
Denomination” As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023 

Fareign currency Equivalent # Foreign currency Equivalent ¥ 

Receivables 

Sale of goods/seraces uso £2 43329 151.72 11,501.17 

EUR B34 TAT 6d 307 PLE] 

Deposits / bid bonds uso 1050 B63.25 30.00 22742 

AED) nad 10.86 0.49 1013 

Balances with banks of overseas branches AED nis 334 13 271 

Unhedged receivables 1,088.50 14,072.75 

Payables 
impart of goods usp 2048 1,584.20 29.53 228878 

EUR 6s 055.05 1842 1,559.05 

Unhedged payables 2,639.85 1,827.83 

Met unhedged foreign currency expasure receivable/(payable) (521.34) 10,244.52 

Foreign currency senaltivity analysis 

The fellowing tahle details the Company's sensitanly to & 0.54% incraase and decrease In the INR [#) against USD", EUR® and AED", 0.5% ls the sensitivity rate 

used when reparting farsign cusrency fisk internally 10 kay managemant ganoangl and reoreents management's assessment of the reasonably peasible change 

in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analyse inches only aulstanding foreign currency cenaminated moneiary items and adjusts thes translation ai the 

pesiad end for a (5% change in foreign currency fates. In case of net foreign sufrendy gutfinw, & positive numbers below indicates an incroase in profit oe equity 

whare the T strengthens 0.5% against the relevant currency. For a 9.5% whiakening of the ¥ against the relevant currency, there would be 2 comparable impact 

on the aft or equity, asd the balances belaw would be negative. in case of net foreign currency inflow, 8 posite number below indicates an increase in profi 

or equity where the ® weakens 0.5% against the felavart curency. Far a 05% strangthening of tha ¥ against the relevant currency, thee would be a comparadle 

impact on the profit ar egirty, and the balances below wauld be negalive. 

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax 

50 bps 50 bpa 50 bps 50 bps 

increase deerease increase decrease 

usD 

Far tha year ended March 37, 2023 17.84) 1.54 11.33) 133 

Far the ynar ended March 31, 2022 5753 157.5% 19.58 39.58) 

EUR 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 104) 1.04 (0.728 orn 

Far thi year ended Mareh 31. 2022 1849) 6.49 (847) 4.47 

AED 

Far the year ended March 11, 2023 oa an 

Far the year ended March 37, 2022 ois (0.19) 

REL Furs, USD: Uinfted States Doflac and AEE: United Aral Emirates Dichiarm 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes te the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

(AF amounts are Fin fies, unless stated tied] 

45 Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital meludes lssued equily share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity 

holders of the Company. 

tanagement assesses the Company's eapital requiremants in order 10 maintain an efficent cwaral financing structure, The Company manages the caaital 

structure and makes adjustments 16 [tin the light of changes in sconamic conditions and the risk characteristics of tha underlying assets 

To mairan or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders. raise new debt or issue new shares. 

The Company monitors capital en the basis of the debt 10 capdal ratio, which is calculated as intariet-bearing debts divided by total eapstal {equity attributable 

to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing dats) 
As ab Ax at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Bortowsgs 
18,965.18 34,349.18 

Leas: Cash and bank balances {1,528.67} (1,536.04) 

Adjusted net debt (A) 
17,436.52 37,813.14 

Total equity (B} 1,743.58 1,682.04 

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio (A/B) 1000.04% 1223.44% 

50 Title deeds of immovable properties not held in the same of Company 

Particulars 
Tem 1 Item 2 

(Refer Note 11) (Rafer Note 3) 

Description of item of property 
Land Building 

Number of cases 
2 1 

Grogs carrying value 
8,681.90 336.40 

Tithe deeds held in the name of 
Refer footnote Not available 

‘Whather ig deed holder is a promoter, deector of relate of promoter / diester of employes af Wo PP 

promoter director 

Property held since which date 
Nol available Mot available 

Reason for net Being held in the name of the company Refer footnote Not available 

Footnote: 

43] 

The said properties have been acquired by the Company pursuant fo settlement of receivables from Strawberry Star india Private Limited and VL Land and 

Housing Private Limited. However, these properties have not been ragistarad in the name of camparny. 

Transactions with struck off companies 

Mame of struck-off Company Relationihip Mature of transaction Balance Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2023 March 11, 2022 

Bikarijl International Limited Mo relationship Investment in decries 0.33 3s 

Amrapall Smart City Private Limited Ma relationship Investment in securities oie 0.0 
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53 

i. 

fi). 

Quantitative details of raw materials consumed 

Nina of he Himes Unit For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the yaar snded March 3, 2022 

Quantity Amount Quantity Amount 

CR.C / ron / Stainless steal shee! MT. 12,028 7.50948 7.736 5.09370 

CH. Cail M.T. 1127 820.10 5372 3854.22 

Minl/ jumbo LPG valves Mos. ,19,651 1.081.777 16,11,928 1.31350 

Brass rods and scrap Kgs 2.32.204 977.54 = 61.38 

Cotten yam / fabric Kgs. 679,294 3.02378 8.556.046 224325 

Others (refer footnote |) A654 567.46 

13,409.58 13,233.51 

Footnotes: 

It is not practicable on the put of the managernent to give quantitative information in respect of other component consumed since it 

consists of numerous tems and each such item is less than 10% of total value. 

Value of imported indigenous raw materials and compondnts/stores spares parts. taols and packing materials consumed and percentage 

thereof: 

Raw materials and components 

-Impartad 

-Indegenaus 

Sparas, tools and packing materials 

Imported 

-indegencous 

Earnings in foreign currency 

F.0.E. value of exparts 

Expenditure in foreign currency 

CLF value of imports 

«Raw material / stock-in-trade 

-Capital goods | repairs 

Commission 

Others 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage 

1,368.93 10.21% 1,462.00 11.05% 

12,040.66 89.79% 11,771.57 88.95% 

13,409.59 100% 13,223.51 100% 

- 0.00% - 0.00% 

2.65554 100% 237322 100% 

2,655.54 100% 2,373.22 100% 
mE — — 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

16,857.23 18,606.67 

16,857.23 18,606.67 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

585.40 2246.06 

63.74 471 

1,600.28 2,323.86 

106.33 17.43 
2,355.74 4,592.06 
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Mauris Udyog Limited 

Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

[AK amounis are ¥ in (acs, unless stated otherwise) 

58 The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits [n excess of five crore rupees during the year, in aggregate from banks and financial 
Institutions, on the basis of security of fixed deposits and there is no requirement to file quarterly returns / statements with such banks and 

financial institutions. 

59 The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is nol recorded in tha books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed 

a income during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

B60 The Company has not traded or invested in cryptocurrency or virtual currency during the year. 

61 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutary 

period. 

62 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company fof holding any 

Benami property. 

62 The Company has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds to any other person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 

with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a). directly or Inditectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by of un behalf of the Company 

{Ultimate Beneficianes), ar 

(bh). provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Benafliciaries. 

£4 The Company has nat received any fund from any personisi or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shalt 

(a). directly of indirectly land ar invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Company 

(Litmate Beneficiarias), or 

{b). provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries 

65 The Company had entered into certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in past years, In consequent to which forensic audit 

was conducted as per the Directions of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between Amrapal Group of Companies and 

Sureka Group of Companies. After which the Hon'ble Suprema Court wide its order No. Writ Petition|s){Ciil) No. 9340/2017 dated December 2, 

2019 had directed M/s Jotindra Steel & Tubes Limited and Maura Udyog Limited including associated companies and Directors viz Mr. 

Mawnest Kumar Sureka snd Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka to deposit ® 15,700,00 Lacs. In response to the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, it had 

filed an application on December 9, 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to accept the title deeds of immoveabie properties belonging to 

Sureka family members and assooate companies (based on latest valuation regart) worth amounting 2 16,897.00 Lacs, net of incumbency 
amaunt of ¥ 3,834.00 Lacs including Properties amounting ¥ 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Mauna Udyog Limited. 

In the financial year 2019-20, the Company had charged ¥ 15,0000 Lacs in the Statement of Profit and Loss against the above matter on an 

estimated basis and reduced the value of properties {property which is deposited to Hon'ble Supreme Court). 

The management is of the opinion that, based on issues and the legal advice that the ultimate oulcome of the legal proceedings in respect to 

the matter will not have material adverse effect to the financial position of the Company, Hence, the Company has neither provided for lability 

against this matter, nor any amount has been shown as contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets” 

66 Parliament of India has approved new Labour Codes which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund, Employee 

State Insurance and Gratuity, The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules ane yet to be framed. 

The Company will carry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial statements in the period in which the Codes 

became effective and the related rules are published. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 37, 2023 

FAN amounts are E in lacs, unless stated otherwise! 

67 Standards issued but nat yet effective 

On March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued certain amendments and annual improvements to Ind AS. These 

amendments are applicable fer accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 

Amendment to Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 101 

Mow the Initial Recognition Exemption (IRE) doss not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. 

arrowed the scope of IRE (with regard to leases and decommissioning obligations). Accordingly, companies will need ta recognise a deferred 

tax asset and 3 deferred tax Kabilty for temporary differences arising on transactions such as initial recognition of a lease and a 

decammissianing provision. 

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earkest comparative period presented. 

The application of this amandmant is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 1, Ind AS 34 and Ind AS 107 
Companies sheuld now disclose matenal accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, 

The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact en the Company's financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 8 

Definition of ‘change in account estimate’ has been replaced by revised definition of ‘accounting estimate’. As per revised definition, 

accounting estimates are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. 

The apghcation of this amendment is not expected 1o have a material impact on the Company's financial statemants 

Following amendments are clarificatory in nature- 

Amendment to Ind AS 108 

In Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 109, in Appendix B, in paragraph B4 3.12, for tem {b), the following [tem shall be substituted, namely:- 

“ib} a combination of entities ar businesses under comman eontrol as described in Appendix C of Ind AS 103; or"; 

The application of this amendment [s nat experted to have a material impact an the Company's financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 115 

In Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 45) 115, in Appendix 1,- 

{i} irs paragraph 2, far the words and figure "parsgraph af 157, the word and figure "paragraph 51° shall be substituted; 

{il} in paragraph 5. for the word and letter “Appendix O° the ward and letter "Appendix 8" shall be substituted. 

The application of this amendment is not expected to have a maternal impact on the Company's financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 103 
in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 10%, in Appendix C, in paragragh 13, for item (b], the following item shall be substituted, namaly:- 

*[ib] the date an which the transferee obtains control of the transferase”, 

The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
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Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Fal amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise! 

Amendment to Ind AS 102 

In Indian Accounting Standard find AS) 102, the footnote starting with the words “For example, in case” and ending with the words “not 

exercised”, appearing on the heading before paragraph 24 'If the fair value of the equily instruments cannot be estimated reliably’ shall be 

delatad and the same shall be added at the and af paragraph 23 at the words "equity to another” 

The application of this amendment is not expected to have a matenal impact on the Company's financial statements. 

68 Thaso financial statarnents were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2023. 

£9 Previous year figures have been re-grouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to conform fo the current year classification. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Mauria Udyog Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mauriz Udyog Limited 
{hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary Strawberry Star India Private 
Limited (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group®), the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information [hereinafter referred to as “consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements”). 

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 
the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India includ ng Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS7), of 
the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, its loss including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

I. The Group has defaulted in repayment of its borrowing taken from various banks/ NBFCs and 
accordingly these loans have been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) by the respective 
banks/ NBFCs. The Group has not been recognising interest an such loans from the date of NPA 
classification by respective banks/ NBFCs, The amount of interest expense cannot be 
ascertained. Further, the balances of borrowings are subject to confirmation from the respective 
banks/ NBFCs. 

Il. The Group has classified its investments in unquoted equity shares of other entities to be Fair 
Valued through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). However, it has not obtained/ carried 
out fair valuation of such unquoted equity shares The Group has measured investments in 
unquoted equity shares based on Net Asset Value of such equity shares as at 31 Mareh 2022 
wherever the financial statements of such entities are available as on such date, The impact of 
fair valuation cannot be ascertained, 

WW. The Group has not used expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on 
trade receivables as required by Ind AS 109 *Financlal Instruments”. The impact of such non- 
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compliance cannot be ascertained, However, the Group has made a provision of # 3,287.79 Lacs 

against doubtful trade receivables in the current financial year. 

IV. The Group had entered into certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in past 

years. In consequent to which forensic audit was conducted as per the Directions of Hon'ble 

Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between Amrapali Group of Companies and 
Sureka Group of Companies. After which the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order Nao. Writ 
Petition(s}(Civil) No. 940/207 dated 2 December 2019 had directed M/s Jotindra Steel & Tubes 
Limited and Holding company Mauria Udyog Limited including associated companies and 
Directors viz Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka and Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka to deposit € 16,700.00 
Lacs. In response to the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, it had filed an application on 9 

December 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to accept the Title deeds of immaoveable 
properties belonging to Sureka family members and associate companies (based on latest 
valuation report) worth amaunting 16,897.00 Lacs net of incumbency amount of 7 3,934.00 
Lacs including Properties amounting 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Holding Company Mauria 
Udyog Limited 

In the financial year 2019-20, the Holding Company had charged 1,500.00 Lacs in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss against the above matter on an estimated basis and reduced the 
value of properties (property which is deposited to Hon'ble Supreme Court), 

The Group has neither provided for liability against this matter, nor any amaunt has been shown 
as contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets”. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to sur audit of the 
Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion, 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in eur professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion therean, and we da not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Wa have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
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Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Loss allowance for Trade receivables 

(refer Note 8 and point iii of Basis for 

Qualified Opinion paragraph) 

The Group has trade receivables of 10,103.10 

lacs as at 31 March 2021 (net of impairment loss 

of ¥ 3,287.79 lacs), 

Owing to the nature of operations of the Group 
and related customer profiles, the Group has 
significant long standing trade receivable 
balances, for which appropriate loss allowance is 
required to be created for expected credit losses 
using simplified approach in accordance with the 
requirements of Ind AS 109, Financial 

Instruments, measuring the loss allowance equal 
to lifetime expected credit losses, 

Fer the purpose of expected credit loss 
assessment of trade receivables, significant 
judgment is required by the management to 
estimate the timing and amount of realization of 

these receivables basis the past history, customer 
profiles, and consideration of other internal and 

external sources of information, including the 
impact of COVID 19 pandemic in aforesaid 
estimates. 

Considering the significant judgement involved, 
increased complexities due to the pandemic, 
high estimation uncertainty and materiality of the 
amounts involved, we have identified loss 
allowance on trade receivables as a key audit 
matter for current year audit, 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

* Understanding the trade receivables process 

with regards to valuation and testing of 

controls designed and implemented by the 

management. 

* Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade 

receivables at year end on sample basis. 

+ Obtained a list of outstanding receivables, 

with the identified significant long 

outstanding receivables, and discussed plan 
of recovery lifetime with management, 

+ Circularized balance confirmations to a 
sample of trade receivables and reviewed 

the reconciling items, if any. 

= Varified the appropriateness of judgments 

regarding provisions for trade receivables 
and assess as to whether these provisions 

were calculated in accordance with the 

Group provisioning policies. 

* Tested subsequent settlement of trade 
receivables after the balance sheet date on a 

sample basis, as applicable, 

= Verified the related disclosures made in 

nates to the financial statements in 

accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109. 

* The Group has not used expected credit loss 
model to assess the impairment loss or gain 
on trade receivables as required by Ind AS 

109 "Financial Instruments”, 
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Litigation, Claims and Contingent Liabilities | Principal audit procedures performed: 

(Refer Note 65, read along with point iv of 

Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph) » We understood the processes, evaluated the 

design and implementation of controls and 

The Group is exposed to a variety of different tested the operating effectiveness of the 
laws, regulations and interpretations thereof Group controls over the recording and re- 
which encompasses indirect taxation and legal assessment of uncertain legal positions, claims 

matters. In the normal course of business, and contingent Habilities. 

provisions and contingent liabilities may arise We held discussions with senior management 
from legal proceedings, including regulatory and of holding company including the person 
other Governmental proceedings, constructive responsible for legal and compliance to obtain 
obligations as well as investigations by an understanding of the factors considered by 

authorities and commarcial claims. management in classification of the matter as 

‘probable’, ‘possible’ and ‘remote’; 

Examined the Group legal expenses on sample 

basis and read the minutes of the board 

meetings and the legal compliance committee 

in order to ensure completeness. 

We read the correspondence from Court 

authorities and considered legal opinion 

obtained by the holding company 
Given the different views, possible basis the Management from external law firms to 
interpretations, complexity and the magnitude of | evaluate the basis used for provisions 

the potential exposures, and the judgement | recognised or the disclosures made in the 
necessary to determine required disclosures, this Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

is 3 key audit matter, We also obtained direct legal confirmations for 
significant matters from the law firms handling 

such matters to corroborate holding comapny 

management's conclusions, 

» For those matters where holding company 

Management concluded that no provision 

should be recorded, we also considered the 

adequacy and completeness of the Group 

disclosures made in relation to contingent 
liabilities. 

Based on the nature of regulatory and legal cases 

management applies significant judgement 

when considering whether, and how much, to 
provide for the potential exposure of each 
matter. These estimates could change 

substantially over time as new facts emerge as 

wach legal case or matters progresses. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

l. We draw attention to Note 8B to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes the 
classification of disputed and long outstanding trade receivables as non-current aggregating 
8,027.16 Lacs (net of provision of ¥ 3,287.79 Lacs) wherein the management has explained the 

reasons for not writing off/ provided for such receivables. 

Il. We also draw attention to Note 26 to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes 

that one of the financial creditors of the Company has filed petition under Section 7 of 
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 before Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide Company 
Petition No. C.P.(IB) — 138/2022 dated February 23, 2022 for initiation of corporate insolvency 
resolution process. The Group after negotiations with the creditor reached a settlement, 
however, the Group is yet to fully discharge the remaining liability, 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, The Annual Report is expected to 
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with eur audit of the consolidated financial statements, our respansibility is to read the 
other information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's 
Board of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act 
that give a true and fair view of the conselidated financial position, consolidated financial performance 
{including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows 
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
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Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consofidated ind AS financial 

statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 

companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but te do sa, 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 

the finanaal reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes aur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstaternants can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic dacisions 
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, Ag part of an audit in 
accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit, We also; 

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral, 

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and subsidiary companies which are 
companies incorporated in India, have adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial staternents in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's repart to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
abtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group to cease to continue as a going concarn. 

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS finandal 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consalidated Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group of which we are the inde pendent auditors, to express an opinion 
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other 
entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditars, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audits carried out by ther. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated Ind AS finandal statements of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scape and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
ralated safeguards. 
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Other Matters 

(a) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of the subsidiary whose Ind AS finandal 

statements reflects net assets of ¥ 0.88 lacs as at March 31, 2023 for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These Ind AS financial 
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by 
the management and our opinion an the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report 
in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors, 

lb Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 far maintaining books of account 
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is 
applicable to the Group with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 
11g} of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2023. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements 
certified by the management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

im 

@ 

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 (the "Ordar"/ "CARD" issued by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of 
the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given 
to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
and taking into consideration the reports of other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements 
of subsidiaries included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company, to 
which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that no adverse remarks were reported by the 
other auditors in the Order reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 for which such Order reports have been issued till date 
and made available to us. 

As required by section 143{3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of 
the other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements and the other financial information of 
subsidiaries, as noted in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements; 
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from 

our examination of thase books and the reports of the other auditors; 

ct. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 

Other Comprehensive Income), the Cansolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind 

AS financial statements; 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated 
in India, none of the directers of the Group companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act: 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
stataments of the Helding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the 
operating effectiveness of such cantrals, refer to our separate report in "Annexure A™: 

h. With respect to the other matters to be induded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bast of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us; 

i. The Group as detailed in Note 65 to the Cansalidated Ind AS financial statements, has 
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2023; 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, Hence, 
the question of any material foresezable losses does not arise; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Group. 

iv. {a} The Management of holding company has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in notes to the accounts, ne funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entitylies), 
including foreign entities [*|ntermediaries®), with the understanding, whether recorded in 



NKSC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management of holding company has represented that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Group from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

{c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 

. The Group has not declared nar paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the 
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 

Far NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No, 020076N 
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Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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ANNEXURE ‘A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

[Referred to in Para 2 of the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the 

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 37, 2023) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under 
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog 
Limited ("Company” or "Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we 
have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Halding 
Company and subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies controlled 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements of Holding Company and subsidiary companies, which are 
companies incorporated in India based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing 
the risk thal a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor's judgement, including the 
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assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the 
other auditors, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degrea of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
and based on consideration of reporting of other auditors as mentioned in Other Matter 
paragraph, the Holding Company and subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated 
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI, 



NKSC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)() of the Act on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in sa far as it 

relates to one subsidiary company is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such 

company. 

For NKSC & Co, 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 020076N 

[] 

Priyank Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No. 521986 
UDIN: 23521986BGQDNL3973 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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Maurin Udyog Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 11, 2023 

{AN amsunts are Tin lex, unless sated others) 

Income 

Remnue from operations 

Citar income 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Cost of materials conpemad 

Purchases of sock in-trade 

Changes it inventories 

Employee benefit expenig 
Finance cotts 

Depreciation and amartisation expense 

Othor expenses 

{Las) before exceptional items and tax 

Loves Exceptional sles 

(Loss) before tax 

Tax expan 

Cason fax 

Deferred Say charge Thensfit 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax 

Other comprehensive incoms/ (leas) 

Thema that will not be reclanified subsequeatly to profil ar loss 
~- Remeasurenent of equity instruments 

- Remeasurement of defined bannfit plans 

= Income tax relating te these tems: 

Tema that will be retlanified subsequently te profit ar lem 
- Fessian eurrenty transiation mere 

= Incama tax relating Le these tems 

Total comprehensive income/{loss) 

Earninga/iLoml per equity share 
Basie and diluted (loss) per share 

The accompanying netes form an integral part of these finandal fatemente. 

As per our report of even date: 

For NKSC & Ca. C & 

Chartorsd Accountants + (a) 

Fiem Registration Mo. 0Z0076M > =} 

* * 

Membership No: 521585 

UDINE 2351 SBGRGGDNLISTY 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 

F
E
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For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

23,769.00 

49402 

25,668.92 

13,809.55 

50.27 

(1045.34; 

1,304,527 

2554.80 
301.33 

3,404 88 

25,960.05 

(251.93) 

[291.135 

{0.65 

For behalf of the Saard of Directors of 

L] Limited 

Davinder Humar Gupta 

Chil Financed Officer 

Pam: ADNPGOTIIM 

Place: New Deth| 
Data: May 3, 2023 

Director 

DINOTIIE03C 

Divya Prgean sd 
Divya Agrawal 

Company Secretery 
ACS: AZTETT 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Consolidated Staternent of Cash flows for the year ended March 11, 2023 

(al amounts are ¥ in lacs unless stated otherwise) 

Cash flow from eperating activities 

Loss) before tax 

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated from operations 

Provision for amployoe benefits 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Impairment of security deposits 

Loss on sale of investments 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Interest income 

Dividend income 

abilities no longer required written back 

Finance costs 

Other eamprehensive incoma 

Operating profit/ (loss) before werking capital changes 

Adjustments for (increase) /decrease in operating arvets 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

"Inventories 
Trade receivables 
Loans 

Other financial assats 

Other non-financial assets 

Adjustments for ineraato/{decressn) in operating lnhilities 
Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Other non-financial Rabilities 

Carh generated from operations 

Less: Income tax paid, net of refunds 
Net cazh flow generated from/(used in) operating activities (4) 

Cash flows fram investing activities 

[Payments for] PPE intangible assets and TWIP 
Decreas= in investments 

Interest income 

Dividend income 

Met cash flow from investing activities (0) 

Cash flaws from financing netivities 

(Paymonts for) borrowings 

Finance costs 

Net cash inflow from/{used in) financing activities (C) 

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B4C) 

Cash and cath equivalents st the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Mates tn Statement of cath flaws: 

Compenents of cash and bank balances (refer Notes 14 and 15) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other bank balances 
Cash and bank balances at end of the year 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

231.13) 

Zn 

307.33 
1478.24 

0.70 
196 

(10210) 
(0.08) 

278.18) 
2.55480 

(19.28) 
1681.97 

(41.49) 
1339.12) 
6,755.75 

315 
11066 

607 

(1,805.42) 
242159 

18.33 
451252 

15.3201 
(2188) 

15,301.43 

(767.28) 
1061 
1210 

208 
(654.49) 

(12,140.28) 
{2.554.80) 

114.695.08) 

48.14) 
121.85 

73.0 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

an 

1,455.69 

1,625.41 

— Continued on mxt page



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 37, 2023 

[AN amounts are € in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

~ Continued from previous page 

(ii). Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabiities arising from financing activities: 

Mon-current borrowings Current Interest on 

{including current maturities) barowings borrowings 

Eor the year ended March 31.2021 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 1251692 2182791 435 

Loan deawalufinterest accured during the year » 252284 2.55480 
Ind AS adjustments (561545) - ' 
Loan repayment interest payment during the year 833.00) (11,461.12 12,554.71) 

Other non-cash charges (104.11) 104.11 266 

Balance as at March 11, 2023 5.964.136 12,993.74 7.09 

There are no non-cash changes on account of effect of changes in foreign exchange rates and fair values 

(iii) The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method” as set out in the tnd AS « 7 an "Cash Flow Statements” 

specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

(iv) The above Statement of cash flows should be read in conjuctian with the accompanying nates. 

As per our report of even date, 

For NKSC & Ce. 

Charterad Accountants 

Firm Registration Ne. 0200 

LF 

Membership No: 521986 

UDIN: 235219868GADMLISTI 

Place: New Dulhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Mauria Udyog Limited 

Ld 
-_ 

Havneet Kumar Sureka Sujata Kumar 

Managing Director Cirector 

DIN: DOD5A925 Dit: 01210030 

aca Bi vya 
Davinder Kumar Gupta Divya 

Chief Financial Officer Company Sacrataty 

PAN; ADNPGOTOIM ACS AZ10T1 

Mace: Naw Delhi 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes te the Consolidated Financial Statem~nts fa- the year ended March 31, 2023 

Corporate information 

Tha Mauria Group (hereinafter referred to as “tha Group”) consists of Tha Mauria Udyog Limited (“tha holding 

company”) and its subsidiary. 

The Holding Company is a public company domiciled in India, with its registered officn situated at Anand Jyoti 

Building, 41 Netaji Subhas Road, Room Ne. 107, 1st Floor, Kolkata WB - 700001. The holding company was 

incorporated on September 24, 1980. Tha shares of the holding company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchangs 

(BSE) and Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE), 

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of LPG oylinders and related accessories like 

valves and regulators, and textile products. 

1. Basis of preparation 

(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards: 

These Consolidated Ind AS financial statements ("the Financial Statements) have been prepared in accordance 

with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS") 25 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs {'MCAY) under Section 

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Mules, 2015, as 

amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Group has uniformly applied the accounting palicies for 

all the periods presented in these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were autharised and approved for 

issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2023. 

The significant accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these consolidat=d financial 

statements are included in Note 2, These policies have bean applied consistently by the Group for all the periads 

presented in these consolidated financial statements. 

(ii) Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise tho financial statements of the Holding Company, its 

subsidiaries, associates and joint venturas. Control is achieved whan the Group is mxposed =r has rights, to 

vatiable returns from its Involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect thasa returns through its 

power ovar the investee. Specifically, the Group contrals 2n investes if and enly if the Greup has: 

= Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the eurrent ability te direct the relevant activities 

of the investes) 

+ Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the invastes, and 
+ The ability to use its power over the investes to affect its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption 

and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investes, the Group considers 
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has powar aver an invastee, induding: 



Mauria Udyag Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31. 2023 

. The contractual arrangement with the other vole holders of the investee 

. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

. The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 

The size of the group's holding of veling rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other 

voting rights holders 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it contrals an investea if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 

changes to ona or mara of the three elements of control, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 

obtains contral over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 

income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated 

financial statements from the date the Group oains control until the date the Group ceases to control the 

subsidiary. 

Consolidated {inancial statements are prepared using uniform accounting palicias far like transactions and other 

events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting palicies other than those adopted in 

the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. appropriate 

adjustments are made to that group member's financial satements in preparing the consolidated financial 

statements to ensure conformity with tha group's accounting policies 

Tha financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of ronsclidation are drawn up to the same reporting 

date as that of the holding company, ia, the year ended an March 31. When tha and of the reporting peried of 

the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional 

financial Information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to arable the parent to 

consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so 

Consclidation procedure for subsidiary 

{a) Combine like iterns of assets, lisbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parant with 

those of its subsidiaries, 

1] Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's 

portion of equity of each subsidiary, Business combinations policy explains how fo agcount for any related 

goodwill. 

le) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilithes, equity, Income, evpentes and cash flows relaling to 

transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are 

recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies 

to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits 2nd losses resulting from intragroup 

transactions. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of 

the parent of the Group and the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests 

having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 

bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assats and liabilities, 

equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions batween members of the Group are eliminated 
in full en consolidation. 



Mauria Udyag Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 37, 2023 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 

transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

+ Derecognises the assets {including goodwill) and liabllities of the subsidiary 

+ Derecognises the carrying amount of any nan-controlling interests 

+ Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity 

+ Recognises the fair value of the consideration received 

+ Recognises the fair value of any investment retained 

« Recognises any surplus or deficit in prafit or loss 

+ Redassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OC to profit or loss or retained 

earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or 

liabilities 

{iii} Current and non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-currant in accordance with the 

Group's normal operating cycle other criteria set out in the Schedule il to tha Act, 

(iv) Functional and presentation currency 

(vd 

(wi) 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupes (2), which is also the Group's functianal currency, All 

amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated. 

Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following terns: 

Items Bazis of measurement 

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair valua 

Net defined benefit asset/liability Fair value of plan asset lass present value of defined 

bensfit obligation 

Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of the Group's conselidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, 

estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and 

the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Significant management judgements: 

Recognition of deferred tax assets ~ The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an 

assessment of the probability of the future taxable incama against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised, 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

= Business model assessment — The Group determines tha business model at a level that reflects how groups of 

financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement 

reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance 

measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers 

of the assets are compensated. The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost that are 

derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are 

consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group's 

continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held 

continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and 

accordingly prospectiva change to the classification of those assets ars made, 

# Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment 

of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of 

recoverable amount of the assets. 

+ Classification of leases - Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period 

of a lease adjusted with any oplion to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is reasonably 

certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby 

assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. 

In evaluating the |ease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements 

undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the leasa and the importance of the 

underlying asset to the Group's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the 

availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term 

raflects the current ezonomic circumstances After considering current ane future economic conditions, the 

Group has concluded that no changes are required to leasa period relating to the existing lease contract. 

= Expected credit loss (ECL) - The measurement of expected eredit loss allowance for financial assets measured 

at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions 

and credit behaviour (e.g, Fkelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses), The Group makes significant 

judgements regarding the following while assessing expected eredit loss: 

+ Determining eriteria for significant increase in credit risk 

s Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 

product/market and the associated ECL 

+ Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL 

= Provisions = At each Balance Sheet date, based on the management judgment, changes in facts and legal 

aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. 

However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

Significant estimates: 

e Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual 

values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at sach reporting date, based on the 

expected utility of the assets, Uncertaintizs in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence 

that may change the utility of assets. 



Mauria Udyag Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 37, 2023 

+ Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying 

assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary 

increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined 

benefit expenses. 

+ Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial 

instruments (where active market quotes are not available), This involves developing estimates and assumptions 

consistent with how market participants would price the instrument, 

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

(iy Revenue 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework far 

determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning 

revenue earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone 

selling price basis, using a five-step model. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction 

Contract The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. 

Revenue from sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of contrel of promised product or services to customer in an amount that 

reflect the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the fair 

valun of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction prica, net of any taves/duties 

and discounts. 

The Group satisfies a parfarmance obligation and recognises revenue aver time, If ena of the following eriteriz 

is met: 

a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the bonefis provided by the Group's 

performance as the Group performs; or 

b. The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer conlrols as the asset is 

created or enhanced; or 

c The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use fo the Group and an entity 

has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date 

For performance obligations where one of tha above conditions are not met revenue is recognised at the point 

in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied. 

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a time on which tha performance obligation is satisfiad. 

Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export sales 

is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Group recognises pravision for 

sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of tha sale, 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
© Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(ii) 

Other operating income 

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and 

conditions attached to the benefits are satisfied, 

Other income 

Rental income 

Rental income from investmant property is recognised as part of other income in profit or loss on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general 

inflation. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of 

the loase. 

Interest income 

Interast income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method, 

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exacily discounts estimated future cash payments ar rec=ipts through 

the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carving amount of the financial asset 

Commission income 

Commission income ara recognised in Staternent of Profit or Loss only whan tha relevant services have been 

rendered. 

(iii) Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benafits: 

Short term employee benefit obligations re measured on 2n undiscounted basis and are sxpenses off as the 

related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus atc. ars recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss in the year in which the employea renders the related service: The liabilities are prasented as 

current employes benefit obligation in the balance shest. 

Leng term employes benefits: 

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund 

All employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined 

contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a 

predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employe=es Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 

1952, These contributions ara made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The 

Group has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions, Obligation for contribution 

to defined contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in 

the peried during which the related services are rendered by the employees 
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Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 

The Group provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments to 

vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount 

equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five 

years of service. Benefits payable to efigible employees of the Group with respect to gratuity is accounted for on 

the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. 

Tha present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past 

service enst and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be 

sattled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit abligation or change 

in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The 

Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit 

that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair 

value of any plan assets. 

The Group determines the net interest expensa/{incomej on the net defined banefit liability/{asset) far the period 

by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual 

period to the then-net defined benefit liability/{asset), taking into account amy changes in the net defined benefit 
liability/(asset] during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Mat interest expense and 

other expenses related to defined benefit plans ara recognized in the statement of profit and lass. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 

to past service [past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised 

immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a 

defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

The Plan assets of the Group are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India through a trust created by the 

Group in terms of an insurance policy taken on fund obligations with respect to its gratuity plan. 

Other long-term benelfls: Cempensaled abronces 

Benefits under the Group's compensated absences scheme constitute other employes benefits. The liability in 

respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit 

Credit Method done by an independant actuary as at the balance shea! date Actuarial gain and losses are 

recognized immediately In other comprehensive income 

(iv) Foreign exchange transactions and translations 

Initial recognition: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency amount 

of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction. 
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(v) 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monatary assets and labllities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated translated 

using the exchange rate prevailing at the reperting date. Non-menatary assets and Rabilities which are measured 

in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of 

transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates 

at the date when fair value is determined. 

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or an restatement of the Group's monetary 

items at rates different from those at which they Initially recorded during the year or reported jn previous 

financials statement (other than those ralating to fixed assets and other lana tarm monastery assots] are 

recagnised as income of expenses in the year in which they arise. 

Foreign operations: 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR the functional currency of the Group, at 

the exchanges rates st the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into 

Group at the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction or an average rate if the average rate approximates 

the actual rata at the date of the transaction, 

Group companies: 

On consalidation, the assets and liabilities of forsign operations are translated into Indian rupee at the rate of 

exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are transiated at exchange rates 

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Far practiezl reasons, the Group uses an average rate to translate 

income and expensa items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dstes of the transactions. 

The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCH On disposal of a foreign 

operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign eperation is recognised in prefit or lass 

Tax expense 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax It i& recognised in the statement of profit and loss except ta the 

extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other 

comprehensive income, 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 

adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the 

best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related 

to income taxes, It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 

date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable nght to set off the 

recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 
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wi) 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 

tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tox losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

= temporary differences arising an the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is 

not a business eambination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time 

of the transaction; 

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill, 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 

against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxebla profit 

may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tay asset 

only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temparary differences ar there is convinging other evidence that 

sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised, Dafarred tax assats 

~ unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent 

that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Inventories 

Raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress, manufactured finished geods and traded goods ars valued 

at lower of cost or net realisable value, The comparison of cast and net realisable value is made on an item by 

item basis, Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and ether cast incurred in bringing them 

to their respective present location and condition. Cost is dstermined using first in, first out method of inventary 

valuation, 

Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realizable value, 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Provision of obsolescence an inventories is considered an the basis of management's estimate based on demand 

and market of the Inventories. 

(vii) Leases 

As fessor 

Leases for which the Group is a lessor classified as finance or operating lease, Lease income from egerating 

leases whera the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the 

receipts are structured to increase in fine with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected 

inflationary cost increases. The respective leasad zssets ara includzd in the balance sheet based on their nature. 
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(viii) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to cash with eriginal maturities of three months or less at the time af 

purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 

are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet, 

(ix) Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets 

(x 

Provisions 

The Group creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires 

an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of ebligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisians are determined by discounting the expected future 

cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required {o settle the present obligation at the 

balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 

the risks spedfic to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost 

Contingent liability 

Contingent kabilities are possible obligations that arisa {rom past events and whose exdstence will only be 

confirmed by the occurrence or nen-accurrence of ane er more uncertain future events not wholly within the 

control of the Group. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, ar the 

amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability 

of outflow of economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are possible assets that arizes from past events and whose existences will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non-occurrance of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the Group. 

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital werk-in-progrest) 

R iti i i 

All iterns of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, Freehold land is carried 

at cost. All ether iterns of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever 

applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs less depraciation and impairment, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impart duties and non- 

refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of 

bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing 

the item and restoring the site an which it is located. 
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If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they ara 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Group had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and 

equipment recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 

deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised a5 a separate asset. as appropriate, 

only when it is probable that future economic benefits zssociated with the item will flow to the Group and the 

cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 

assat is derecognised when replaced. 

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statoment of Profit and Loss during the reporting period 

in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values 

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value 

aver their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods 

are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of tha Act. 

The useful lives of the assets are as under: 

Particulars Useful lives (in years) | 

Tangible assets: | 

Land 

Building 30 Years 

Ownership flat 60 years 

Plant & machinery 15 Years 

Electrical installations 10 Yaars 

Dies 15 Years 

Vehicles 8B Years 

Cranes 15 Years 

Measuring & testing 10 Years 

Furniture & fixture 10 Years 

Office building 80 years 

Office equipment 5 Years 

Computers 3 Years 

Air conditioners and fans 10 Years 
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Truck trailers B Years 

Fire-fighting equipment 15 Years 

Solar power generating system B Years 

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives 

as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assats. Depreciation on 

addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for 

intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date 

of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if 

any, are accounted for prospectively. 

(xi) Intangible assets 

Recognition and measurement 

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the assat 

will flow to the Group and where its cost can be reliably measured. 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any 

cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, 

Amortization 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the 

straight-line method and is included in da2preciation and arnortisation in the statement of prafit and loss 

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows: 

Particulars | Useful lives (in years) | 

Intangible assets: ] 

Computer softwara | 3 years 

Amartisation method, useful lives and residual valuas are reviewed st each financial year-end, and changes. if 

any, are accounted for prospectively. 

Losses arising from the retirement of and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of asset and 

recognised as income or expense In the statement of profit and loss. 

{xii} Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are roviewed at each reporting 

date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's 

or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash- 

generating units {CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are 

largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUSs, 

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less 

costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows; discounted to thelr present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflocts currant market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific 

to the CGU (or the asset). 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in 

respact of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGL, and then 

to reduce the carrying amounts of tha other assets of tha CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

After impairment, depreciation/amartisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset aver its 

remaining useful life, 

{xiii} Borrowing costs 

Barrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrawing of funds. Borrowing costs 

directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necassarily take a substantial period of time 

to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost af that assat. Other borrowing costs are 

recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(xiv) Financial instruments 

Initinl recognition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. Ml other financial 

assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. 

A financial asset ar financial lishility is intially measured 2t fair value plus, transaction costs that ara directly 

attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an ftem recognised at fair value through prelit and loss. 

Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in the statement of 

profit and loss, 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured zt: 

= amortised cost, 

= Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or 

© Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

The classification depends on the entity's business modal for managing the financial assets and the contractual 

terms of the cash flows. 
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent tn their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group 

changes [ts business model for managing financial assets, 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 

as at FVTPL: 

= tha asset is hold within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 
flows; and 

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ara selaly 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI il it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at 

FVTPL: 

» theasset is held within a business model whose chjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling finandal assets; and 

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are salely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstancling, 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irevecably clect to 

present subsequent changes in the invastment’s fair value in OCI (designated as PVOCE - equity investment). 

This election is made on an investment by investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortisad cost or FVOCI as described above are measured 

&t FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On intial recognition, the Group may [rrevecably designate 

a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured rt amortized cost or at FVOC! or at 

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would atharwise arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 
The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at 2 

portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to 

management. The information considered includes: 

« the stated policies and abjectives for the pertfolio and the operation of those policies in practice, These 

include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual [nterest income. maintaining a 

particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related 

liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

s how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to tha Groun's mansgement: 

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model fand the finencial assets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are manage; 

= how managers of the business ars compensated - 2.0, whether compensation is based on tha fair value 

of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 
othe frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales 

and expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not 

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing recognition of the assets 

Financial assats that aro held for trading or ara managed and whoze parfarmances is evalustod on a fair value 
basis are measured at FVTPL. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 

recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated 

with the principal amount sutstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and 

costs (e.g, liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers 

the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whather the financial asset contains a contractual 

tearm that could change tha timing or amount ef contractual cash flaws such that it would not meet this condition. 

In making this assessment, the Group considers: 

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

v terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interost rate features; prepayment 

and extension features; and 

» terms that limit the Group's daim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g, non- recourse features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment 

amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, 

which may include reasonable additional compensation for arly termination of the contract. Additionally, far 2 

financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium ta its contractual par amount, a feature that permits 

or réquines prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but 

unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonablo additional compansation far early termination} 

is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment faaturs is insignificant at initial 
recognition. 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and |psses 

Financial assets at amortised cost; These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the affective 

interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any, Interest income and impairment 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in statement 

of profit and lass. 

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Met gains and losses, including 

any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Debts investments at FVOCK These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the 

effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. 

Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI On Derecognition, gains and lasses accumulated in OCH are 

reclassified to profit or loss. 

Equity investments at VOCE These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognized as 

income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, 

Other net gains and losses are recognised in OC| and are not reclassified to profit or loss. 

Einancial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL A financial liability is classified as at 

FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. 
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Financial liabilities at FVTFL are measured ot fo' vzlue and net gains and lossas, including any interest expanse, 

are recognised in the statement of proft and |3ss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interert method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

Offsetting 

Financial assets and finandal liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and 

only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to 

settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, 

Derecognition 

Financial X 

The Group derseognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the Tinancial asset 

expire, or it transfers the rights to recefve the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of 

the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in whizh the Group neither transfers 

nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewsrds of swnerchip and doas net retsm control of the fmandal 

assed, 

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but ratains 

either all or substantizlly 2il of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not 

derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 

expire, 

B The Group alsa derscognises = financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the 

modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is 

recagnised at fair value. The difference between tha carrying amount of the {inancial lability extinguished and 

the new financial hability with modified tess is recagnisad in the statement of profit and loss. 

Impairment of financial instruments 

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit logses ani 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and 

« Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments 

At each reporting dats, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amartised cost and debt securities 

at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a 

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a 
financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data: 

= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
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= a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period; 

= the restructuring of a loan or advencs br the Group on terms that the Group would not consider 

otherwise; 

» itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 

= the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Expected credit loss 

Loss allowances for trade receivables aro always measured at an amount equal to lifotime expected credit losses. 

Lifetime expected credit losses ara the expected cradit losses that result from all possible default vents over tha 

axpocted life of a financial instrument. : 

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that 

are possible within 12 rmonths after tha reporting date (or a shorter period if tha axpected life of the instrurnent 

is less than 12 months). 

In all cases, tha maximum period considered when estimating expected credit lasses is the maximum contractual 

period over which the Group is exposed to credit nsk. 

When determining wheather tha eradit rick of a financial seat has increased significantly since initial recognition 

and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that 

is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes bath quantitative and qualitative informatian 

and analysis, based on the Group's historical asnerionce and informed credit assessment and including forward 
leaking information. 

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed 

credit period. 

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when: 

s the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations te. the Group in full, without recourse by the Group 

to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

s the financial asset is past due and net recovered within agreed eradit period. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Cradit losses are measured as the 

presant value of all cash shortfalls (i.e, the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance 

with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expacts to recive). 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount 

of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheat, 
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Write-off 

Tha gross carrying amount of a financial 7 ssot # weitten off (ther partially or in ful) to the extant that there is 

no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not 

have assets or sources of income that could generzle sufficient cash flows ta repay the amounts subject to the 

write-off. However, financial assets that sre written off could still be subject to efsromment netivities in order to 

comply with the Group's procedures for reco der of amounts due. 

(xv) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share cre calculated by dividing the net profit or lass for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity sharas outstanding during the period. The waightad 

average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for svents such 23 banus issue, 

share split or consolidation of shares. 

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prefit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehalders 

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period arm adjusted for the effects of ali 

dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed carwerted info equity shares as 

at the beginning of the pericd unless they have baen [ssued at a later date. 

(avi) Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported i: a warns consistent with the internal repering provided to the chief 

operating declsion maker, 

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment 

information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Group's Management to allocate resources 

to the segments and assess their performance. 

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information i the mest 
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within thess 

industries, Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. 

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of produsisfzsrvices, Further: 

i. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifialsle with / allocable to the sagment 

including inter-segment ravenua. 

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the 

sagment result. Expenses which relate to the Group 2s a whole and not allocable to segments are 

included under unallocable expenditure. 

3, Income which relates to the Group as a whele and not allocable to segments is included in unallocable 

income. 

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective seomants, 

Unallocable assets 2nd liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group 2s a whels 
and not allocable to any segment. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the G-rup's ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the 

meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 46 for segment information, 

(xvii) Business combinations and Goodwill 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acnuisition method, other than common central transactions, The 
cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at the acquisition date 
fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group 

elects whether to measure the non-cantrolling interests in the acquiree at fair value or the proportionate share of the 
acquirea's identifiable net assets. Acquisiton-related costs are oxpensed as incurred. 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisitian 
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation 
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that the outflow of rescurces embodying 

economic benefits is not probable, However, the following assets and labilities acquired in a business combination 
are measured on the basis indicated below: 

* Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employes benefit arrangements are 

recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits 
respectively. 

+ Liabilities or equity instruments related te sharc-based nayment arrangements of the acquires or share—based 

payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of ths 

acquires are measured in accordance with Ind AS 702 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date. 

«Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets 
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard, 

®  Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the 

related contract Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assotr and liabilities assumed for appropriate 
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the 
acguirce. 

IF the business combination Is achieved in stages, ery previously hell equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition 
date fair value and any resufting gain or loss is recognised in profit or lass or DCL as appropriste 

Any contingent consideration to be transfarred by the acquirer is recognised at fair velus at the acquisition date. 
Contingent consideration classified as an assat or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind 
AS 10% Financial Instruments, is measured at fair valus with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss If the 
contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109; it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind 
AS. Contingent consideration that is classified 2s equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and 

subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 
. amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration 
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities 
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the 

reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acguired over the aggregate consideration 

transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve, However, if there is no 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2023 

clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recogrites the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing 

the same through OCL % 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cnet less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of 
the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other 

assets or liabilities of the acquires are assigned to those units. 

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or mare frequently 

when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is 
less than its carrying amount, the impairment oss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of 2ny goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in 
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 
is not reversed in subsequent periods. 

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 

of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carving amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative 
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination i2 incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. 
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measuremant period, or additional assets or 

liabilities are recognised, to reflect new informstion obtained about facts and circurnstances that cxisted at the 
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are 

_ called as measurement period adjustments, The measurement period does not excesd ane year from the acquisition 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

FAR amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

Capital work-in-progress As at 

March 37, 2023 

Balance at the beginning - 

Addition during the year: 

Building material purchased during the year 269.91 

Capitalized during the year: 

Building [B5.97) 

Balance at the end 183.94 

Capital work-in-progress ageing As at 

March 31, 2023 

Projects in progress 

Less than 1 year 183.94 
1-2 years » 

2-3 years 

More than 3 years & 

183.94 

Investments As at 

March 31, 2023 

Investment in equity instruments (A2 fair valua through Oh 

Quoted 

Agritech India Limited 0.73 

[780 equity shares of 3 10 each) 

Fortune International Limited 2.80 

{10,000 equity shares of 2 10 cach) 

gihariji ispat Udyeg Limited 353 
(1.00.800 equity shares of T 10 each} 

Sri Marayan Raj Kumar Merchants Limited 18.43 

[28,530 equity shares of ¥ 10 each) 

Quality Synthetic Industries Limited 49.40 

{36,650 equity shares af ¥ 10 each) 

Reliance Industries Limited 021 

9 equity shares of T 10 each) 

Nath Bio-Genes (india) Limited 1.21 

(858 equity shares of ¥ 10 each) 
Total (A) 76.41 

Continued on next page 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the yer raded Mary 37, 2023 
(Alf amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

—.Contmued from previous page 

Unquoted 

Biharji Intemational Limited (refer footnote ii 
{20,000 equity shares) 

J5T Engineering Services Limited 
(2.880 equity shares of T 100 each) 

Bihariji Fancy Fibers and Fabrics Limited (refer footnote il) 

[4.71771 equity shares) 

VL Estates Private Limited (refer footnote ii) 

{40,000 aquity shares) 

Amrapali Smart City Private Limited irefer footnote ii) 

{1.000 equity shares) 

Synergy Freightways Private Limited 

(490 equity shares of € 100 each) 

SKD Estates Private Limited 

(4,900 equity shares of T 100 each) 

Sarvome Housing Private Limited 

{900 equity shares of ¥ 10 sach) 

Bihariji Estate Private Limited 
(400 equity shares of T 10 each) 

VL Land & Housing Private Limited 

(1.200 equity shares of € 100 each) 

Achal Estates Private Limited 

[200 equity shares of T 100 each) 

Bihariji Land & Housing Private Limited 
{110 equity shares of 100 each) 

Suraj Stone Corporation Limited (refer footnote ii) 

(19,000 equity shares) 
Total (8) 

(A+B) 

Footnotes: 

Bank value of quoted investments 

Book value of unquoted investments 

Market value of quoted investments 

Na infarmation regarding face value of such imastments is available with the Greup. 

For explanation on the Group risk management process; refer note 45, 

035 

5728 

B0.00 

00 

5.62 

5199 

0.13 

am 

127 

063 

0.50 

057 

204.70 

280.52 

Az at 

March 31, 2023 

There are na significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments of the remittance of income and proceeds of 

disposal, 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Netes to the Conselidated financial statements for the yerr tnd2 { March 31, 2021 

{dif amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) : 

(wii). 

{viii}. 

Trade receivables (non-current) As at 

March 31, 2023 

Unsecured, considered doubtful E 11,314.95 

Lass: Impairment loss allowance (3,287.79) 

8,027.16 

Footnotes: 

The Group has not measured expected credit loss of trade receivable as per Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments’. [Refer Note 48) 

Trade receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks and others. (Refer Note 26). 
For explanation on the Group risk management process, refcy Note 48. 

. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are nermally received in the Group operating cyela. 

No trade receivables are due from director or other officer of the Group and firms or private companins in which any director is a partner, 

a director or a member cither jointly or severally with other persons. 

The Group has initiated proceedings under Section 2 of insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against its trado receivables Ms. Linkwise 

Marketing Private Limited and M/s. Novus Commesales Private Limited, before the NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide Company Petition No, CP. 

(1B)/B&(KE) and T908134/071725 of 2021 and the matter is curently pending before the Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench, Hon'ble NCLT has 

accepted the matter. 

There are certain other outstanding trade receivables which have not been realized on account of delays and lang process. Tho details of 

such trade receivables which are outstanding for a considerable period of ime are given below, The management is monitoring these 

receivables continuously and [s taking approprizte steps to recover these receivables. 

in the opinion of the management, that the amount will net be recavared In the naxt 12 months. Hanes, the same hes Seen classified ar 

non-current in the financial results and has mada necessary provision, wheraver required. 

Trade receivables ageing 

As at 

: March 11, 2023 
Undisputed trade recaivables which havo significa st insranre in odit rah 

0-6 months 

6-12 months . 

1-2 yaars 1BRZE 

2-3 years 21.75% 

Mere than 3 years 11,098.92 

Less: Impairment loss allowance (3.28779) 

B.027.16 

Other financial assets (non-eurrent) As at 

March 37, 2023 

Security deposits 3,003.81 
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1475.24) 

MNon-current bank balances 120.35 

1,645.92 
Footnote: 

For explanation on the Company risk management process. refer note 45 



Mauria Udyog Limited % im EH 
Notes to the Consolidated finapcial state?! taf fe yor ne DOE ach 21, 2023 

{Al amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise) - 

n 

12 

13 

Es
s 

fiw). 
wl 

Deferred tax assets (net) As at 

March 31, 2023 

Deferred tax assets (net) (rafor note 56) 3007.64 

3,007.64 

Other nan-current assots As at 
March 31, 2023 

Capital advances 66.67 

Assets under dispute (refer footnote and Note 50) 8,681.90 

8,748.57 

Footnote: 

The said properties have been acquirer by the Parent Company pursuant to settlement of receivables from Strawberry Star India Private 

Limited and VL Land and lousing Pr ate Limited, However, these properties have not bean registered in the name of the Group. The title 

dends of aforesaid properties had been submilted to Hon'ble Supreme Court, vida its Order Mo. Writ Metition{siCivil) Mois). 240,2017 

dated December 2, 2019, consequence ta the report of the forentiz zuditor underizken as par the direction of the Hon'ble Supreme Court 

of India to look into transactions of Amrapali group of companies znd cccordingly shown as assats ender dispute, 

Inventories As at 

Fiarch 31, 2023 

Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value 

Raw materials 2217.82 

Stores and spares 27926 

Loose tools 13.89 

Work-in-progress 3.04092 
Finished goods 5 1,391.23 

. Stock-in-trade 5am 

Goods in transit 52.31 

Valued at estimated realisable value 
Scrap materlals 1851 

7,072.04 

Footnote: 

Inventories are pledged as securities for borrowing taken from banks and others (refer note 26 

Trade receivables (current) As at 

March 31, 2023 

Uneecurad - at amortized cort 
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 207594 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

2,075.94 

Footnotes: 

The Group has not measured expected credit loss of trade receivable as per Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments’. (Refer nota 43) 

Trade receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks and others {refar note 26), 
For explanation on the Company risk management process, refer note 48, 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing 2nd are narmally received in the Group eperating cde. 
Mo trade receivables are due from director or other officer of the Group and firme or private companies in which any director is a partner, 

a director or 8 member aither jointly or severally with other persons 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Consolidated financial stat! ais fr 1" yor 
{All amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

(wi). 

14 

15 

17 

Trade receivables ageing 

Undisputed trade receivables - considered goad 

0-6 months 
E-12 months 

= 1-2 years 

2-3 years 
More than 3 years 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks 

«In current accounts 

Cash on hand 

Bank balances other than cach and cash equivalents 

Deposits with maturity mere than three menths but less than twelva months 
Earmarked balances with banks (refer footnote) 
Balzneas with post office in savings ban account 

Footnote: 

Earmarked balances with banks includes balances held for unpaid dividend pertaining to financial year 2018-19. 

Loans (current) 

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise 

Loans to 

Employees 

~Oithers 

Footnote: 

Far explanation on the Group risk management process, refer nots 48, 

Other financial assets (current) 

Export incentives recoverable 

Interest accrued on deposits 

Footnote: 

For explanation on the Group risk management process, refer note 48, 

Current tax assets (net) 

Current tax assets (net] 

© "rch 31,2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2010.87 

65.07 

2,075.94 

As at 

March 11, 2023 

28.40 

a5.31 

73 

As at 
March 37, 2023 

1455.84 

0.20 

0.05 

1,455.69 

As at 

March 11, 2023 

17.40 

3.76 

21.186 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

305.17 

41.62 

346,79 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

188.42 

188.42 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year snded March 31, 2023 

(All amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

18 Other current assets 

Prepaid expenses 

Advances to suppliers 

Balances with government authorities 

Less; Impairment lass allowance 

. Space intonticnally left blank... 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2286 

24751 
713.8% 

(187.25) 
796.96 



Mauris Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the yeer e~ded March 37, 2023 

(AF amounts are Ta lacs unless stated otherwise) 

20 Equity share eapital 

i), The Parent company has only one class of shar eapital hating » par value of TT per share, reforrod to herein as equity sharos. 

As at 

March 11, 2023 

Authorised shares 
50,00,00.000 (PY 50,00,00.000) shares of ¥ 1 each 3 5,000.00 

. 5.000.00 

Iesund, subteribod and fully paid-up shares 

13,32,00,000 (PY 13,32,00,000) shares of 2 1 sach 1,332.00 

1,332.00 

{il}. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding ot the beginning ard end of the year 

Asa 

Farch 31, 2023 

Humber Aanount 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 13.32,00,000 1332.00 

Shares outstanding at the end of the yaar 13,32,00,000 1,332.00 

(iii). Terma/rights attached to equity shares 
Veting 

Esch shareholder is entitled ta ane vate per share laid, 

Dividends 

The Parent company dedares and pays dividends in Indian rupass. The dividend proposed by tha Snsrd of Directors is subject to sporoval of the 

shareholder: in ensuing Annual Gonersl Mesting except in the cass whers interim dividend (3 digtibuted. The Parent company has not 

elistributed any dividend in the current and previous yaar, 

Liquidation 

In the event of liquidation of the Group, the shatehalders shall be entitlad to razaive all of the remaining z1sets of tha Group afar distribution of 
all preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will ba In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharchalders. 

ivi The Company has no holding company. 

(v]. Detail of shareholders holding mora than 5% of equity shame of the Parent company 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
of shareholder 

is a Heiding in % of Tatal 
numbers equity shares 

Mr. Mavneet Kumar Surska 2.21.53400 16.63% 

Navneet Kumar Suseka (HUF) 1,3856000 10.47% 

Mr. Daepanshu Sureka 206, 10,150 15.47% 

Mrs. Deepa Sureka 77,326,150 581% 

Mrs. Prem Lata Sureka 207,18000 15.55% 

Br. Vishnu Kumar Sureka (HUF) 1,00.61.500 T.55% 

(vi). No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract{s) without payment baing received in cash, allotted a= fully paid un by 

‘way of bonus shares or baught back during the period of § years immediately preceding the Galanza Sheet dats. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
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(Alf amounts are § in face unless stated’ otherwise) 

(wii). 

21 

ti). 

(i). 

(iw). 

Details of share held by Promoters at the end of year 

As at 

Name of shareholder March 31, 2023 

I Humber Percentage 

Mr. Navneat Kumar Sunesa 2,21,53.400 16.63% 

Mr. Vishnu Kumar Sureka 33,30,000 250% 

Mr. Deepanshu Sureha 1,38 66,000 16.41% 

Mrs. Deepa Sureka 20610150 TRAT% 

_ Mrs, Prem Lata Sureka T1L.36.150 581% 

Mavnect Kumar Sureka (HUM) 20718000 15.55% 

Vishnu Mumar Sureks (HUF) 1,00,61,500 755% 

Other equity As at 

March 31, 2023 

General rosorve 
Opening balance 93.85 

Clasing balance 53.88 

Transition reserve 

Opening balance LIT7.55 
Closing balance 1,377.55 

. Netained eamings ! 

Opening balance (#2335 

Add: |Loss) [or the year 919.21) 

Add: Transtermed from accumulated other comprabenzive nesmn 14,82 

Add: Transferred of pre-operative sxpens=. 10.12) 

Closing halanegs (1,027.47) 

Accumulated ather comprehensive income 

Opening balance 202 

Add: Other comprebensive incame/losst fer the yoer (18.28) 

* Lesz Transferred to retained earnings 14.84) 
Closing balance (32.10 

Total Other equity 411.43 

(i. 

(iid. 

Nature and purpose of Other squity: 

General reserve 

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from tmz to time to transfer profits from J te retained oamings for appropriation purposos 

hs the general reserve is crosted by a transfer from ona corararent of equity to another and is not an tars of othor comprehangivi incoma 

items included in the general recerse will not ba reclassifiad sibseruentiv to the Statement of Profit znd Loss 

Transition reserve 

Parent company had revalued its factory land in aarlier wear because of which company erated a revaluation reserve in the year of revaluation 

On adoption of Ind AS in financial year 2017-18, company had transferred such ravaluation reserve 16 transition sagan, 

(iii). Retained eamings 

Retained earnings represents the surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss and sppropriationd 



Mauris Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the yaar sanded March 11, 2023 

[AH amounts are € in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

(iv). Accumulated other comprehensive ine ms 

The Group recognises change on eccount of rameasurement of the net defined benefit lability as part of other comprehensive income with 
separate disclosure, which comprises of: 

+ actuarial gains and losses; 

+ retum en plan assets, oxcluding amounts included in net interest on tha net defined benefit lability; and 

+ any change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, 

The Group has elected fo recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These 

changes are accumulated in the FVOCI equity investments reserve. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when tha 

relevant equity securities are derecognised or sold. Any impalment loss on such Instruments is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

apace intertionally loft bank. 
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22 Borrowings (non-current) Aral 

March 31, 2023 

Secured 

Term loans 
From banks (refer footnote i = 
From others {refer footnote ii) 

Untocured 

Restructured Fiabifity of borrowing (refer footnote &) i 585025 
5,060.25 

Footnotes 

i Term loans from banks 

Lender's Mame . a A Hon-gurrent portion Current portion 
of B Ast dhs at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

JCI Bank 804.00 - £9.72 

£9.72 

A. Term loan from CIC] Rank Limited 

Curing the financial year 2613-14; tha Group hae taken a larg tam bean (2am (000 Bank Limited of © 52000 Lass pz por soreament dale fone 20, 2013. The 

closing balance of wd loan is T 69.72 Lacs as at March 31, 2023 

Interest rate 
This loan carries foating rate of ivterest at |-Base as publidy notified from £2 10 time = margin of 050% pa. 

Repayment 

The laa is repayable in 127 equal monthly nitalmests of T 6.70 Lacs fncluding interest) sach starting from Augest 10. 2013 and payable tl February 10, 2024 

Co-barrewan 
Mr, Navneet Sureka and Mr, Vishnu Surcka 
Security 

Equitable mortgage of Property at A-25, Tower-X ana 0-4, Tower-Y, Setoor-50, 768 Meghdutam, Noida - 207307 

EB. Term loan from IC1C] Bank Limited 

Buring the financial year 2012-13, the Group had taken a lea teem loan from (CIC) Bank Limited of § 284.00 Lacs a4 por agreement dated [anuery 31, 2012 The 

losing balance of said loan is #4 as at March 31, 2073. 

Interest rate 

This lean earries foating rate of interest at [Base 22 peblidy ncffiad fom tims io Ome = margin of 225% ma. 

Repayment 
The loan i repayable in 123 equal monthly instalments of ¥ 3.97 Lacs (inciuding interest) each starting from March 10, 2012 and payabie till May 10. 2022 The 

loan has been fully repaid #4 on March 31, 2023, 

Ca-barrowers 

Pr. Navneet Surckn and fs Dihoriji 13pat Udyog Limited 

Soturity 

Equitable mortgage of Property at Apartment No. PHA 01%, 1st Floor, the Pinnaclz, DLF Ot, Gurgaon, Hanenz, 

Term loans fram others 

Lender's Mama P—— nd 
=f Bamowi As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 2758.48 - 3239 

. 14.35 

C. Term Loan from Aditys Birla Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2015-18, the Group had taken a long term loan from Adie 8a Pnence Limited of T 200000 Lacs a5 per agreement dated 

September 16, 2015, Tha closing balance of sasd lon [8 © NI as at March 31, 2023. 



Mauris Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Conaolidated financial statements for the ear ead-d March 21, 2°23 

(AR amounts are § fn lex, undess stated othenwien) 

Interest rate 
This loan carries floating rate of interest at long term reference rate of Aditya Birla Faance Limited adjusted for sprad. 

Repayment 
The lean is repayable in 85 equal monthly instalments of © 23.81 Lacs (excluding interest) each starting from October 1, 2015 and payable till Oagher 15, 2022, 

Tha loan las bean fully repaid a3 on March 37, 2021 

Co-borrowers 

M/s Veshnadew Properties Private Limitea 

Security ; 
Exclusive charge on {arm house at Sougan Villa Avene Westand Gresns Village Rajokari, Delhi owned by M/s. Veshnodesi Properties Private Limited. 

Personal Guarantees of Mr. Vishnai Sureka Mr, Maviedt Sureka, Mra. Deepa Suraka and Mri. Prom Lata Sureke. 

D. Term Loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited 
During the financial year 2016-17, the Group had taken a long torm lean from Aditya Birla Finance Limited of ¥ 500.00 Lact 22 per agreamant dated October 17, 

2016. The closing balance of said loan is € Ni as at March 17, 2020. 

Interest rate 

This loan carries floating rate of interest af long term reference rate of Aditya Birla France Limited adjusted for spread. 

Repayment 
The loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly intalments of 8.33 Lacs tenduding interest each riarling from Decamber 75, 20016 and paysble 1 November 15, 

2021, The loan has been fully repaid as on March 31, 2023, 

Co-barrmwnrs 

ifs Veshnodew Properties Private Limited 

Sreurity 

Exclusive charge on farm house ai Bougan Villa Avenus Westend Greens Village Rajokari, Delhi owned by Mis. Veshnodew Moparties Privates Linited, 

Persanal Guarantees of Mr. Vishnu Surska Mr. Navneet Surela, Mrs. De=pa Surstia and Mrs. Prem Lata Sureba 

E. Term Loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited 

During the financial year 2015-16, the Group had taker a long term losn from Aditya Bide Finesse Umited of © 2.00000 Lass nz par sgreoment dated 

September 16, 2015. The clesing balance of z23d loan is ¥ M6 as at Mareh 21, 2023. 

Interest rate 

This loan carries Noating rate of intenest at long term reference rate of Aditya Birla Finance Limited adiuated for sprend, 

Nepayment 
The loan is repayable in 85 equal monthly instalments of € 23.81 Lace fevcluding interest) each starting from Cciober §, 2018 2nd payable tll October 15, 2022. 

Tha loan has been fully repaid ap an March 31, 2023. i 
© Co-borrowers 

Mis Veshnodewi Propertios Private Limited 
Security 

Exclusive chargs on farm house at Pougan Villa Avenue Westend Graers Vilage Raohari, Delhi owned by 100 Warhnoded| Prangries Nive Limited 

Personal Guarantess of Ms. Vithnu Sureka Mr. Navnest Sumeke, Mrs, Despa Suroha 2nd Mes Prem Lata Surs's, 

F. Term Lazn from Aditya Birla Finance Lirii=a 

During the financial year 2008-17, the Group had taken a long teem loan from Aditya Dirda Finazze Limited of § 50000 Lass = per anreament dated October 17, 

2016. The closing balance of said loan is ¥ Nil as at March 31, 2023. 

Internat rate 

This loan carri=s Soating rate of interest 8 long tarm referenca rats of Aditva Birla Finance Limited adiestad for spre, 

Repayment 
The loan ks repayable in 60 sequal monthly instalments of ¥ 8,33 Lacs lencluding interest) each starting from Dacamber 15, 2016 and payable Bl Movember 15. 

2021. The loan has been fully repaid as on March 31, 2023, 

Co-borrowers 

M/s Veshmoden Propertias Private Limited 

Smeurity 
Exclusive charge on farm houss at Bougan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Villsas Ralakan, Dualbv ewired by Ms. Vpshnade Freparties Brivare Limieo 

Personal Guarantaas of Mr, Vishou Sureia Mr, Navnest Sureka, Mrs, Deepa Suraka and Mrs, Pres Lats Sireka 

G. Term Loan from Aditys Birla Finanes Limited 
Dusting the financial year 2020-21, the Group had opted for moratorium of long term [oan fram Aditya Birle Finances Limited Sean £abovel of © 197.22 Lacs The 

chosing balance of said loan ia ® 34.39 Lacy as at March 31, 2023. 



Mauria Udyog Limited = 
Motes to the Consolidated financinl stated play gt acg= © 10 "40am 
[AN arnoumts are T in lacs, unless stated othanice) 

Interesl rate 

This loan carries floating rate of interest at long term refere=ce rae of Aditya Bis Finance Umited adjusted for sproad. 

Repayment oe 7 ¢ 

The loan is repayable in & equal manthly instalments of ¥ 32.87 Lacs fexgluding interest) each starting from November 13, 2022 and payable t8 April 15, 2023. 

Co-borrowers 

M/s Veshnodesi Propartios Private Limied 
Security 

Exclusive charge an farm house 8 Bowgan Ville Avenue Weitend Greens Village Rajokad, Delhi owned by M/s Veshnedeyi Properties Private Limited 

Personal Guarantess of Mr. Vishnu Surska Mr, Mavreat Suroka, Mrs Deepa Suseka and Mrs, Pram Lata Sumela 

H, Term Loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited h 
During the financial year 2020-21, the Group had opted for marztesum of long term lean from Aditya Birla Finance Limited (loan F above) of 7 61.26 Lacs The 

closing balance of said loan is T Nil az at March 31, 2073, 

Interest rate 
This loan carries floating rate of interest at long term referance rate of Aditya Birla Finance Limited adjusiad for spread. 

Repayment ; 

The loan w repayable in 5 equal monthly instalments of © 1027 Lacs (eveluding interest) cach starting fram Dacermber 15, 2021 and payable till May 15 2022 

The loan has been fully repaid as on March 33, 2021 

Ca-borrowners 

Ms Vishnodevi Properties Private Limited B 
Security 

Eveluziva charge an farm house 22 Bowgan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Village Reiokari, Delhi owned by Ms Veshaedey Properties Private United. 

Personal Guarantees of Mr. Vishnu Serta Mr Maveest Sumsia, Mrs. Deera Syreie and Mrs, Prem Leta Sureks. 

. Details of restructured ability of borrawiag 

Her-currsnt portion Current i 
Lender's Mame fimount Asal Fe 

of forvowing py rch 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 
Prudent ARC Limited 15,400.00 SEGIZS 

560.25 

Tha Group had takes fallowing enedit facilities from Karnataka Bani: 

« Owerdrafi credit fackty of T 50000 Lacs 

« Pre shipment credit facility of T 5500.00 Lacs 

= Post shipment (NLC-DP/DA, Direct) credit Tecllity of ¥ 3.500.0% 0203 
» Pest shipmant [DA/DN) credit faclity of ¥ 2,000.00 Lees 
» Lgerce bill discounting - backed by inland LC facity of E 1,00007 Lacs 

= ILC/FLC MDFYDA) Rank guarantee facility of T 530000 Lacs 

= Condit Bima Foor forwasd contract faeiliby of # £00.00 Lacs 

Security 

First change ower entire current assets of the Parent company, both zrzsent ng future on perd-passu desis with Alfskztad Bank and fodba Bank, 
Morigage on factory land admessuring 23.34 seres and bullding/industrial Infrestruciure theraen ritusted of Foire Mera Masa Gouehl, Ballabgark Dutricy 

Faridabad, to be shared between Karnataka Bank and Andhra ban's, 

Equitable Martgage of agricultural preperty situated at Mhasra Mo. 571 min S832 min, 24/25 and 584 Wage Rajoted, Tobi Vasant Vinar, Mew Delhi presently 

krsawr ad Plat No. A-8, Grand Westan Green, Rajoked, New Delbl admeasuring 2.687 acres standing in tha same ef M/s Achal Estate Private Uimitpcl 

Extlusive charge on plant & machinery and other fed sessts jevcluding vehicles which ars financed by other finenclsl intrusions). 

Persenal Guarantees of Mr. Navneet Sureka and Me, Vishou Sureha 

Corporate guarantes of M/s Achal Estates Private Limited 

Owing to severe liquidity crises tha Group is under financial stress and had defaulted in repeymentiservicing of aforesaid loen and therefore the sama had been 

classified as None Performing Asests (NPA) by the banksfenders, Mo provison of interest had been made after the date of clas ifeation of loan as NPA 

Karnataka Bank Limited has abselutely assigned and transfered the above debt io Prudent ARC Limited together with all underlying sscurity intacesty thereto 

and all their rights. fithe and intenasts in afl agreements; dreds snd documents in mlation to or in connection with the afd fecilfties. 
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(AF amounts ace Fin lacs, unless stated other) 

The Group has entered inte a One Time Sottlemant ("OTS with Prudent ANC Limited in the ewrrent financial year. Ax per the terms and eanditSans of the sald 

OTS, total Habity of ® 11,841.28 lect. (ewciuding interest of T 1,904.72 lacs) hed been petted at an intarotl-fres amount of © 8.200000 (aca to be paid within the 

met four years by the Group. Accordingly, ¥ 5,860.25 Lacs has been classified under the head “non-current borrowings” as a restuctured liab%ity of borrowing, 

being the present value of the veituctured linkslity in accordance with ind AS "©, 

(iv). The Group has applied for Moratorium of six months for borrowings taken from above lenders pursuant to the Moratorium schama- "COVID-19 = Regulstory 

Package” as per notification ROL2019-200188 provided by BE due to COVID-19 pandemic on March 27, 2020, The lenders have approved such moratorium and 

allowad the company not to repay instalmants including interest due during such Maratorium period. 

For explanation en the Group liquidity risk management procoid. refer note £8, 

Othe finsnc ial abilities (non-cwrrent) As at 

PMarch 37, 2023 

Balance portion of restructured Hability of borrowing (refer footnote} 2,368.00 

1,169.00 

Footnotes 

. The Grou has entered inte a Oma Tima Sottloment ("OTS") with Proadest ARC Limited in the current financial year, As par the terms and canditions of the sald 

OTS, total labdty of T 11,841.28 lacs (excluding Interest of ¥ 1,504.72 lacs) has been settled at an interest-free amount of T B20000 lacs te ba pald within the 

net four yours by the Group. Accordingly, © 7,369.00 Lars Jus Bean clanifisd under the head "ather non-curreet financial liabilities” as & rostuctured Rability of 

borrowing, being the present values of the forgiven Rability in soooedaree with Ind AS 102. In case the Croup fails to repay the restructured basowing, the seid 

amount will be payable along vith the restru<tured loan lability. 

Fer explanation an the Grown ligusdity rk management procass refer note 48, 

Provisions (mon-current) As at 

March n, 2033 

Previzion for empleyse benefits 

Provision for gratuity (refer note 44) 1747 

TT.4AT 

Other ner-current liabilities As ak 

March 31, 2023 

Deferred portion of restructured lebllity of borrowing [refer foatnata) ’ 124848 

3.24645 

Footnote: 

The Group hai entered into 8 One Time Settlement (MOTS7) with Prudest ARC Listed in the current financial year. Af par the terme and eandifions of the wid 

OTS, total liability of € 11,841.28 lacy (escheding intersst of ¥ 1,904.72 lazs) hax been settled at an interest-free amount of ¥ B200.00 facs to be paid within the 

rent four years by the Group. Accordingly, € 3.24585 Lacs has beer classified under the head “cther non-curmant finencisl listilitin™, being the defermd portion 

of the restructured |ishility By azcordescs with bed AS 10% Ia cose the Greup falls to repay the restructures Earrowing, the sald amount will B= payztle song 

with the restructured loan liability. 

Dorrawings (currant) As at 

March 31, 2023 
Secured 

Warking capital loan 

Fram banks (refer faatnote i) 142089 

Fram others (refer footnote il) 102257 
Turn loans classified as non-peforming {refer footnote ®* 4 3,Z76:50 
Current maturities of non-current hemrowings (refer note 22 snd footnote iW na 

Unescured 

From related parties (refer note 43) 3 0AS5 

From others 16523 
13,087.85 
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(AN amounts ane ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

Footnotes: 

fi). Details of working capital loans from banks 

Lender's Name biate of interest Limit As at 

snnctioned March 31, 2021 
Inchon Rank (formarly Allahabad Bank: 1 year MOLE « 465% oa 10,000.00 . 
Union Bank of India [formerly Andhra Bank] 1 year MILT = 4.50% pa anno 1352.64 
120C1 Bank 2028 3% 

3.420.8% 

A Warking capital loan from Allahabad Banik 

The Group had taken fund based warking capital facility of € 2,000,00 Lacs and non-fund based working capital facie of T 8,000.00 Lacs from Allahabad Bank 

The ¢losing balance of said bonn i ® Nil ag at Merch 31, 2023, 

Interest te 

This loan carries Roatng rate of interest a2 1 year MCLR « A55% pb 
Security 

Charge over enfin ewfrant assets of the Parent company, hath present and future on par-pess bess with Karastaka Sank and Andhrs Sank 

Registered mestgage of 490 acre agriouftural land [ncwe as Meus Gerdes sibatad at Samalks Village, Tehsil Vassrt Vibar, District South West Dalki, Near 

Rajokerl Fyaver, NH-& New Delhi 

Corporate guarantes of M/s Deepak Hetels Private Limited 

Personal Guaratees of My. Navpest Seraka, Mr, Vishw Sere pnd We, Zl Surssa 

TL. Werking capital lsan fram Andhra Bank 

The Company had taken cash credit of © 4,000.00 Lacs fram frdbea Beale, Tha clasinn bolames of seid Ioan [2 7 1395.54 Loc pe ot March 37, 2022, 

Interest rate 

This loar carries Roating rate of interest at 1vear MCLR & £50% pr. 

Security : 

Chaige ever senting current siielt of tha Parent company, both present and future on par-passu basis with Karmadeka Rank, Allahabad Bank and Aditva Birla 

Finance Limited 

18 pari-pazsu charge on land admessuring 23.38 acres and bullding/industrial infrastructure thereon situated a1 Sehea Read, Mayra Geucki, Aallabgnrh 
District, Faridabad, i= be shared between Karnataka Bank and Andhra bank 
Personal Guarantees of Mr. Mlavnest Sureka snd Me. Vidhan Sureka 

The Group sMer regotistions has aotered isdn 2 One Time Settlement ("O75") with Union Bank of Indis ssttlement vide settlement letter 

-  SAM/DELMI/ORSMIBTR022-27 dated Decermnbar 14, 2022. Ag per the terms and conditions of the said C75, total lialsBty of ¥ LA1AAL Laz has Bees setiled a1 2 

38000 tazs to be paid before March 31, 2023 by the Group. Tha Graup has discharged ® 2800000 lacs as an the balances shea! date. The Group kas anhancad 

the due date for the balance payment of T 1,200.00 lacs after negotiaian with the Bank 18 be paid slong with interast in the next Rnanclal year 

(i). Details of working capital loans from others 

Lender's Mama Limit Aa al 

wrnctioned itarch 37, 2023 

Aditya Birla Finance Limited 3.000.040 1022.57 
3,022.57 

€. Line of Credit from Aditys Bina Fisance Umited 

During the financial year 2015-18, the Group had takes Eng of credit of ¥ 3,00000 Lact from Adis Bits Finance limited 26 per sgreement dated August 3 

2015. The closing balance of said loan is 1,022 57 Lacs as at Starch 31, 2023 
. 1] ] - - 

Interest rate 

This loan carties Aoating rate of interest at short term referancs rate of ABFL adjusted dor spread. 

Co-borrower 

M/s Veshnodes Properties Private Limited 
Security 

Exclutive charge on farm house af Bougan Villa Avenue Westend Greens Village Rajokari, Delhi owned by M/s. Veshnodevi Properties Private Limied 

Personal Guarantees of Mr, Vishru Sureka br. Mavneat Surala, Mrs, Deepa Sureka and Mra. Prom Lata Sursha, 
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{ii}. Details of tarm loans clamsifiod a non-performing 
Vota Mahindra Banik Limited, Houfing Development Finance Coparation Limvied 2nd Devan Housing Finance Corporation Limited have racalied entire 

outstanding principal amount of the and all the oth chirp fowl idivy UStarest and ponal interest payakls thersan. Thorsfare, thesn leans hive been whally 

classfiad a5 coment borrowings. 

Lender's Hames Amount of Az at 

lrerrewing March 31, 2022 

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 1,E5a.00 1.19343 

Hewning Development Finance Cotporation Limited 3,000,00 208107 

Piramal Capital and Housing Financa Limited (formerly Dewan Hausing Finanta Cornoration 
Limited) 3.20000 - 

1276.50 

DB. Term Loan fram Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 

During the financial year 2017-18, the Group had taken a long tern loan from Kotak Mahindsa Bank Limited of T 165000 Las as per agreament dated August 
22,2017. The dosing balance of said loan is 1,193.43 Lacs ax at March 31, 20213. 

interart mts 

This loan carries Boating rate of interar? &2 1 year MCLR « 435% pa, 

Repayment 

The loan is repayable in 60 eaal monthly instalments of © 38.25 Lacs Gncluding Interest) each starting from Octster 5, 2010 and payable 191 September 5, 2022 

Owing Yo severs liquidity crises the Group ly under financizi sires and kag defaulted in repayment/servicing of dforeiaid loan and therefore the same has been 

classifiad an Non-Performing Assets (MPAs) by the havhadesdars. Ma rravisien of interest has bean macy after the date of classification of loan 23 NPA 

Due to classification of aforerald loon #s NPA, Motak MatinCra Ban't has recalled antine outstanding principal amount af said loan and all Ue other charges 

inchuding interest and penal interest payable thereon, Therefore, it has bern whally assed as current bommawings 

Security 

Ewlutive charge en fem land ares ad measuring 68 bighss & 19 blawss [14560 acces) in [hatibea Vilese, Tehalts Mepethara, District Sowth West Dalk - 110043 

owned by M/s Strawberry Star India Private Limited 

Corporate guarantee of M/s Strawberry Star India Private Limited 

Letter of Comfort from M/s Jotindra Stes] & Tubes Limited 

Personal Guarantees of Mr. Navneet Surska, Mr Vighe Surska snd br Akhil Sureks 

E. Term Laan from Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 

Dutieng the financial yaar 2012-11, the Group had takan a long term loan from Housing Development Finance Cotpatation Limited of T 2,500.00 Lact as par 
+ agresmant dated Apel 26, 2012. Tha closing balance of ssid loan is ® 2083.07 Lacs and © 2083.07 Lacs, a= at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 respectively, 

Interest rate 
This loan carries Boating rate of interest #t RPLA - 350% par. 

Nepsyment 

Th lean is repayable in 155 equal monthly instalments of T 31.63 Lacs (including interest) each starting fram May 1, 2002 2nd payable til March 1, 2025, 
Owing to sevare kquidity crises the Group Is under financial ress sad has defaulted In repaymantfisrvicing of aisspsid loom and *horefors the same has been 

claaifiod an Mone Parforming Adtets (MPAs) by the banka/leadars. Mo provision of intarast has been made af= the cols of elzasfiessian of fann ar NPA 

Due to classification of aforeald loan as NPA, Housing Development Finznes Corporation Limited has reesfiad antics sutetarding principe pmsunt of sald lean 
and gli tha ether charges induding interest and pana intersst prvakle thasess, Therafore. it has bear wholly slaz:Tiad 2a current bamowings, 

Co-borrower 

Mr. Havrwet Sureka, M/s Bhama Properties Private Limited. Mra, Pram Lata Sarskn, Mr, Vichnu Sureha snd Mrs, Deans Sorel 

Security 

Equitable Mortgage of Property by way of deposit of the title deeds In respect of the agricultural Lend ad marsusing 12 Bigha out of Khazars No. $210) min 1- 

5, $22(5-5) and $2355), situated at Vilage Rajakari, Tehed Vasant Vinar, New Defi owned by Ms hams Fropertios Privsto Limite 

EF. Term Loan from Dewan Housing Finsnce Corporation Limited 

During the financial year 2018-19, the Group had taken & lang term loen fram Dewan Housing Finance Cormperatisa Limited of © 1,200,00 Lacs a1 par agreement 
dated April 9, 2018, The closing balance of said loan is © Ni and T 7,149.22 Lacs, kn at Maech 31, 2023 8 Meech 31, 2022 respectively 



PMlauris Udyog Limited 

Motes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 11, 2023 

(AN amounts are © in lex, unless stated othonwien) 

th. 

Interest rate 

This loan carries floating rate of interest st DHFLs APLR - 7.72%. 

Nepayment . 
The loan is repayable in 130 equal monthly instafments of ¥ 1651 Las faruding interest) each starting from june 3, 2018 and payable till March 1, 2029, 
Owing to savers liquidity crises. the Group is undar financial stress and hes defaulted in repayment/servicing of aforesaid losn and therefors the same has been 
classified a5 Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) by the bat! sflendtrs Fl~ provision of interest has bean made afer the date of classification of loan as NPA 

Dhue tor classification of aforesaid loan #5 NPA, Dewan Housing Finaren Coe oration Limited has rocelled ontirs cutstanding principal armeunt of said loan and all 

the other charges including interest ard penal intesest payable thereon Therefore, it hed been wholly clesified as current borrawings in previous financial year. 

The loan has been fully repaid as on Mach 31, 2021 

Co-borrowers 

hfs SHO. Estates Private Limited, Mr. Vishnu Soreka, Mr. Navnest Surebka, Mrs. Prem Lata Sureks, Mr. Deepa Soria and Mr. Pramed Hamar Agarwal 

Security 

Mortgage of Property at Farm House #1 F-28 known Floris Banas! Mussil Ne. 18, #02 - 20ming 1-0), 2106-14), 23/104- 16), Vill Samalaka Banh Road, New Deki - 

110037 belongng to M/s SKD, Estates Private Limited. 

G. Term Laan fram Dewsa Housing Finance Corporation Limited 

During the financial year 2018-19, the Group had taken a lang term loan from Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Lissited of T 2,000.00 Lacs as per agreemant 

dated May 7, 2018, The closing balance of said losn is © Mil as #2 March 31, 2023. 

Interast rate 

This loan carries interest at 11,10% 
Repayment 

The loan is repayable i 131 equal monthly instalments of T 27.09 Lees Including interest) ach starting (rom Ape 1, 2000 snd payable 1 February 1, 2029, 

Owen to severe Nrjwidity crises the Group |s undor nancial stress ard has defaulted n mpaymaontfsersizing of ~foresaid loan and therefore the same has been 

clatsifiad #1 Non-Porforming Assets (NPA by the bankifsaders. No provliion of stireit has bean made after 6s date of classification of loan as NPA, 

Dum to chansification of aforesaid Ian as MFM Dawa Housing Finance Cosporation Limited has rezaliod emia sutstonding priscipal srmourt of said loan and all 

the ether charges including interest and penal interest payzble theresa Thersfare, ®t had boon wholly classified 25 current emowings in previews financial year. 

The loan has been fully repaid as on March 37, 2023. 

Co-harrowan 
M/s SHO. Estates Private Limited and Me Vishau Sureka 

Security 

Mortgage of Property at Farm House at F-28 known Floris Bansal Must Mo. 18, Ka « Z0min{-G), 2115-14) 23/ 14-16, Vill Temolaka Randh Road, Mew Delhi « 

110037 belonging to M/s KD, Estates Private Limited. 

Detalls of current maturities of non-current borrowings As at 

March 31,2023 

Currant maturites on term loans fram banks E972 
Current maturities on term loans from others 3439 

104.17 

Amount of continging default 21 on Eslance rhest date in remest of lean incleding interest iz as follows 

iMrineipsl Interast Total 
Working capital loan from banks * 119268 . 1,192.84 
Working capital loan from others = 257 22.57 

Term loans classified as non-pertarming * 3376.50 . 3,276.50 
Current maturities of non-curtent borrowings 267 1.52 34.39 

# As the account has been clanifed an Non-Performing Amets (NPA) bythe landers. No provision of interest kaa been made after the dats of classification of 
borrowings as NPA Hence, the amount of interast default cannet be zszertained. 



Mauris Udysg Limited 
MNeotes to the Consolidated Ninancial statements for the year sanded March 31, 2023 

fall amounts are Tin lacs, unless stated otherwite] 

vil. One of the financial creditor of the Group has filed petition under Section T of Insolvency & Bankraotcy Code, 2016 before Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide 

Company Petition No. CPB) = 138/202 dated February 23, 2022 for initiation of corporate insolvency resolution process, The Group altar negotiations with 

the creditor reached a settlement, however, the Group is y=t to drcha-g= the remaining liability. 

(wil). For explanation on the Group liquidity risk management process, refer note £5. 

17 Trade payables As at 
March 31, 2023 

Trade payables dus 
- to micro and small enterprises (refer note 43) - 

« to others . TADS 2 

- TADS 24 

Footnaten 

{i}. Trade payables other than dae to MSMEs are non-interest bearing and are narmally sottled in the Graup operating cycle 

(li). The Group exposure lo currency and liguidity risks aie disclosed in note 48, 

Trade paywhles ageing 

Asa 

March 31, 2023 

Due to micro and small enterprires 
Less than 1 year 2 

Due ta others 

Less than 1 year 4.67947 

1-2 yaars Tae 

2-3 years 7357 
More than 3 year 1.81151 

7.40525 

28 Other financial abilities (corrent) Bs at 

Plzrch 31, 2023 

Int=rest acerued Sut not due on borrowings Toe 

Employee related payables 101.03 

Expanses payable 

= bes price and small enterprise (refer nota 43) i532 

- to others B97 
207.42 

Footnote: 

For explanation on the Group liquidity fish management process, refer nots 48 

1% Provisions (current) As st 
March 37, 2023 

Provision for employes benefits 
Provision for gratuity (refer note 44) 2286 
Audit Faas Payable nos 

22.9 

30 Other current Babilities Asai 
Plaredy 37, 2023 

Unpaid dividends 820 
Advances and deposits 2255.17 
Bdvance for sale of land 309373 

Statutory dues payable §47 
5,355.51 



Mauris Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consalidated financial statemants for tha year ended March 39, 262% 

(AN armounts are € in lacs, unless stated othanvisa) 

n 

32 

33 

Revenue from operations 

Sale of products 

Manufacturing goods 

Trading goods 

Other operating revenues 

Export incentives 

Sale of scrap 

Information required as per Ind AS 115: 

Disaggregated revenus information as per geographical markets 
Revenue fram customers basad in india 

Revenue from customers based cutside India 

Timing of revenue recognition 

Transferred at a point in time 

Trade receivables and contract nzects/(liabilities! 

* Trade receivables 

Performance obligation and remalning perfarmenee obligotien 

Far the year ended 

March 37, 2023 

21,378.14 

54.26 

33197 

1404.64 

23,163.00 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

5979.80 

17,789.20 

23,169.00 

2.07594 

Thera are no remaining performanca ebligatians for the year ended March 31, 2023, a5 the same [5 satisfied upon delivery of goods/iervices 

Other income 

Rental income (refer notes 45 and 47) 

Commission income 

Finance income on deferred portion of loan (refer netes 22 and 25) 

Interest income 

- on Income tax refund 

= on fived deposits and margin meney 

- on security deposits 

= an others 

Dividend income 

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain 

Lizbilities no longer required written back 

Provisions no longer required written back 

Miscelleneous incame 

Cost of materials eansumed 

Opening stock 

Add: Purchases including processing charges (refer note 44) 

Less: Closing stock 

Far the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

3266 

0.68 

430.57 

ora 

8385 

5A3 

12:05 

aoe 

143.99 

278.18 

1.50517 

0.10 

2,499.92 

For the year ended 

March 37, 2023 

2,797.20 
12,830.20 

[2.217.82) 

13,409.59 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year rnded Karch 31, 2022 

(Al amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

34 

1s 

37 

(i). 

(ii). 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Raw material 

Changes in inventories 

Inventories at beginning of the year 

Stock-in-trada 

Finished goods 

‘Waork-in-progress 

Scrap 

Inventories at end of the year 

Stock-in-trade 

Finished goods 

Work-in-proaress 

Scrap 

Déernnse/(incraate) in inventories 

Employee hanafit evpensa 

Salary, wages. bonus and allowances 

Employer’ contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 44) 

Gratuity and leave encashment (Refer note 44) 

Staff and labour welfare 

Finance costs 

Interest expenses 

= on borrowings (refer footnote) 

- an late payment of statutory dues 

- on others 

Footnotes: 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

50.27 

50.27 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

58.11 

85220 

2531 
21.40 

3,463.42 

CL RB 

1,391.23 

3.04092 

18.51 

A500,77 

- (1,045.34) 

For ithe year ended 

March 31, 2023 

1078.93 

A349 

Er 

49.19 

1,204.52 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

2AB852 
GS.80 
0.03 

2,554.80 

Owing to severe liquidity crises the Group is under financial stress and has defaulted in repaymantfiervicing ef loans taken fram tha 

following banks/financial institutions and therefore the same has been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) by the banks/lenders. No 

provision of interest has baen made after the date of dassification of loan 2s NPA 

A, Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 
B. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 

interest expense amounting to © 1463.20 lacs has been booked on the borrowings declared as non-parforming as part of settlement 

negotiaitons with Indian Bank (formerly Allahabad Bank). 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consclidated financial statements for the year ended March 37, 2023 

[AN amounts ace ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

Bageesiitan and amortisation erpense 

Depreciation on property, plant and eqiipmart [refer nrte 3) 
Amartisation of intangible assets (refer rita § 

Other expanses 

Stores, spares, tools, oils, lubricants and packing materials consumed 
Outside labour charges 

Electricity expenses 

Rent and hire charges 

Rates and taxes 

Insurance 

Travelling and conveyance 

Vehicle running and maintenance 

Freight and forwarding (net) 

Commission and service charges 

Printing and stationary 

Advertisement and publicity 

Testing and inspection charges 

Pastage and telephane 

Legal and professional expenses 
Business promotion expenses 

Fees and subscriptions 

Charity and donations 

CSR expenses (rafer note 42) 

Bank charges 
Loss on sale of ROSTCL and MEIS license 

Less on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Loss on sale of investments 

Repairs and maintenance of 

-Flant and machinery 

-Buildings 

-Others 
Remuneration to auditors (refer footnaia) 

Director sitting fees 

Impairment of security deposits 

Balances written off 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Footnote: 

Payment of remuneration to auditors (excluding GST) = 

- Statutory audit - Standalona 

= Statutory audit - Consolidated 

= Limited review 
= Tax audit 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

300.46 

087 

301.33 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

2.65554 

1,440.46 
472.14 

216 
16.78 
1539 

10927 
24.90 

73094 
160123 

eos 
5.00 

98.17 
26.35 
77.01 

206.49 
116.20 

89.56 

555 

0.19 

1478.24 

1721 

2257 

9,404.88 

Far the year ended 

March 37, 2023 

230 

0.50 

225 

0.50 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(Alf amounts are € in lace, unless stated otherwise) 

40 Earning per share 

(a). Basic and diluted earnings per share : 

Fram continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Parent company 

{b). Reconciliations of earnings r+ed in caleula®’ -g =~» i~ J g +r share 

Basic earnings per share 

Profit fram continuing operation attributable to the equty shara halders of the Parent 

(c) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 

Weighted average number of equity shores used as the denominator in calculating basic and diluted earnings per 
share 

At present, the Parent company does not have any dilutive potential equity share. 

Space intentionally felt Blank. 

For the year ended 

March 37, 2023 

(0.69) 

(91921) 

13,32.00,000 



Maurin Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(Alf amounts are € in lacs, unless stated othenvise) 

41 

a 

a3 

Contingent liabilities and commitments ’ As at 

March 31, 2013 
Contingent llabilities 

Claims sgainst the Company not acknowledged as debt 

Surety Bond issued in favour of Haryana Sales Tax Department towards VAT and CST Gablity of a third party M/s Balaji 200 

Engineering Sales tax matters 

Income tay matters undar dispute 3909.97 

Commitments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on copital account not provided for [net of capital advances of ¥ 66.67 Zi84 

les). 

Expenditure on CSR activities 

The amount required to be spent by the Group during the year ended March 31, 2023 was € Nil 

Details of amount spent during the year Far ihe year ended 

March 31, 2023 

On constructionfacquatition of any preparty, plant snd equipment . 

On purposes other than above A448 
AAR 

Dizclogures relating to suppliers regintered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2008 

Anat 
March 31, 2023 

The principal amaunt and the interest dua thetoon remaining unpaid ta any MEME supplier included inc 

~Principal amount dus to micro and small enterprises 35 

«Interest duo on above 

The Group is in the process of identifying Micro, Small 2nd Medium Enterprises sa defined under the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprites Development 

Het, 2006. Therefore, it is nat possible for the Group to assortain whether payment to such orterprises hae been done within 45 days from the date of 

acceptance of supply of goods of sanvices rendered by much enterpeisas and to make requisite disclosure ancept as disclosed abave, 

Employes benefits 

Defined contribution plans: 

The Group makes contributions, determined 2s a specified percentage of employes salaries, in respect of qualitving employes towards provident fund, 

labour welfare fund and EDL which are defined contribution plans. The Groups has no obligations othsr than to make the specified contributions. The 

semtnbutions are charged to the statersent of profit and less as thay accrue. 

Expense under defined contribution plans includs: For the year ended 

Wmrch 31, 2023 

Providant and ether funds 4349 

43.48 

. Defined benefit plans: 

Gratuity 
The Group operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entities an employes to recsive half mesth's salary far sash veer of 

, completed sarvice at the time of retirement exit, 
The present value of obligation is determined based an actuarial valuation using tha projectsd unit credit method, which reengnise sack period af 1endes 

as giving rise to additional employes benefit entithernart and measures each unit separately to build up the inal obligation, 

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined banafit obligation for gratuity were carried out at at March 31, 

2023. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the orojecten 

unit credit method, 

- Fe & i 



Mauris Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the y=a= ended [ tarch 31, 2022 

(AN amounts are © fn lex, unless stated othenwise) 

A. Not defined benefit lability 

Present value of obligations 

Fair value of plan aseats 

Total employes benefit liabilities 

MNen-curnent 
Current 

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit lability 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Included in profit or loss 

Curram service cost 

Interest cost/(incomel 

Expected return on plan assets 

Included in OCI 

Remeasurements lass (gain) 

— Actuarial loss (gain) arising Trem: 

« financial atsemptions 

- experience adjustment 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income 

. Other 

Contributions paid by the employer 

Benefits pad 

Nalance at the end of the year 

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lee 

Current tervice cast 

Met interest cost 

Expected raturn on plan assets 

C. Plan assets 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

158.35 
(58.03) 

100.34 

aT 
2286 

March 31, 2023 

Defined benefit Fair value of Net defined benefit 

obligation plan assets {aaset)/ Nabil 

(RE 8275 49.54 

26 22.16 

an = B11 

- 471 14.71 

027 47 25.57 

1230 12.3% 
27 Ba 0.32] 27.96 

40.23 10.12) 40.35 

- om oan 

12401} 5.32) (14.71) 

(24.03) 9.31) {14.72} 

153.36 SR.03 100.34 

For tho year ended 
March 31, 2023 

208 

an 
“wm 

The plan assets nf tha Group are managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India through o trust manag by the Group in terms of an insurance 

policy taken to fund obligations af the Grown with respect to its gratuity plan. 

Plan assets comprises of the following: 

Funds managed by insurer 

March 317, 2023 % of Plan assets 

5803 00% 

An asset-lability matching study is done by the Group an an annual begi, whataly tha Greus contributes the net incase (nthe actuarial lability te the 

plan manager i order to manage the Babil#ty risk 



Maurin Udyeg Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the ye== «gd * §f-p=f *1_ 2021 

(Al amounts are T /n [cx unless stated otherwise) 

D. Actuarial ssumptions 

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate, The discoint rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds 

* at the accounting date with a term that matches that of Habilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors an long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as fellows which have been selected by the Group. 

March 11, 2023 

Discount rata 7.50% 

Expected rate of future salary increase 5.00% 

Expected rate of attrition 5.00% 

Martality ILM 2012-14 

E. Sensitivity analysis 
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, helding other assumptions constant, would have affected 

the defined bonefit obligation by the amounts shown below, 

March 31, 2023 

Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (1.00% movement) 147.89 170.27 

Future salary growth (1.00% movement) 16942 1468.52 

Withdrawal rate (1.00% movement) a 159.55 156.94 

Although the analysis does not take arcount of the full distribution of cssh Sows expectad under the plan, it does provide an approwimation of the 

sansitivity of the assumptions shown. 

Sensitivities due to mortality ks not material and hence impact of change is not calculated, 

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of incease of pensions in payment, rate of increate of pensiony before ietiremant and Fife oxpectancy are nat 

applicable belng a lump sum bonefit on retirement 

Description of Risk Exposures: 

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in mature and vary over tina, As such tha Group is exposed to vanous risks as follows: 

a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will Increess plan's liabdity. Incrasse in safary Incrazse rats assumption in futuro valuations will also increase 

the liability. 

h}. Investmont rick if plan is funded then esses abilities migmatch & sctual investment retura an dssoks lower than the discount rate assumed a the 

last valuation date can impact the lability, 

€). Discount rate: Reduction in discoust rate in subsequent vahuatisns con increase the plan’s liability, 

d), Meriality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed In ths valust'on can impact the [labilities. 

el. Withdrawals: Achial withdrawals provicg higher or fowes then as wmsd withdrawals and ¢hrnpe af withdrawl reteset subsequent valuations can 

impact the plan's lablity, 

F. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future vears 

Duration of defined benefit obligation As st 

fiarch 31, 2023 

Less than 1 year 22.86 

Between 1-2 years 10.85 

Between 2-5 years B37 

Over § years A 11657 

Lo — 

Expected contribution to past-empleyment benefit plans for the year anding Mareh 31, 2023 is T 30.53 lzex. 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan ebiigation at March 31, 2023 is 12 yeas. 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for tha v-ar er-4d Merch 71,2023 

(Al amounts are T in lacs, unfess stated othe nie) 

46 Operating segments 

A. Basis for Segmentation . 

+ Segment information is presentod in respect of the Group key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the Group 

management and internal reporting structure, The chisf oparating decision maker idantiliss primary scomentz based on the dominant source, 

nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation snd management structure, Tha operating segments are the segments for which 

separate financial information Is available and for which operating prefit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly. All ogarating segments’ 

operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors fo make decisions bout resources io be allocsted to the segments 2nd 

assess their performance. 

The ‘Board of Directors’ have bean identified as the Chief Operating Decisian Maker (CODM'), sinc thay are responsible for all majar docision 

wrt the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budgst, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and 

acquisition, and expansion af any facility. 

The Board of Directors examines the Group parfarmance from business activities perspactive and have identified the following reportable 

segments of its business: 

Mepartable segments Operations 
Manufacturing This mainly indudes manufacturing of LMG cylinders, valve, 

regulators, towels, cotion masks and PPE kits 

Trading This mainly includes trading of ates plates, flesm coal and cotton 

masks 

0. Information about reportable segments 

Sogmant assets, sagment labilities and Segment profit and loss are measured in the samo wey oa in the fimancisl stalemonis 

Infermatian regarding the results of each ransstabie segment is included below. Performance is measured basal on sagmant profit (before 
tax), as included in tha internal management raports that sre reviewed by the Group Board of Directors. Segment profit is used lo measure 
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant fn evaluating the rosulte of cestain segments relative to ather 

_ entities that operate within these industries. |nter-segment pricing, if any, is datermined on an arm's length basis. 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Nepartsble segment 
T 

Manufacturing Trading pis 

Segment revenue 23.114.74 54.26 23,165.00 

Revenues from external customers 23,174.74 54.26 23,165.00 

Segment results (239.61) 336 (2316.25) 

Total profit/(loss) before tax for reportable ragments (239.61) 3.38 2316.25) 

Other income 2499.92 

Finance costs (2.554.80) 

{Lezz) before tax (291.13) 

Tax axpensas. (G2E.08) 

(Loss) after tax 212.22) 

Other comprehensive (loss) (19.28) 

Total comprehensive (lem) (9318.50) 

Segment assets 23,687.33 1957.20 25,644.54 
Unallocable assets 13,735.01 

Total assets : 39,179.58 

"Segment liabilities 13.0578 16.28 13,054.09 

Unallocable liabilities 24,582.02 
Total liabilities 37,636.11 



Maurin Udyog Limited 
Motes te the Consclidated financial statements for the year or ded March 31, 2022 

(AR amounts are € in lack, unless stated otherwise) 

c Geographic information 

The geographic information analyses the Groups revenue and non-curent assets by the Group country of domicile in other countries. In 

presenting the geographic information, segment revenue hes heen based on tha geographic location of customers and segment assets were 

_ based on the geographic location of the assets 

b) 

47 

The Group is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers bralen down by location of tha customers is shown below: 

Revenues from different geographies For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Within India 5,979.80 

Qutside india 17,169.20 

23,162.00 

Mon-current assets® Az at 

March 31, 2023 

Within india 14,367.61 

Outside India * 

14,287.61 

*Mon-current zssets other than financiel instruments : nd deferred tor asses, 

Majar customer 

Revenue from transactions with extamal customer amouting io 10 aor cent or more of the Group revenue is 25 follows: 

Amount 

For the ynor ended March 31, 2023 

. Worldwide Distribution LLP 4624.06 
4,624.08 

Leases 

Leases ax a lessor For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rental income from assets given on operating lease 32.65 

32.66 

Footnote: 

The Group has given a part of its factory land and building situsted 3% Sohna Road, opp. Shrea 58 Bherat Petroleum Pump, Soctor-55, 

Faridabad, Haryana-121004 to Mankiewict India Private Umited and eight cranes te Jetindra Steal 2rd Tubes United 

Lease agreements entered by the Graup are cancellable in natu, 

The lease rental income recognised in the Statement af Frotit end Loss Tor the vaar in respect of such tonses [5 © 32.65 loss 
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Mauria Udyaq Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended Marck 11, 2023 

(AN amounts ave F in lac urfess stated otherwine 

. 

Fair value hierarchy 

Lavel 1 It includes financial instruments measured using quered prices. 

Lavel 2: The falr value of financial instruments that ase net traded In an active market ls determined using valuation tochriques which masimise the wie of 
observable market data and rely as little as pessible on entity specific estimated. IF 3l significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 

ingtrurmond in included in level 2, 

Lovel 3: if ona or mare of the significant inputs is not based on chsarvable macket data, the Instrument is included in level 3, The fair vahee of financial assets and 
" liabilites included in Level 3 is determieed in accondanicy with generlly accepted pricing models based an discounted cash flow arelysis wing prices from 

observable current market transactions and desler quotes of smilarinstrumants. 

The carrying amounts of trade recebvables, cash and cash cquivalents and ether financial assets and liabilities, approwimates the fale walust, duo 15 their thar term 

nature. Fair value of financial assets and financial Eabilites is "ar ta the earring value 53 there is no pomificast differences between carrying value and fale value, 

Valuation proceises 

Tha Managemont performs the valuatiors of financial essets and [iabiitiss required for finandal reparting purposes on a pesiadic basis, incleding level 3 fs values, 

Financial risk management 
The Group has exposure 10 the following irks arsing fiom financial Patroments 

* Credit righ 

» Liquidity risk 
* Markt risk 

Credit ish 

The marimum enpotune to oredit rinks is represented by the total carrying smaunt of thaws financial assets in (1s Balance Shast 

Hx ait 

_ Mawh3t.202 
Trade roceivalen 8027.16 
Loans 21.16 

Bank balances other than cash and cath equivalents 145589 
Othar financial assets 1.887 

* Credit ris is the disk of financial lass to The Group & a customer or caunterperty ta a fmancid instrurnent falls #0 mest it contractiusl sbligations, and miei 

principally fram the Group rezsivables from sustomers. 

The Group credit risk is primarily to the amount dus from customers and losn. The Group maintain » dafined credit pafiny and monitors the expasues 1 tas 

credit risks on an ongoing bass. Cradit risk on cash and cach equivaiants is limited 52 the Company gencrally iovests in deposits with scheduled commaseial banks 
with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies 

The Group has not applied evpected cracht loss model as per ind AS 702 used to 2ssess the impairment loss or cain en ads recshusblas, Howaver %e Group Sesod 

upon histanzsl axperience determines an impairmant allowanca for logs on receivables. 

When a trade receivable it credit impaired, i is written off against trade receivables and the amount of tha lets [5 recogniied [nthe income state=ent Subseguint 

racovaries of amounts previously written off are credited to the income statement. 

Tha grass carrying amount of trade receivables is © 11,397 fics an at March 31,2021, Trade receivables are generally realised within the credit pried, oxcept fos the 
rade receivables included in non-curment nancial assets description of which fas been given in Note & 

This Company's eepasure to credit rivk for trade recanvablas are as follows: As at 

March 31, 2023 

Not dus - 

0 to 180 days past due 01 

180-355 days a5 
365-730 days 188 

More than 730 cays 11.27 

Movement in the @flowance for irmpalement in respect of trade recervables 



Masia Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 11, 2021 

(AN amps pre € fn lacs, unless stated otherwing) 

thy. Liquidity risk 

Liguadity risk is the rick that the Group will encounter difficulty in mreting the abligations associated with its financial laklitres that are settled by delivering each ar 

anothar financial asset The Group approach to managing Bquidity 8 © ensure, &1 far as possible, that it will have sufficsent Hoguidity ta mest its Dabifines when they 

ara fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring wacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group reputation 

The Group believes that its liquidity portion of TTATY lacs #+ at March 37, 2021 and the anticipated future internally ganarated funds from opavations will enable it 
to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business exter certain bomowings. 

The Group is under financial stress and hes defaulted in repaymentfservicing of certain bomowings and Is actively pursuing the lenders for 

restructuring/rescheduling of such borrowings te avesd any untoward liquidity risk. 

Prudent Eguidity rich management Frpbes mamtalong sffciact cass and marketable securities and the mvailabdity of funding through an adequate amount of 

credit faclities te meet ebligations when due, The Graup palicy is te regularly monitar ils liquidity fequirements te ensure thal it maintaing sufficient reserves of 

cath and funding fram Grou eampanies ta meet (ta bguldity requirements In the shart and lang term 

The Group liquidity management process as monitored by managemeant, includes the following: 
- Day to day funding. managed by monitoring lula cash flows fo arse that rofuirements can be mat. 

- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity positon or tha basis of svpactad ceh Nowe 

Expasure to liquidity risk 

Following sre the remaining contractual maturities of financial lissiltles st the parting dale, 

As od Moreh 57,2021 Can Contractual cath Mavs 

2 Lows than Pebyoen one in Tore than Total 
nro 

ane year Wve years vw year 

Borrowings 8.956.090 1309788 5.BBAZS . 18.958.09 
Trade payables 7405.24 TASS . . 7.40528 
Other financial Eabilities 257042 201.42 236500 - 2.57042 

Tatel 28.53.78 20,764.51 2,329.33 = 18,931.78 

Murket risk 
Marist risk is the risk that the futee cash Sows of a financial instement will Sastusts bocsude of changes ia market prices Market rick comprises three types of risk 

Intesest rate risk, currency dd wnd other price risk, the Group malnly has evpesuin to fio fp of merket 15% namely Currency ritk and interest rote fk, The 
objective of market risk management is to marsge and contre] markt risk eezosures within Goceetotle parsmiaters while optimising the sshure 

a, interest rate Hck 

Interest rate risk ls she dak that the heture creh flown of & inancal instrument wil! lluctuste Bezaure of changes in rdket inate rates. The Group main inteern 

rate rick atisas from long-term bormawings with variabls rates, which evposa the Group te cash Pow intarest ite sigh, 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

The risk is managed by the Group by meintaining an spprepriate min between fixed and fNoating rate barmewings. 

Cau flow sensitivity analysis for varisble-rete instruments 

The sensitivity analyses below have been deterined based on the erpasure to interest rates at the end of tha reporting perisz. 

Far Boating rate liabilities except for the borrowings against which ro intesest Fability is being recognised, fee enply=s [3 peanareed szruming the amount of the 

lability eutstandmg 21 tha end of the reparting mood was autriending for the whole yeer, A 50 basis poist frcrones or deseeaee it uted when reporting interest 

rate risk internals bo key management personnel and represents menssemen’s asragsment of the reasanably parsibin changu In interest rates. 

Profit or lon Equity, nat of tax 
50 bps increase 50 bpa decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 

Interest an lonms from banks 
For the year ended March 31, 2023 11.30 3 0.8 nee 

Interent an loans fram others 

Tor the year ended March 31, 2023 {20.00 24.00 (13.78) 13.78 



Maurin Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

GAN amounts are T fn lex, unless stated athanioe) 

b. Currency rick 

The Group undertakes transsetions denominated in forgign cumencies consequently, erposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures ane 

managed within approved policy parameters, 

Exposure to foreign currency risk 

The carrying amounts of the Group foreign currency denominated mo neiary sats snd monetary llab®tios ot the end of the porting period are 81 follows: 

Anak 

Danamination March 11, 2023 
Farelgn currency Coqulvalent 

Receivables 

Sale of goodwervices uso 527 433.29 

EUR LET T4768 
Deposits bad bonds uso 10.5% d63.28 

MED aa 10.58 

Balances with banks of overseas branches AED Gis 33: 
Unhedged recelvabiles 2,088.50 

Payables 

Import of goods uso 2048 1,684.20 
CUR (LEG 455.65 

Unhedged payables 2.619.65 

Net anhedged foreign currency exposura (587.04) 

Forslgn currency sonaltivity analysis 

The following table details the Group sesstivity to a 5% ircrezse ard decrease in tha INR {T1 against USD®. EUR 2nd ARDS. 4.5% bs the sonsithety rate used when 
reporting foreign curmency risk internally 15 key management periannal and reprstasti mansgament's Busgarent =f tha raseansbly possibie change in foreign 

exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis inchides anly outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items ead adfusts their translation at the period end fora 

0.5% change [a foreign cumency rates. 15 cate of net foreign currency outfiow, & positive number below (ndicetes =n [serene ia profit or equity whee the & 

strengthens 0.5% again: the relevant curancy. For a 0.5% weakening of the T against the relevant currency, thems would be a eamparehds imaset on the prafit or 

equity, and the balances below would be negative, In case of net fareiyn currency inflow, @ positive rusmbar below indicates an incressa in profit or equity where the 

Et weakens 0.5% agaimd the relevant curmency. For a 0.5% strengthening of the ¥ again the relevant curr, them weld be» comparalls imnach an the prafit or 
«equity, and the bafances balow would be negative, 

= Profitor loss Tquity, nel of tax 
“Soom Bhp 50 hpa lps 

incremm drerzmrs Inzpanss decrease 

usp 
For the year ended March 31, 2623 [1-845 [1333 133 

un 

Fos the year ended March 21, 2023 {1.04 [Ld] a72 

AED 

For the year anded March 31, 2023 0.07 (387) noes 10,05) 

“EUR. Ero, USD: United States Dollar and AFD: United Ard Ervarates Dirher: 
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43 Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Group capital management, capital includes (sued equity share capital and all other equity resenves attributable to the equity helden of the 

Group. 
Management assesses the Group capital requiremonts In order fo maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure and 

makes acurtments to it in the light of change in aconari conditfans and the dk characteristics of the undarlying atsets. 

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may return capits to shareholders, raise rew debt or issue new shares. 

« The Group monlters capital on the Basis af the debt bo capital matin, which hh caledlated as interast-beasrng debts divided by total capital (equity attributable to 

owners of the pamnt plus interest-bearing detrtal, 

Ms at 

March 11, 20321 

Borrowings 1Rg5a.08 

Less: Cash and bank balances (1524.41) 

Adjusted net debt (4) 1T428.68 

Total squity (M) 1,743.43 

Adjusted net debi to equity ratio (AE) FI9.68% 

50 Title deeds of immovable properties not held in Whi ind of Group 

Particulars item 1 Term 2 

{Refer Note 11) {Refer hots 3) 
Description of item of property Land Building 

Mumber of cases 2 1 

Gross earying valus 5.68190 136.40 

Tithe dees hald in the name of feler foolnste Mot available 
Whether tila deed holder isa promater, director or refative cf promoter / director or employes of prometeridiresia- Me Mot svailatde 

held girce which date Med availatle Mot available 
Reason for not being held In the name of the © Refer festnsle Net available 

Footnote: 

The raid propadies have been acquired By the Parent company pursuant 1o pattigmant of recsvables fram Sirawbarry Star India Private Limited and VL. Land and 

Housing Private Limited. However, thess srepenies have retbesn regisiered inthe name of Parent compan. 

571 Transactions with struck off campanis 

Mame of struck-of | Company Melationship Nature of frangaction with struck-aff Dalance Qutrtanding ¢ 

Company March 31, 2023 

Bihasiji International Limited Na relatiznshio  Irvagtment in socuritias 035 
Amtapali Seman City Private Limited Ho relationshin  fewestrrant | saeuritisg oe 

wSpien intontinall loft bls, 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consalidated financial stat sments frr t'= v~ - paded March 31, 2021 

{if amounts are © in lacs, unless stated bthenvise) 

53 Quantitative details of raw materials rr te 

i). 

{ii}. Value of imported/indigenous rv matarizls and cemponarts/stores spares parts, 

Ll 

Name of the item Unit Mah oL, 0 
+ Quantity Amount 

CRC. [iron / Stainless steel shoot MT. 12028 7.50946 

Ch Coll BAT. 1,127 B20.10 

Mini jJumbe LPG valves Mow. 6,19.651 1.091.737 

Brass rods and scrap Kes. 232.204 317.54 

Cotton yarn / fabric Kgs 6,79,294 3,023.78 

Others (refer footnote i) 4683 

13,409.59 

Footnotes: 

It is not practicable on the part of the management ta give quantitative information in respect of other component consumed since it 

consists of numerous items and each such itam is less thr n 10% of total value. 

percentage thereol: 

Raw materials and components 

~imparted 

-Indegensus 

Spares, tools and packing materials 
-imported 

-indegenous 

Earnings in foreign currency 

FOB. value of exparts 

Expenditure in foreign currency 

CIF. value of imparts 

-Raw material / stock-in-trads 
Capital goods / repairs 

Commission 

Others 

tools and packing maternal consumed and 

PAarch 31, 2023 

Amount Mereentage 

pcx] 10.21% 

12,040.66 9.79% 

13,409.53 100% 

- 0.00% 

2a5554 100.00% 

2,655.54 100% 

March 31, 2021 

15,857.23 

March 31, 2023 

585.40 

63.74 

1.60028 

106.33 

2,355.74 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial stat~men®s for “hy y+ = sn dad March 11, 2023 
AR amounts are € in fac, unless steted otherwise) 

56 Income taxes 

A. Amounts recognized in the Statemant of Mrefit and Las 

Income tax expenses 

Current tax 

Deferred tax expense 

For the year ended 

Minreh 31, 2023 

Change in recognised temparary differences 628.08 

625.08 

B. Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 

For the year anded 

FAarchs 31, 2023 

Defore Tax (sxpanse)/ Met 

ax income of tan 
Remeasurernents of defined benefit obligations (40.35) (12.59) 27.76} 
Remeasurermont of equity instruments 2.3% 075 1.64 

Foreign currency translation reserve 9.81 3.10 6.84 

(28.02% (1.74) (19.28) 

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate Tar tha year ended 

Farch ¥1, 2023 

Rats Amaunt 

Profit before tax 291.13) 
Tas uting the Company's domestic tax rate (A) 27.20% = 
Tax effect of: 

Temporary differences 628.08 
Total {B) 628.08 

(+B) 628.08 

D. Movement in deferred tax balances 

As=t Recognised Recognised As at 

March 37, 2022 In P&L in OCI arch 31, 2023 
Deferred tax assets 
Unabsorbed losses A E6241 (45797) - 1,004.44 
Trade receivables 227172 1,251.63) - 1,025.79 
Security deposits . 461.27 - 461.21 
Employes benefits 15.33 3.38 12.55 31.30 

1,555.46 11,245.30) 12.59 3,322.78 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipments and Intangibles Banas (57757) . mz 
Foreign currency translation reserve nye - 370 ER] 
Investments (non-current) 38.87 (39.61) 0.75 & 

’ C 928.48 (617.10) 3.84 315.14 

Deferrod tax assets (net) 3,626.98 (628.12) 8.74 3,007.81 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the yacr ended March 37, 2023 

{All amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

57 Key Financial Ratios 

Key financial ratios in FY 2022-23 are as follows: 

(A). Ratios Formulan March 31, 2023 

a). Current ratio (in times) Current assats / 0.46 

- Current liabilities 

b). Debt equity ratio (in times) Total debt / 10.88 

Total equity 
c). Debt service coverage ratio (in times) Earnings available far debt services / 0.73 

(Repayment of borrowings + Intarest) 

d). Return on Equity Ratio (in 3%) (Loss) after taxes / -53% 

Total equity 

e). Return on Capital Employed Ratio (Pre tax) Earning before interest & tax / 30% 

(in 9%) Capital employed 

f). Met profit ratio {in %} Met (loss) / -A% 

Revenue from operations 

gl. Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) Cast of Goods Sold / 1.79 

Average Inventory 
h). Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times) Credit safes / 23.05 

Avorage trade recsivables 

i). Trade payables turnover ratio {in times) Cradit purchases / 1.52 

Average trade payables 

i). Met capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations / -1.32 

Average working capital 

(B). Explanation on items included in numerator and denominator for computation of above ratios: 

(i). Total debt includes non-current borrowings, currant borrowings and interest accrued but nat due on borrowings. 

(ii). Earnings available for debt services: Loss after tax + Finance costs 

{€). Since there are no comparative figures in the current financial year, rsasons for significant changes in ratios has not 

been disclosed. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

{Alf amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

58 

61 

Tha Group has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during the year, in aggregate from banks and financial 

institutions, on the basis of security of fived deposits and there is no requirement to file quarterly returns/statements with such banks and 

financial institutions. 

The Group has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, 

“The Group has not traded or invested in cryptocurrency er virtual currency during the year, 

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companics beyond the statutory 
period, 

The Group does not have any Berami property, where any proceading has been initiated or pending against the Company far holding any 

Benam| property. 

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) ar entityfies), including forsign entities (intermediaries) with 

the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a). directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group 
[Ultimate Beneficiaries), or 

(b). provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an bahoif of the Ultimate Baneficiarizs, 

The Group has not received any fund from any personis) or entities), including foreign ontitias (Funding Party) with the undesstanding 
{whether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the Group shalt 

(a). directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsosver by or on beball of the Group 

(Ultimate Beneficiaries), or 

{b). provide any guarantee, security or tha like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Bensfciarzs. 

"The Parent company had entered into certain transactions with Amrapall Group of Companies in past years, In consequent to which ferendic 

audit was conducted as per the Directions of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between Amrapall Group of 

Companies and Sureka Group of Companies. After which the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order No, Writ Patition[s)(Civil) No. 240/2007 

dated December 2, 2019 had directed M/s Jotindra Steel & Tubes Limited and Maurla Udyog Limited including associated companies and 

Directors viz Mr. Mavnest Kumar Sureka and Me. Akhil Kumar Sureka to deposit © 16,700.00 Lacs. in response to the order of the Hon'ble 

Supreme Court. it had filed an application on December 9, 2019 before the Hon'ble Suprame Court to accept the title deeds of immoveable 

properties belonging to Sureka family members and associate companies (based on latest valuation report) worth amounting T 16,897.00 

Lacs, net of incumbency amount of ¥ 3,924.00 Lacs including Properties amounting ® 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Mauria Udyog Limited. 

In the financial year 2019-20, the Parent company had charged ¥ 15,00.00 Lacs in the Statement of Profit and Loss against the above matter 

on an estimated basis and reduced tha value of properties (property which is deposited to kHon'ble Suoreme Court}. 

The management |s of the opinion that, based on issues and the legal advice that tha ultimate outcome of the legal proceodings in respect 

to the matter will not have material adversa effact to the financial position of the Group. Henca, the Group has neither provided for liability 
against this matter, nor any amount has been shown as contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Cantingant Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets”. 

Parliament of India has approved new Labour Codes which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund, 
Employee State Insurance and Gratuity, The effective date from which the changes are applicable i yet to be notified and the rules are yet 

to be framed. The Group will carry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial statements in the period in which 
tha Codes ive and the related rules are published. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for tha year ended March 31, 203 
(AF amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

67 Standards issued but not yet effective 

On March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corprrata Affajss (MCA) lssued certain amendments and arcual improvements to Ind AS. These 
amendments are applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, 

Amendment to Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 101 

Mow the Initial Recognition Exemption (TRE), does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. 

Marrowed the scope of IRE {with regard to leases and docommissioning obligations). Accordingly, campanies will need to recognise = 

deferred tax assot and a deferred fox liability for fnmparsry diffarences arising on tranractions such as initial recognition of & lease and a 

The amandmants apply to transactions that occur an or after tha beg'nning of the earliest comparativo parisd presented 

The application of this amendment is not expected ta have a material impact on the Greup finansial statements, 

Amendment to Ind AS 1, ind AS 34 and Ind AS 107 

Companies should now disclose material accounting policies rather than their significant 2scounting policies 

The application of this amendment is not axpected to herve a material impact on the Group finaneist stetemants, 

Amendment to Ind AS & 

Definition of ‘change in account e-timate’ has besa renla=nd by revisad definition of ‘recounting astimate’ As par revised dafinition, 

accounting estimates are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncartainty, 

The application of this amendment is not expected te have 5 matrric| impact on the Group finanzizl statements. 

Following amendments ara clarificatory in nsture- 

Amendment ta Ind AS 109 
In Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108, in Appendix B, in paragraph 84.312, for item (bl, the follewing Rem shall be substituted, 
namehy- ; 

*"[b) a combination of entities or businesses undar common control as described in Appendix C of Ind AS 103: or"; 

The application of this amendment is not expected to hava a matarial impact on the Group finapsial statamants 

Amendment to Ind AS 115 

In Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 115, in Appendix 1,» 

{i} in paragraph 2, for the words and figure "paragraph of 157, the ward end figure "paragraph 51" shall be substitute: 

(i) in paragraph 5, for the word and letter “Appendix D® tha word and letter "Anpendix 8 shall br substituted: 

The application of this amendment is not expected to have 8 maternal impact on the Company's financial statements, 

Amendment to Ind AS 703 

In Indian Accounting Standard {ind 45) 103, in Appendix C, In paragraph 13, for item (5), the following ftam shall ba substituted, namely: 

“(b) the data on which the transferee obtains control of the transferor”; 

The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Group finapcial statements, 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

tA amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

Amendment to Ind AS 102 

In Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 102, the footnote starting with the words “For example, in case” and ending with the werds 

exercised”, appearing on the heading before paragraph 24 "If the fair value of the equity instruments cannot be estimated reliably’ tha 

deleted and the same shall be added at the end of paragraph 23 at the words "equity to another”. 

The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Group financial statements, 

68 These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2023. 

69 Since this is the first year that the Group is preparing consolidated financial statements, there are no corresponding prior period figures, 
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